Public Document Pack

Cabinet
Remote Meeting
Date:
Time:

Tuesday, 9th March, 2021
7.00 pm

Venue:

Zoom - https://zoom.us/

Leader and Chair:
Members:

Councillor J Lodge
Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, D Eke, J Evans,
R Freeman, N Hargreaves, P Lees, L Pepper and
N Reeve

Other attendees:

Councillors C Criscione (Conservative Party Group
Leader), A Dean (Liberal Democrat Party Group
Leader),N Gregory (Chair of Scrutiny Committee), P
Fairhurst (Green Party Group Leader), E Oliver (Chair of
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee), R Pavitt
(Uttlesford Independent Party Group Leader) and M
Tayler (Thaxted and the Eastons Independents Group
Leader)

Public Speaking
At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting by writing to
committee@uttlesford.gov.uk.
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their
questions or statement at the meeting, or to attend the meeting over Zoom to
readout their questions or statement themselves.
Members of the public who would like to watch the meeting live can do so here. The
broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins.
.

AGENDA
PART 1
Open to Public and Press
1

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest
To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

6 - 13

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2021.
3

Questions or Statements from Non-Executive Members of the
Council (standing item)
To receive questions or statements from non-executive members on
matters included on the agenda.

4

Matters Referred to the Executive by the Scrutiny Committee
or by the Council (standing item)
To consider matters referred to the Executive for reconsideration in
accordance with the provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Rules.

5

Consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny
committees (standing item)
To consider any reports from Scrutiny Committee.

6

Report of Delegated Decisions taken by Cabinet Members
(standing item)
To receive for information any delegated decisions taken by Cabinet
Members since the previous Cabinet meeting.


7

Appointment to the Voluntary Support Grant Committee –
published on 11 February 2021.

Report on assets of community value determined by the
Assets of Community Value and Local Heritage List
Committee (standing item)
To receive for information any decisions made by the Assets of
Community Value committee since the previous Cabinet meeting.

14

8

Voluntary Support Grants

15 - 35

To note the decision lists following the meetings of the Voluntary
Support Grant Committee on 15 and 23 February 2021.
8a

Voluntary Support Grants: Uttlesford Citizens Advice

36 - 55

To consider the recommendation of the VSG Committee to formally
approve the £160,000 grant to Uttlesford Citizens Advice.
9

Statement of Community Involvement and Community
Engagement Strategy

56 - 139

To consider the Statement of Community Involvement and
Community Engagement Strategy.
10

Budget Forecast Outturn - 2020/21 Quarter 3

140 - 165

To consider the Budget Forecast Outturn – 2020/21 Quarter 3
report.
11

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21 progress update

166 - 199

To consider the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21 progress
update report.
12

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22

200 - 228

To consider the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22.
13

Carver Barracks Running Track - Extension to Longstop Date

229 - 231

To consider the report on the Carver Barracks Running Track –
Extension to Longstop Date.
14

Land at the side of Petlands, Little Walden
To consider the report on the Land at the side of Petlands, Little
Walden.

232 - 235

REMOTE MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC
Due to the Government’s social distancing measures imposed in the wake of Covid19, the way in which the public can participate in Uttlesford District Council meetings
has changed. Meetings are no longer being held on site or in person and ‘remote
meetings’ will be held on the virtual meeting platform Zoom until further notice.
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage.
If you wish to make a statement via Zoom video link, you will need to register with
Democratic Services by midday two working days before the meeting. There is a 15
minute public speaking limit and 3 minute speaking slots will be given on a first
come, first served basis. Those wishing to make a statement via video link will
require an internet connection and a device with a microphone and video camera
enabled. Those wishing to make a statement to the meeting who do not have
internet access can do so via telephone. Technical guidance on the practicalities of
participating via Zoom will be given at the point of confirming your registration slot,
but if you have any questions regarding the best way to participate in this meeting
please call Democratic Services on 01799 510548/410/467/369 who will advise on
the options available.
The agenda is split into two parts. Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which is
open to the public. Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence of
the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for
some other reason. The broadcast will be unable when Part II items are discussed.
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more
information please call 01799 510510.
Facilities for people with disabilities
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510430/433
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.
For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510548, 510410, 510467 or 510369
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER
Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550
Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
CABINET held at ZOOM - HTTPS://ZOOM.US/, on TUESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY
2021 at 7.00 pm

Present:

Councillor J Lodge (Chair)
Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, D Eke, J Evans, R Freeman,
N Hargreaves, P Lees, L Pepper and N Reeve

Officers in
attendance:

D French (Chief Executive), B Ferguson (Democratic Services
Manager), R Harborough (Director - Public Services), A Knight
(Assistant Director - Resources) and A Webb (Director - Finance
and Corporate Services)

Also present: D Frost (Public speaking)
CAB58

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Councillor Danielle Frost, Great Dunmow Town Council (GDTC), addressed
Cabinet. She said GDTC were currently looking at sporting provision available in
the town and were conscious of the importance of physical exercise in terms of
health and wellbeing. She asked when the grant scheme would be open to
applications and how would it be advertised to the community, in the event the
scheme was approved.
Councillor Hargreaves said applications would be submitted online and this
process would be open until the end of June.

CAB59

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No apologies were received from members of the Cabinet. Councillor Lodge
addressed the clerical error on the agenda frontsheet and correctly stated that
Councillor Fairhurst was not a member of Cabinet.

CAB60

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record.

CAB61

QUESTIONS OR STATEMENTS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OF THE
COUNCIL (STANDING ITEM)
There were no questions or statements form non-executive members of the
Council.

CAB62

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEES (STANDING ITEM)

Page 6

Councillor Gregory, the Chair of Scrutiny Committee, informed Cabinet that three
Scrutiny Committee meetings had taken place since the previous Cabinet
meeting.
He summarised the following:






CAB63

He said the Committee had welcomed a public speaker
concerned about the Stansted Airport Planning application
process, specifically regarding the broadcast and minuting of
the meeting. He said that these issues would be looked at when
the Committee reviewed the entire process, once the appeal
had been completed.
The Climate Change Strategy was impressive and the most
effective route to a net zero carbon economy was through the
planning system.
.The budget had been scrutinised and the Committee were
impressed with its presentation.
The Administration had a mandate to improve the planning
function at the Council and he urged them to introduce SMART
objectives and outcomes. He reminded Cabinet of Scrutiny’s
“obsession” with clear measures of success and that such
measures should be in place before expenditure occurred.

REPORT OF DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET MEMBERS
(STANDING ITEM)
The Chair asked Cabinet to note the delegated decisions made since the
previous meeting as set out in the agenda papers.
In response to a question regarding Investment Opportunity 12, the Leader said
the item had been through both the Investment Board and Full Council. He said
there was a need for confidentiality until the deal had been completed, and he
would not comment any further on information he believed had been leaked.
Councillor Hargreaves said a named member of the public, who had concerns
regarding the transparency of the decision, had spoken to Councillor Reeve
about the matter.
In response to a question relating to Self-build custom register decision, the
Director – Public Services said the decision outlined the criteria for those
wishing to register their properties as self-build. He said information could be
circulated to Cabinet members following the meeting.

CAB64

REPORT ON ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE DETERMINED BY THE
ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE AND LOCAL HERITAGE LIST COMMITTEE
(STANDING ITEM)

Page 7

There were no reports on assets of community value.

CAB65

CORPORATE PLAN 2021-25
Councillor Reeve summarised the report on the Corporate Plan, which he said
had been reviewed by the Scrutiny Committee. He said the starting point had
been to consider whether the Plan, as previously approved, required
modification in light of the Local Plan process and Covid-19. He said the
Corporate Plan as written was robust and that changes made were mainly
changes of emphasis, rather than an overhaul of the Administration’s priorities.
One example was the shift from a focus on the youth council to a focus on youth
in general.
Councillor Reeve proposed approval of the Plan; seconded by Councillor Lees.
The Corporate Plan was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED that the revised Corporate Plan attached at Enclosure 1 is
recommended to Council for approval.

CAB66

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND BUDGET 2021/22
Councillor Hargreaves summarised the report regarding the Medium Term
Financial Strategy and budget 2021-22, highlighting areas of note from
appendices A to I. He said this had been a particularly difficult year to produce
the budget and thanked the Director – Finance and Corporate Services and the
Assistant Director – Finance for their work. He proposed the recommendations
set out in the report.
Councillor Reeve seconded the proposal.
In response to a question regarding agency workers, Councillor Hargreaves said
agency costs were attributed to existing departmental budgets, although it
depended on the number of agency staff and whether there were staff
vacancies.
Councillor Lees praised the Ward Initiative Fund, which enabled councillors to
provide £2000 to good causes in their respective wards, and said it was a
fantastic achievement to continue such grants in the current economic climate.
In response to a question relating to the Capital Strategy, Councillor Hargreaves
said the budget committed to the building of over 100 council houses in the
district.
In response to a question regarding the Walden Place redevelopment scheme,
the Assistant Director – Finances said any slippage into 2021-2022 would not be
shown in the papers before Members.

Page 8

Councillor Evans said the good work on the budget should be communicated to
the wider public, and such information should be produced in a way to make it
accessible to all.
The recommendations were approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to recommend the budget strategies and reports for 2021/22
as set out in Appendices A to H of the report and the associated Annexes
for approval by Council.

CAB67

INTERIM CLIMATE CHANGE PLANNING POLICY
Councillor Pepper presented the report on the Interim Climate Change Planning
Policy. She thanked officers, residents and cross party members for their efforts
in producing the policy. She said the primary reasons for the delay in presenting
the document was due to Covid-19 and the lack of resources available. She said
there was now a climate change budget of £1 million to cover costs over the next
three years. She said the policy before Cabinet included robust green measures
to protect the local environment and these correlated with the Council’s green
objectives. Essex County Council had endorsed the document and had cited
Uttlesford District Council as a leader against climate change.
The Policy was proposed by Councillor Pepper, and duly seconded by Councillor
Eke.
Councillor Eke said sustainable transport would be an important element of
future development in the district. He said the focus should not just be on electric
but also on other non-fossil fuels such as hydrogen.
In response, Councillor Pepper said sustainable mode of travel would be part of
the Uttlesford Climate Strategy.
The Policy was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to approve the Interim Climate Change Planning Policy
document as non-statutory development management guidance.

CAB68

UTTLESFORD CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY
Councillor Pepper presented the report on the Uttlesford Climate Change
Strategy. The Strategy outlined the key climate issues relating to green
infrastructure, skills and funding in order to meet the Council’s goal of achieving
net zero carbon by 2030. The information was presented in an accessible
manner to allow public engagement. She said a ten year interim action plan
would follow the Strategy, and this would include measures of success on which
the plan could be judged. This would tie in with the County’s own Climate
Change Policy, as well as the Council’s emerging Local Plan.
Councillor Pepper proposed to endorse the Strategy to Council for approval.

Page 9

Councillor Evans seconded the recommendation.
The recommendation was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to recommend to Council the draft Climate Change Strategy
set out in Appendix 1 for approval
Councillor Dean raised a point of order relating to an earlier part of the meeting.
He said he had received a communication from the relevant member of the
public who had been in communication with Councillors Hargreaves and Reeve
regarding Investment Opportunity 12, stating that he had not received a phone
call from Councillor Reeve. In fact, the resident had been offered a phone call
but had asked for a response in writing instead.
Councillor Reeve said this is what Councillor Hargreaves had said earlier.

CAB69

GRANT ALLOCATION POLICY (SPORTS PROVISION - MAJOR PROJECTS)
Councillor Pavitt left the meeting at 8.13pm.
Councillor Armstrong introduced the report on the Grant Allocation Policy (Sports
Provision – Major Projects). He said Uttlesford had been starved of funding for
sports facilities during the past decade and the Policy would set out how this
process would work.
Councillor Oliver, Chair of the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee,
said that whilst the Committee had endorsed the Policy for adoption, it had done
so subject to a number of specific concerns. He said a number of amendments
should be made to improve the Policy; firstly, to remove the requirement that
sport grants be fully spent within the same year as they were allocated;
secondly, the Policy also stipulated that an organisation could not receive a
sports grant if it had received any other grant from the Council, clarity was
required as to whether this included grants from the Member Ward Initiative
Fund. Thirdly, clarification was required as to whether there were any time
restrictions in terms of an organisation applying for grants year on year. He said
the Committee had expressed disquiet that this year’s grant appeared to have
already been decided as per item 13 on the agenda. He also asked that if
policies were brought to the GAP Committee in future, that the relevant Cabinet
Member attend the meeting to present the policy.
Councillor Hargreaves thanked Councillor Oliver for his comments. He
responded to the point regarding spending the grant within the same year it had
been allocated. He said it was common practice to have such conditions within a
grants policy but it would be sensible to look at this to make it less “draconian”.
In regard to the comment that this year’s grant had already been allocated, he
said there had been a longstanding agreement, made in principle by the
previous Administration, and much work had been put in by the organisers;
without the Council’s support, the project would not have the necessary funding
to continue.

Page 10

Councillor Armstrong said he had been talking to other clubs and organisations
across the district, and the process was being opened up to all localities.
Councillor Hargreaves said there was a prohibition regarding granting the same
organisation two separate grants.
Councillor Day said it would be conducive to have a universal grants policy that
applied to all grant processes across the Council.
Councillor Hargreaves agreed and said the entire process would be looked at.
The Chief Executive advised Cabinet that the final wording be delegated to the
Director – Public Services and Councillor Armstrong, in order to pick up the
amendments suggested by the GAP Committee. She added that Members were
completely unfettered in terms of determining the next item.
Councillor Armstrong proposed; Councillor Day duly seconded. The proposal
was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED that:
i. the Grant Allocation Policy (Sports Provision - Major Projects) be
approved and adopted in principle;
ii. the Director of Public Services, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder
for Sports, Leisure, Education and the Arts, be delegated authority to
finalise the wording regarding the time limits of the grant as necessary.

CAB70

GRANT TOWARDS A 3G FOOTBALL PITCH IN SAFFRON WALDEN
Councillor Armstrong introduced the report regarding the application for a grant
towards a 3G football pitch in Saffron Walden.
In response to a question regarding the project timetable, the Director Public
Services said the project was aimed to be completed by 31 July 2021.
The Leader said the cost of the whole project was approximately £1 million, and
the organisers had the backing of the Football Association (FA). For context, he
said Uttlesford was the only district in the County without such facilities.
Councillor Freeman said he had been aware of this project for a long time and
offered his full support.
Councillor Eke said he was delighted that the organisers had secured nearly a
£1 million in funding and he supported the project whole heartedly.
In response to a question relating to floodlighting, Councillor Freeman said
measures could be put in place, such as specially designed lighting that

Page 11

minimised spillage akin to the lighting installed at Saffron Walden skate park, to
protect the night sky.
Councillor Armstrong the 3G pitch had been backed by many prestigious
sporting authorities and the organisers had gone to great efforts to secure the
necessary funding.
Councillor Armstong proposed approval of the grant; this was duly seconded by
Councillor Day.
The proposal was carried unanimously.
RESOLVED that Cabinet, in principle, awards a grant of £150,000
towards the cost of a 3G artificial grass pitch at Saffron Walden County
High School.), subject to the approval of any further details that may be
requested by the Grants Panel, before a formal grant offer can be made.

CAB71

DAY CENTRES – HOT MEAL SERVICE
Councillor Freeman presented the report on the Day Centres - hot meals
service. He said the centres were currently not in operation due to Covid-19, but
a review would be carried out on their future use. He said the aim was to make
day centres in Uttlesford appropriate for the 21st Century, and to ensure that they
operated in the interests of those who currently use them, as well as widening
their appeal. He said he was putting together a working group, including people
who had practical experience in running the day centres, and recommendations
would be reported back to Cabinet at a later date.
Councillor Dean welcomed the initiative to increase the use of day centres. He
asked Cabinet to carefully consider the hot meals service before making any
changes. He said that the starting point of the review should be to consider the
needs of the current users of day centres, and to listen to volunteers who would
also be able to add value to the process.
Councillor Freeman confirmed that volunteers would be key stakeholders in this
process and would be heavily consulted during the review, and would contribute
to the membership of the working group. He added that officers would also assist
in resourcing the working group.
Councillor Tayler said he was keen to be involved and to assist Councillor
Freeman to help improve the Day Centre service.
Councillors Lodge and Hargreaves alluded to how mixing generations together,
such as the elderly and young children, could be beneficial and should be
included in the review.
In response to a question, Councillor Freeman confirmed that any decision
relating to day centres would be democratic, subject to consultation and existing
funds would be ring-fenced. Furthermore, if recommendations to improve the
Day Centre service required further funding, that would also be considered.

Page 12

Councillor Freeman proposed the recommendation set-out in the report;
Councillor Eke seconded the proposal.
The recommendation was carried unanimously.
RESOLVED that Cabinet confirms that no financial savings will be made
from this process and all allocated Day Centre Service budget will be
retained for the new service delivery options, both in 2021/22 and ongoing

The meeting ended at 8.58pm.

Page 13

Decision

Details of Decision

Reasons

maker

Cllr John
Lodge,
Leader of the
Council

Page 14

RESOLVED to appoint
Councillor Day, Portfolio
Holder for Communities,
Youth, Public Safety and the
Police and Fire Service
Liaison, to the Voluntary
Support Grant Committee.

The Voluntary Support Grant
Committee is a committee of
the Cabinet and membership
is determined at the
discretion of the executive. A
fourth member has been
appointed to the Committee
in the event that another
member cannot attend a
meeting.

Other options
considered and
rejected
None.

Conflict of interest
declared by any
Executive member
consulted
None.

Contact officer from
where the documents
can be obtained
Ben Ferguson,
Democratic Services
Manager
bferguson@uttlesford.go
v.uk

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless
either the Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in.

Agenda Item 6

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISION
PUBLISHED ON: 11 FEBRUARY 2021

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

1 - Election of a Chair
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Hargreaves
as Chair.

Reasons:
To elect a Chair of the Committee.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 15

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5a - Council for Voluntary Services
Uttlesford (CVSU)

Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Agenda Item 8

RESOLVED to grant CVSU Organisation
£51,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.

N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5b- Uttlesford Community Travel
RESOLVED to grant Uttlesford Community
Travel £48,300.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.

Page 16

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5c- St Clare West Essex Hospice Care
Trust
RESOLVED to grant St Clare West Essex
Hospice Care Trust £5,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5d- Community 360 Training
RESOLVED to grant Community 360 Training
£6,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.

Page 17

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5e- Home-Start Essex
RESOLVED to grant Home-Start Essex
£10,500.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5f- Volunteer Uttlesford

Page 18

RESOLVED to grant Volunteer Uttlesford
£18,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge had previously declared a non-prejudicial interest as his
wife had previously worked for the organisation. He did not attend this
meeting.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A- the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non-prejudicial.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5g- Support 4 Sight
RESOLVED to grant Support 4 Sight £10,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 19

Non-Key

5h- Action for Family Carers
RESOLVED to grant Action for Family Carers
£15,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5i- Hearing Help Essex

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

RESOLVED to grant Hearing Help Essex
£3,500.

voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

Page 20

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5j- Uttlesford Citizens Advice
RESOLVED to recommend that Cabinet grant
Uttlesford Citizens Advice £160,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Non-Key

5k- Citizens Advice East Herts
RESOLVED to grant Citizens Advice East
Herts £11,500.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 21

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5l- Accuro (Care Services)
RESOLVED to grant Accuro (Care Services)
£20,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5m- Uttlesford Buffy Bus Association Buffy Playbus
RESOLVED to grant Uttlesford Buffy Bus
Association £5,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 22

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5n- Carers First
RESOLVED to grant Carers First £7,400.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5o- Bridge Meadows CIC
RESOLVED to grant Bridge Meadows CIC nil
monies.

Reasons:
Applications are only open to registered charities. As the organisation is a
Community Interest Company, it is not entitled to this grant. However,
possible alternative funding streams exist, such as Health and Well-being
grants, and these would be investigated by officers.
Other Options considered:
None.

Page 23

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge had previously declared a non-prejudicial interest as the
operators were known to him. He did not attend this meeting.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A- the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non-prejudicial.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

5p- Dig It Community Allotment
RESOLVED to grant Dig It Community
Allotment £6,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge had previously declared a non-prejudicial interest as his
wife had previously been involved in the organisation. He did not attend this
meeting.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A- the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non-prejudicial.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 24

Non-Key

5q- Saffron Walden Mencap Society
RESOLVED to grant Saffron Walden Mencap
Society nil monies.

Reasons:
Concerns were expressed that the funding being requested was for a new
project, about which there were doubts as to future sustainability. There
was also seen to be some overlap with the works undertaken by Accuro
(Care Services). However, possible alternative funding streams exist, such
as Health and Well-being grants, and these would be investigated by
officers.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021
A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Non-Key

5r- Saffron Hall Trust
RESOLVED to grant Saffron Hall Trust
£9,000.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge had previously declared a personal and prejudicial
interest as a trustee of Saffron Hall. He did not attend this meeting.

Page 25

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A- Councillor Lodge took no part in the decision-making process for this
item.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

1 - Election of a Chair
RESOLVED to elect Councillor Hargreaves as
Chair.

Reasons:
To elect a Chair of the Committee.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 26

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4a - Council for Voluntary Services
Uttlesford (CVSU)
RESOLVED to grant CVSU Organisation
£34,000, subject to the consideration of all
valid applications and the overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4b - Uttlesford Community Travel
RESOLVED to grant Uttlesford Community
Travel £40,000, subject to the consideration of
all valid applications and the overall budget
limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.

Page 27

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4c - St Clare West Essex Hospice Care
Trust
RESOLVED to grant St Clare West Essex
Hospice Care Trust £5,000, subject to the
consideration of all valid applications and the
overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4d - Community 360 Training
The item was deferred as additional
information was requested from the
organisation.

Reasons:
The decision was deferred pending clarification of operations during the
pandemic.

Page 28

Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4e - Home-Start Essex
RESOLVED to grant Home Start Essex
£10,500, subject to the consideration of all
valid applications and the overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4f - Volunteer Uttlesford

Page 29

RESOLVED to grant Volunteer Uttlesford
£18,000, subject to the consideration of all
valid applications and the overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge declared a non-prejudicial interest as his wife had
previously worked for the organisation.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non-prejudicial.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4g - Support 4 Sight
RESOLVED to grant Support 4 Sight £10,000,
subject to the consideration of all valid
applications and the overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 30

Non-Key

4h - Action for Family Carers
RESOLVED to grant Action for Family Carers
£15,000, subject to the consideration of all
valid applications and the overall budget limit

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4i - Hearing Help Essex
RESOLVED to grant Hearing Help Essex

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

£3,500, subject to the consideration of all valid
applications and the overall budget limit.

Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 31

Non-Key

4j - Uttlesford Citizens Advice

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.

RESOLVED to recommend that Cabinet grant
Uttlesford Citizens Advice £160,000, subject to
the consideration of all valid applications and
Other Options considered:
the overall budget limit.
None.

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4k - Citizens Advice East Herts

Reasons:

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

RESOLVED to grant Citizens Advice East
Herts £11,500, subject to the consideration of
all valid applications and the overall budget
limit.

To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 32

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4l - Accuro (Care Services)
RESOLVED to grant Accuro (Care Services)
£20,000, subject to the consideration of all
valid applications and the overall budget limit.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Non-Key

4m - Uttlesford Buffy Bus Association Buffy Playbus
RESOLVED to grant Uttlesford Buffy Bus
Association £5,000, subject to the
consideration of all valid applications and the
overall budget limit.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.

Page 33

In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4n - Carers First
RESOLVED to grant Carers First £7,381,
subject to the consideration of all valid
applications and the overall budget limit.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4o - Bridge Meadows CIC
RESOLVED to grant Bridge Meadows CIC nil
monies.

Reasons:
Applications are only open to registered charities. As the organisation is a
Community Interest Company, it is not entitled to this grant. However,
possible alternative funding streams exist, such as Health and Well-being
grants, and these would be investigated by officers.
Other Options considered:
None

Page 34

Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge declared a non-prejudicial interest as the operators were
known to him.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A – the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non prejudicial.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4p - Dig It Community Allotment
RESOLVED to grant Dig it Community
Allotment £6,000, subject to the consideration
of all valid applications and the overall budget
limit.

Reasons:
To enable grant funding to be offered from the available budget to benefit
voluntary sector bodies in Uttlesford.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
Councillor Lodge declared a non-prejudicial interest as his wife had

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

previously been involved in the organisation.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A – the interest declared was non-pecuniary and non-prejudicial.
RECORD OF DECISIONS - VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANT COMMITTEE MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021
Non-Key

4q - Saffron Walden Mencap Society
RESOLVED to grant Saffron Walden Mencap
Society nil monies.

Page 35

Reasons:
Concerns were expressed that the funding being requested was for a new
project, about which there were doubts as to future sustainability. There
was also seen to be some overlap with the works undertaken by Accuro
(Care Services). However, possible alternative funding streams exist, such
as Health and Well-being grants, and these would be investigated by
officers.
Other Options considered:
None.
Any interest declared by any member of Cabinet:
None.
In respect of any conflict of interest declared, whether dispensation is
in existence for that interest:
N/A.

A decision will come into force and may be implemented on the expiry of five working days after the date of publication unless either the
Chairman or any three members of the Scrutiny Committee objects and calls it in. To check the call in status of any of the above
decisions, please refer to the Decisions page of the website, where you can use search options to find information regarding decisions
taken.

Agenda Item 8a
Application deadline: Midday

Friday 15 January 2021

Voluntary Sector Provider Contribution Fund Scheme
Application Form
Details of your Organisation
Name of organisation

Uttlesford Citizens Advice

Address:

Barnards Yard
Saffron Walden

Postcode:
Contact Person

CB11 4EB
Kate Robson

Position in Organisation

CEO

Telephone Number:

01799 526557

E-mail address:

kate.robson@uttlesfordca.org.uk

Website address:

www.uttlesfordcab.org.uk

Charity Registration No:

1078222

Declaration:
1. I am authorised to make the application on behalf of the above organisation.
2. I certify the information contained in this application is correct.
3. If the information in the application changes in any way I will inform Uttlesford
District Council.

1

Page 36

Details of Application
Description of work undertaken by the organisation
Uttlesford Citizens Advice provides non-judgemental advice and emergency support in relation to
debt and money, benefit support, housing issues, community health worries and relationship law,
to help people deal with a diverse range of problems.

We are free, confidential, independent, and impartial; this is important so that we can act as a
trusted and effective advocate for our clients and remain accessible to everyone.
Our advice service operates five days a week from 9.30 to 3.30. During the pandemic, this
has mostly been restricted to a telephone service with the support of 35 volunteer advisers and
assessors. From July we opened two days a week with the support of 4 further adviser
volunteers and provided limited appointments to clients that we were finding most difficult to
progress over the phone (due mainly to sensory impairments, reading and writing limitations or
technical barriers).
Under normal circumstances we run a home visit service, with the support of 10
volunteers, to help people who are housebound (as a result of disability or frailty) to access
benefits and community support advice. This team has continued to offer telephone support
throughout 2020, advising 482 unique clients over the course of the year.
We provide specialist casework support to our clients in the areas of debt and disability
benefit appeal work. We are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
We offer a specialist Help to Claim service to support people who are making their first
claim for Universal Credit and a Warm Homes service to support clients in fuel poverty and help
people improve the energy efficiency of their homes. Our Warm Homes Adviser has NEA level 3
Energy Awareness Qualifications.
We are a key provider of emergency support, distributing food vouchers and emergency
funds to residents in desperate situations with no money for food, fuel, travel to medical
appointments, or to access homeless shelters. In addition, we refer clients to organizations that
provide further support, such as food banks.
We continue to lead the development of a multi-agency referral and signposting service
has proved invaluable over the last year, allowing users to securely and reliably work with
different organisations, even while many traditional face to face services are not readily
accessible. Between Oct and Dec 2020 the platform supported 67 different organisations,
allowing them to make 1,162 secure referrals to 127 different services and supported 1,861
signposts.

2

Page 37

Platform, Homelessness Partnership, the Children and Families group and the EESET group.
Getting the best outcome and support for our clients means working with multiple
agencies and partners. We work closely with CVSU on the Frontline project (funding them to
undertake the administration functions of the project for west Essex). We are currently piloting a
project with Mind in west Essex (aiming to better incorporate mental health support into our debt
support provision). We are working with Essex Library service and UDC in Great Dunmow and
Stansted to establish video based advice hubs.
We keep the community informed, raising awareness of local and national issues. We are
active on social media, posting in local facebook groups, with our posts regularly reaching in
excess of 6,000 people across the district. We distribute monthly press releases to local
newspapers and parish magazines covering issues such as scam awareness, warm homes,
energy saving, redundancy, hate crime, and planning for the end of the Brexit transition period.
In the early stages of the March lockdown, we produced factsheets that helped residents to
access support, food and other delivery services.
We help Uttlesford residents and our clients by campaigning on their behalf. Our aim is to
ety. Our
campaigns are based on sound research and reflect those issues which are having the biggest
effect on our clients locally. We support national campaigns by Citizens Advice where these are
relevant to our clients and people in Uttlesford. We are currently campaigning to retain the £20
uplift in Universal Credit, writing to Kemi Badenoch M.P. and lobbying other local statutory and
non-statutory organisations to do the same. On a local level we are collecting evidence of the
digital barriers many of our clients face, particularly when making blue badge applications.
We continue to focus on better engaging with BAME and white, non-British residents in
our community. We have promoted our services in 5 languages using posters and social media
and have engaged the support of 11 language volunteers to support email translation. We have
use of the Language Line when required. We have a trained Polish speaking adviser and Polish
welcome and introduction letters in our office waiting area. We work with partners like Support 4
Sight and RAD to also extend our reach into more hard to reach segments of the population.
We positively promote and champion the values of diversity, equality and fairness, and
challenge discrimination in all forms. We are a hate crime reporting centre; all our staff and
volunteers have been trained to identify hate crimes and discrimination, which often is not
identified by clients themselves. We speak up on rural access issues, for example changes to
public transport in the district, which can disproportionately affect people on low incomes and try
to represent, communicate and lobby around challenges and unfairness that our clients face.

3

Page 38

How many paid employees does your organisation have?
We currently have 17 part time members of staff working a total of 341 hours a week, the
equivalent of 9.2 full time equivalent positions.
Management and quality assurance (55 hours)
Supervision of advice and training (77 hours)
Specialist Debt casework (106 hours)*
Help to Claim Project Universal Credit (18 hours)*
Benefit Take Up Project / Specialist disability appeal support (21 hours)*
Frontline Project (15 hours)*
Warm Homes Projects (26 hours)*
Remote Access Project - ending July 21 (23 hours)*
* In 2020-21 funding supporting projects came from Essex Community Foundation, West Essex
Clinical Commissioning Group and Essex County Council, Department of Works and Pensions,
Money and Pension Service.
How many volunteers does your organisation have?
Since the first lockdown we have had a very challenging time. Comparing March 20 to Jan 21
our trained volunteer adviser numbers dropped from 26 to 12, with a number of Advisers
deciding to resign (to focus on their families/ caring responsibilities). A number of advisers also
temporarily returned when we were able to open between July-Dec). We used extra ECC Covid
support funding to recruit two additional intakes of trainee Assessors (the first step to training to
become an Adviser) - but this means we are effectively working with growing demand and an
inexperienced volunteer base.
At the moment we are delivered primarily through 59 dedicated volunteers, who work
approximately 389 hours a week for the charity.
In 2019-20 the public value of this volunteering was calculated to be £378,701 a year. Our
current volunteer workforce comprises of:
9 Trustees
12 Advisers
10 Assessors
13 Trainee Assessors
11 Home Visitors
4 Support Roles (admin and projects)
In addition we have 11 Local residents have also offered language support on an ad hoc basis.

4

Page 39

How many members does your organisation have (if applicable)
As a Charity and Company Limited by Guarantee, our trustee board is accountable to a
membership body of 35 local people, our 59 volunteers, our funders and local supporters, all of
whom are committed to the aims and principles of Citizens Advice Services.
Who/what does your organisation support and in what way?
In 2020:
We helped 2,545 unique clients,
dealing with 9,242 separate issues,
and handling 13,396 phone calls, emails and visits.
Although it is important that we are available to everyone in our community, with limited
resources we aim to signpost the most able people to self-help options (web-based services
such as ACAS for employment law information, Citizens Advice Consumer Helpline and StepChange Debt Charity), where appropriate. This allows us to focus our efforts on supporting the
most vulnerable members of the community.
Last year 53% of clients using our service described themselves as disabled or with a
long-term illness
31% of these had a mental health condition.
Clients often access our services several times over the course of the year for different issues.
We aim to work with people to prevent their difficulties from escalating and impacting on their
mental or physical health. Many are dealing with serious life changing circumstances and have
complex, multidimensional problems that take numerous appointments and time to resolve.
Data from the national body of Citizens Advice showed that in 2019/20:
33% of clients received advice for more than 1 problem
22% of people with a debt, housing or employment problem also had a problem with
benefits
debt was also an issue for 16% of housing clients
Our advice helps our clients address their problems and move forward; this positive impact can
also be felt by families,friends, colleagues and employers. 60% of people said they felt less
stressed, depressed or anxious as a result of the help they received from Citizens Advice, and
41% said that their physical health had improved - this helps to keep people in work and families
together.
Our advice also reduces the need for public services such as health, housing and out of work
benefits. Using an established model, we calculate that the financial value of our advice during
2019/20 and the positive outcomes it contributed to both individuals and society was as follows:
5

Page 40

£125,491 in savings to the NHS (reducing use of mental health and GP services and
keeping people in work)
£127,916 in savings to local authorities (preventing homelessness and housing evictions
and mental health services)
£351,001 in savings to DWP (by keeping people in work)
£5,580,000 in financial value to our clients (financial outcomes)
This reflects a generation in savings of over £2 for every £1 invested (through public grants)
The Covid-19 pandemic has caused unprecedented challenges for many. As a result there has
been a marked difference in the range of enquiries we have received from clients. Although
benefits remained our top advice area throughout, debt and housing issues were temporarily
pushed down the advice list at the beginning of the year, to be replaced with employment advice
and emergency response work. During 2020 we:
helped 125 individuals and families access over £13,000 emergency charitable support
from local organisations
secured over £50,000 of fuel vouchers and grants to support families in fuel poverty
helped 225 unique clients access foodbank support
saw foodbank referrals increase by 143% compared to the same period last year
54% of all referrals to Uttlesford Foodbank are made by UCA
During 2020 we helped 315 unique clients with 622 separate employment issues. The number of
clients coming to us for advice on redundancy issues increased by 367% year on year. In
response to this we developed our resources for individuals facing redundancy and for clients
who run small businesses. We are pleased to be working with the Council and other local
organisations to administer grant support schemes and provide support for local people to help
them overcome barriers to training or job searching.
Our role in helping our clients to bridge the digital divide has been more important than ever as
more services have been forced to move online and transact in this manner during the
pandemic. Our Benefit Take-Up, core and Help to Claim services continue to support clients who
suffer from digital exclusion or would otherwise find it difficult to claim benefits or apply for
additional support due to illness, poor literacy or computer skills.
In 2020, our staff and volunteers helped:
325 clients to make an initial Universal Credit claim
482 clients to make disability benefit applications
122 clients navigate the disability benefit appeal system
75 clients with Blue Badge applications
Although our home visit activities have temporarily stopped, our specialist disability benefits team
continues to complete disability benefit forms on behalf of clients over the phone. Appeal work is
ongoing too and we have successfully overturned numerous unfair decisions, bringing in over
£1.45 million of extra benefit income to the district money that helps people to heat their
homes, maintain special diets and pay for services and adaptations that improve their
independence and quality of life.
6

Page 41

Our specialist debt team works with residents to support them to become debt free with the help
of Debt Relief Orders, bankruptcies and negotiated settlements. While many debts do relate to
credit cards and loans, a very high proportion of our debt clients need help with rent and council
tax arrears, fuel debts and overpayment of benefits, which reflects both the lack of affordable
housing in this area and the number of people who are in fuel poverty in our district.
Last year we helped 353 clients with issues related to housing, the majority relating to issues
with private sector rented and social housing. We are aware of the need for affordable local
housing and work hard to ensure that people who are in need and eligible for support are
identified to the Council. We are particularly active regarding vulnerable clients (e.g. people
suffering domestic violence or living with a disability).
During the last 6 months we have advised 28 homeless clients and 46 clients threatened with
affected. We also work with the wider community, for example, local Churches, charities and
trust funds to support clients where there is no statutory duty to do so or where there is no
access to the public purse.
For the last 9 years, we have delivered specialist warm homes advice in partnership with the
Council, to help people achieve fuel bill reduction, energy efficiency and implement home
improvements. Our specialist Energy Adviser carries out casework on behalf of clients, helping
them to access over £50,000 worth of energy related benefits and grants over the last 12
months. All generalist advisers are trained to recognise clients who may be vulnerable to cold
making contact.
Our service helps clients address some of the key factors that contribute to loneliness and social
isolation, such as a lack of disposable income or difficulty accessing transport and helps them to
manage life events such as relationship breakdown and bereavement. When we are not best
placed to support a resident, we connect members of the public to other community groups and
support through Uttlesford Frontline. During the national lockdown we worked with District, Town
and Parish Councils and local community groups to reach residents and help them to access
local support networks. During the spring and early summer of 2020 we provided a temporary
Listening Service supported by 12 volunteers (that felt unable to advise from home)
During the last year we have helped people to understand what the end of the Brexit transition
period may mean for them, advising 30 people on immigration issues; 12 of these required
information about, and help to apply for, EU settled and Pre-settled status.
How much money is your organisation requesting?
£160,000 (no increase from the total 20-21 grant)
Please give full details of the use that will be made of any financial aid given by Uttlesford
District Council. (Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary).
7

Page 42

We are aware that the funding environment going forward will be challenging. In 2020-21 and for
part of 2021-22 we are grateful that additional project funding has allowed us to increase our
offset a large proportion of our core overheads.
We are conscious however, that project funding may become more difficult to secure in the
future. Therefore it is vital that we work to rebuild our volunteer adviser capacity, as this has
been undermined by the loss of an office environment during the pandemic. To ensure that we
can get back into the office and train, develop and supervise volunteers effectively in 2021-22,
we must ensure that we have sufficient supervisor capacity. We have therefore budgeted staffing
costs for this year to include provision for two supervisors to be available, 5 days a week.
Reflecting on our budget in 2020-21, staffing hours were set at 264 hours a week. 70% of these
hours relate to volunteer based, core advice delivery, with the remaining 30% covered by project
funding. For 2021-22, staffing hours have been set at 341 hours a week - 58% relate to volunteer
based, core advice and 42% will be covered by project funding. This represents a total increase
in staff hours, in terms of core advice provision, of 13 hours year on year.
Although we plan to increase staff hours, our grant request of £160k for 2021-22 remains the
same as in 2020-21 because we are able to use project income to offset core service overheads
and we have not requested additional support for Frontline. The grant, if awarded, will cover all
staffing costs for our core service, which are currently budgeted at £159,015.
Name up to three things you aim to achieve in the funding period.
Increase our volunteer adviser numbers. 14 experienced volunteer advisers decided
to retire or step back from volunteering in March 2020. Scheduled advisor training to upskill
Assessors to Advisers has also been frustrated by a lack of face to face working opportunities
during the year. We were able to manage demand in 2020/21 by diverting debt casework
resources to generalist work in the first shutdown and securing additional warm home funded
casework hours in the second wave. However, the third shutdown is more challenging because
debt casework is not easing and with schools closed, our paid staff's ability to cover their current
hours is a challenge for some. In 2021-22, our focus will be to encourage volunteer Assessors to
undertake further training and develop into fully trained advisers.
Maintain our quality of advice and supervision. The shut-down has provided clear
evidence that volunteers and staff need to carry out face to face appointments with clients in an
office environment to find advice work rewarding, to develop relationships with, and learn from,
colleagues and to secure the greatest impact for our clients. We however have also recognised
that delivering phone advice and email advice from home is feasible, flexible and practical when
we have sufficient supervision. In 2021-22 we are committed to always having two supervisors
available on a daily basis, so that we support volunteers working in the office and at home to the
best of our ability, and ensure that quality of advice is maintained at a good level. Our advice
continues to be audited regularly by National Citizens Advice - we have consistently performed
well but the standards we have to meet are high and maintaining those standards requires
significant time spent on quality assurance and training by paid staff.
8

Page 43

Increased access to our service - In Dec 2019 we made a decision to give notice to
leave our office in Great Dunmow - with the plan that we would move and deliver face to face
support from the town library. With discussions with ECC frustrated over legal agreements and
then the impact of Covid, we have revised our plan and now intend to open two individual glass
Citizens Advice (and hopefully Uttlesford District Council) services via a video call.

We appreciate that a face to face service is often preferred by clients, but believe that increasing
access in two locations is more practical if we use a video option in the first instance - whilst still
being able to have one to one dedicated office space in the library if needed.

What is the demand for the service and how is this being established? How will your
project/service find out what the views of its users are and about the services they (will)
receive?
We receive referrals from all parts of the community, including, but not limited to:
doctors
social services
other charities
psychiatric nurses
occupational therapists
schools
parish and district councillors
and many people self-refer
matter is urgent (e.g. eviction order, domestic violence, bailiff) or if the client is very stressed,
depressed or vulnerable. We will then either signpost the client to self-help or specialist support
services, or arrange a generalist advice appointment with the client.
When our office is closed (for example due to Covid) we commit to answering local voicemail
and email messages within two working days (although in reality we try to get to all clients on the
day they contact us). When the office is open, initial phone calls and emails will be answered on
the day and if a client needs access to an adviser, they are offered a phone call back (usually
within two working days) or a face to face appointment. We aim to provide face to face
appointments within a week, however at certain times of the year, waiting periods for nonemergency situations may slip to two weeks due to high demand or lack of appointment capacity.
We monitor our telephone volumes and pick up rates. Between April to Dec 2020 we received
5,726 voicemails alone. When we are working in the office as normal, we target an 80% first call
pick up rate. In 2020 we joined the Citizens Advice national Adviceline - this means that any calls
generated from local Uttlesford exchanges are now routed to us on a free phone number.
There continues to be high demand for our specialist debt services. We employ two part9

Page 44

time Debt Specialists, a debt admin and have recently been awarded national Money and
Pension Service funding to recruit and train a further part-time two debt advisers, (we are
currently waiting for confirmation that funding will be available to extend contracts to the end of
increase demand for this service.
It was noticeable that, at the start of the pandemic, some of our most vulnerable clients seemed
to benefit from the temporary uplifts in welfare payments, restrictions on bailiffs and evictions and
payment holidays. However, demand for debt services is now back to pre-pandemic levels, and
as savings are eroded and redundancies increase, even more people are facing economic
insecurity. Once temporary financial support and protections are lifted we expect more will feel
the impact, further increasing demand for our debt services.
We are still waiting for confirmation of funding for our Universal Credit, Help to Claim in 2021-22
from DWP, but this service remains extremely well utilized. During 2020, we helped a total of 503
unique clients with issues relating to Universal Credit; 325 needed help to make their initial claim,
as they were struggling due to lack of internet access, difficulty using the intranet, poor
broadband connection, poor language or literacy skills.
Our Disability Benefits Team continues to be in high demand. Our 98% success rate on appeals
suggests that there continues to be serious issues with the management of the application,
assessment and appeal process, with assessors failing to understand the cycle of mental illness
or consider cutbacks in mental health services. For example, clients with long- term mental
health conditions that are being managed by their GP alone may be refused as having no
specialist input, despite clearly fulfilling the PIP criteria. A successful award can help people
access additional support, e.g carer's allowance and the motability scheme, improving
independence and reliance on health services. On average, clients receive an award of £4,160 a
year; this is commonly used for mobility aids, transport, special diets, adequate warmth and
adaptations to the home, improving health, wellbeing and quality of life and often prevents clients
from being pushed into debt.
Our specialist warm homes team has supported 158 clients over the last year, helping them to
reduce their heating bills, improve the energy efficiency of their homes, access fuel vouchers,
cold weather payments and grants for home improvements. 78% of these clients were of working
age; 46% were living with a disability or long term health condition. One young family contacted
the service as they could not afford to heat their home - carrying out casework on their behalf,
our adviser identified that they were missing out on over £600 each month in benefit entitlements
and extra support. Over the last year, our team has helped clients access over £50,000 in
additional fuel related grants, vouchers and benefits.
Unsurprisingly, the demand for emergency support has increased dramatically this year. We
continue to work with other local charities and groups, churches, councils and UDC to distribute
funds to people whose ability to work has been affected by the pandemic.
A quarterly client satisfaction survey is undertaken by the national body of Citizens Advice on our
behalf. The results and analysis are reported to the Council on a quarterly basis and to our
Trustee Board with recommendations where appropriate, which are incorporated into the
Business and Development Plan. Of clients surveyed over the last 12 months, 95% rated our
10

Page 45

service as good or very good. Please find below a selection of the comments made by clients
taking part in the survey:
their problems and have no one else to turn to for the correct advice. Although my problems have not
been resolved completely, I am now following the advice given to me and I am moving in the right
direction. I would also like to add that I feel more confident in taking the steps needed to hopefully
resolve my situation. Thank you
I rely on CAB to help me with filling out application forms for my disability benefits and appealing the
recent decision. If it was not for Citizens Advice help, I think I would have given up; I have various
health problems and long term debilitating illness.
I feel we are lucky to have a CAB in our town, when you are really down they give reassurance and
point you in the right direction. Without them I am sure more people would struggle and if alone
would find the pressure of being assessed by DWP daunting risking self harm and neglect. Thank
you for all the help you gave me.
All the staff were friendly and helpful, but Liz, my money advisor was fabulous. She assured me that
everything would be fine and not to worry. She worked diligently and the whole process was far

We continue to work in community partnership initiatives to ensure we capture the views of other
partners on the services we provide and the support that their users need.
We are active on social media and use it both to promote our service and gather feedback on
ways in which we can improve.

Does the Council encourage or support your organisation in any way other than
financially? Please give details.
We find the officers and councillors very supportive. All officers accept that as advocates for our
clients we may on occasions act as a critical friend and challenge council decisions, however we
also believe they appreciate that our work can help prevent or mitigate problems, particularly in
connection with housing, benefits and debt issues. The charity is regularly asked to comment on
changes in policies and is often invited to respond to consultations.
Referrals are received and generated to/from the homelessness team, housing options team,
environmental health team, tenancy support and revenue and collection team. Joint working in
relation to Universal Credit between the Council, DWP and Citizens Advice continues to be very
positive.
The council media team is supportive of our campaign work, encouraging us to submit stories to
Uttlesford Life and re-tweeting our campaigns. The benefits team will regularly add flyers to
benefit letters promoting our money and debt service and are currently supporting us to target
clients who may benefit from warm homes support.
11

Page 46

Many Councillors and officers are interested and supportive of the work we do. We are grateful
for their input and attendance at specific strategy days and at our Annual General Meeting.
the proposed project would contribute to the Counci
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/corporate-plan
We help the Council to promote healthy lifestyles in diverse and inclusive
communities
We actively help the community stay healthy. Many of our clients come to us depressed and
worried about their circumstances or their future; we provide one to one support and advice over
the whole spectrum of welfare advice areas and, where appropriate, we have the knowledge and
experience to refer or signpost clients to other organisations if they are in a better position to
offer support.
helping them to achieve health and wellbeing priorities including combating loneliness and social
isolation, supporting people to age well and alleviating winter pressures and fuel poverty.
Loneliness is not an issue that exists in isolation, it is often a symptom of a myriad of issues such
as life events which can trigger low confidence, low income/poverty, limited transport options,
and individuals having no control or ability to exercise choices in their lives.
As a service we help our clients to build resilience for example, by working with them to solve
their money worries through benefits maximization or debt management or by tackling practical
issues such as problems with housing or employment. Many of our clients experience a major
change in their circumstances before coming to us and therefore are vulnerable when they seek
our advice. Advice which reduces debt by keeping people in employment or which helps people
access their welfare rights can also reduce demand on statutory and public services.
In the course of providing advice, we often find out about other problems and concerns in
for their children or who have aspirations to improve their health by getting fitter. Using Uttlesford
range of services, from support groups for carers and people with long term illnesses or
disabilities to befriending schemes, care services, social activities, weight management services
and activity groups. The system also offers fact sheets to download on a range of topics
including local transport options, befriending and support for the housebound, which provide
information and links to both local and national services. Uttlesford Frontline is an invaluable tool
in improving community engagement helping clients, partners and members of the public to
access the full range of health and wellbeing services available to them across the district and
beyond.
As a volunteer led organization, we regularly promote opportunities for new volunteers to join our
team. Our comprehensive training course helps people build confidence, learn new skills, make
new friends and often leads our volunteers to explore further training or a change in career. This
year we have successfully run 2 online training courses, training 14 new gateway advisers, some
12

Page 47

of whom will progress to full adviser training in due course. We plan to run a further training
course in the early part of 2021.
We help the Council continue to be an active partner of the Community Safety
Partnership by protecting vulnerable people
We actively help the community stay safe. Last year we helped 49 clients who came to us for
help with issues relating to discrimination, hate crime and domestic abuse.
Essex Police are now actively using Frontline across west Essex, which has further improved
partnership working for all services using the platform.
We work with the council to protect those in need in our district by helping to
prevent homelessness and improve private sector housing conditions.
We work closely with the housing options team to support early intervention and identification of
families and households that may be at risk of homelessness. We also act as a critical friend in
clients (e.g. people suffering domestic violence or living with a disability). We regularly assess
-council led solutions. We
are active in helping people access emergency housing options this task is particularly
challenging in this district.
whilst working with other schemes such as the British Gas Trust. When asked to do so, we
continue to share our insights in working within our community, and sharing the challenges faced
by our clients, to help the Council in formulating plans for the future development of Uttlesford.
We can help UDC in their aim of conducting a wholesale review of school transport
to understand the gap in provision by Essex County Council
Our research and campaigns team have been focused on the issues of school bus services for
some time, and have collected anecdotal data from both local families and parish councils. We
have also been monitoring price increases and access to ticket information on service websites,
investigated school access for families living at Carver Barracks and campaigned to make school
transport information clearer and more accessible.

We are working with UDC to create and support new services inside our libraries to
increase their viability
For some time we have been working towards co-locating our service in Great Dunmow and
Stansted libraries. This has a number of advantages, allowing us to reach people at an earlier
stage and increase the visibility of our service. As a result of Covid-19 however, our plans to
deliver our service from Great Dunmow and Stansted libraries has evolved and we are currently
13

Page 48

investigating ways in which clients may be able to access our service from libraries using remote
technology instead.
We support UDC to take action on climate change
Our Warm Homes team actively works to combat climate change by helping clients to access
energy efficiency and home improvement grants, which can improve the energy efficiency of
private housing stock in the district.
We help UDC deliver programmes to support our aging population
Last year, 29% of our clients were aged over 60, furthermore this age group represented 37% of
enquiries relating to health and community care.
The most common reason for clients of this age to contact us was in connection with benefit
issues - last year our disability benefits team helped 248 people aged over 60 with issues
week, on average - this extra income is commonly used for mobility aids, transport, special diets,
adequate warmth and adaptations to the home, allowing them to continue to live independently
and achieve a better quality of life.
Clients in this age group also commonly come to us for help with housing and debt issues, many
also have a requirement for legal advice, particularly in relation to capacity to act issues, such as
drawing up a power of attorney.
e responsible with money and mitigate the
.
We appreciate the importance of the Council effectively collecting revenue and charges from
residents and continue to work hard to inform clients of both their rights and responsibilities. We
work closely with the revenue Collection team and where feasible we will always try to minimize
the Council taking costly court action in favour of finding a realistic repayment mechanism.

Are there any other organisations providing the same service as your organisation in
Uttlesford? If yes, please give details.
Uttlesford Citizens Advice provides the only free and independent comprehensive advice
and information service in the district. In addition, Citizens Advice are the only financial conduct
authority approved provider of debt advice services delivered in the district.
Other Essex based services, for example Peasbody Trust and Essex Community Agents
provide floating support services in Uttlesford, however, members of staff are rarely accredited
advisers and numbers supported are small.
14

Page 49

There are a number of local organisations that provide leaflets or signpost to advice
domestic violence and drugs and alcohol services.
There is a statutory duty for the Council to provide a certain level of housing advice and
homelessness support. We work closely with the Council to support this provision and will
signpost and refer clients that we are supporting with housing issues to the Council where we
identify that they may be at risk of losing their home or becoming homeless.
As highlighted, we make use of both Step-Change and National Debt Line when we feel
that clients are able to manage their situations with remote support.
We make use of the ACAS helpline when we feel that clients are able to manage their
situation with remote advice.
We make use of the Citizens Advice Consumer helpline when we feel that clients are able
to manage their situation with remote advice.
There are other statutory bodies involved with delivering benefit advice including the
district council, department of work and pensions and HMRC. We however regularly advocate for
clients in dealing with these agencies.
Do you work in isolation to these organisations or collaboratively in any way? Please
provide details.
We work closely with all local services to achieve the best outcome and support for our clients as
we know that sometimes advice is only part of the solution.
For example, we know that debt can cause - and be caused by - mental health problems; 1 in 2
adults with debt also have a mental health problem. As we target our casework support to some
of the most challenging situations and vulnerable individuals, we actually see a greater
correlation than this in the cohort that we help. Correspondingly, many of our debt clients go
through challenging periods of ill health, which can make it difficult for our team to achieve the
best outcome for them.
We have therefore begun to work collaboratively with Mind in West Essex to improve the linkage
of mental health and wellbeing support to our clients (this was facilitated by a grant from
Uttlesford Health and Wellbeing Board that directly funded a service agreement with MiwE)

15

Page 50

Your project costs
Please give an estimate breakdown of your running costs

Revenue costs

2021-2022

Salaries (inc Pension and NI)

273,479

Mortgage and rent

10,950

Running expenses

23,685

Project overheads & IT maintenance

50,520

Travel costs

7,013

Cita Membership Fee

4,750

Professional Fees

1,000

Depreciation

7,646

Project recovery

-25,320

Total revenue

353,723

Income

2020-2021

From grants

200,733

From other sources

159,773

Total income

360,506

16

Page 51

Is your organisation financed or supported by other organisations, if yes, give full details,
if no, why not?
Grants

Essex CC General

18,769

Great Dunmow TC

5,000

Parish Council Grants

3,500

Saffron Walden TC

12,000

South Cambs DC Grant

5,949

Uttlesford DC Grant

155,515

Project Income
Essex Community Foundation
BEIS via Cita for IT

12,500
7,035

Client Benefit (ECC via UDC, local
trusts etc)

11,000

WECCG/ ECC/ East Herts consortium/
UDC (£5000)

50,000

BEIS via Cita - Remote Access Advice

13,803

Money and Pension Service

10,060

Mental Health Support funding MiWE
from UHWB

4,325

DWP - Universal Credit Support

25,500

Warm Homes Fund

20,500

In addition to these funds - we would usually have small donations and bank interest.
What fundraising activities has your organisation undertaken in the last 3 years and how
much money have you raised? Please do not include grants from Uttlesford District
Council or other funding bodies.
The role of event fundraising and user-based fundraising was discussed at length after the
Trustees and staff agreed that fundraising efforts are best focused to secure grants that both
deliver additional services into the district whilst off-setting overheads. It is reasonable to suggest
that although Citizens Advice is recognized as an important service for many in our community, it
17

Page 52

does not necessarily engage with people emotionally like a hospice service, a cancer support
service or indeed a dog or cat charity. We also have the additional hurdle that the people who
use the service are rarely in a position to support the charity.
We engage with free fundraising tools like the Essex Lottery and Amazon Smile. We also
regularly apply to be considered for local charitable support through Waitrose tokens, Tesco
to support local opportunities to raise awareness of our service to deliver and promote
prevention messages, support the recruitment of volunteers, raise goodwill and identify private
and corporate donation opportunities.
We also support a number of community events including Carnival and Christmas Shopping in
Saffron Walden and Great Dunmow to raise awareness about the service.
What percentage of your users are Uttlesford Residents?
87% - Clients using the service that reside outside the district are either from neighbouring South
Cambridgeshire wards (for which we receive grant funding) or are families with links to the
district (for example they may be asking for advice for a relative that lives in Uttlesford or they
may work within the district).
How many people benefit from your service(s) each year?
Last year 2,545 unique clients came to us for advice, either by telephone, email or face to face.
We support these clients until their issue or problem is resolved, managed or until they have the
confidence to understand a way forward. Clearly many of the issues clients face affect everyone
in a household or family.
Although self-referrals and signposts still generate the majority of work for the charity, last year
we received 267 referrals from other organisations - a 38% increase.
Campaigns and information articles reached many more people through the local press,
community magazines and online, via both our website and social media presence. We currently
have over 1,500 followers on twitter and last year our website received over 14,000 hits, with
5,400 new users.
What effect would a reduction in the amount you have applied for have on your forward
plan/service? Please provide quantifiable information?
We are very aware of the tight financial environment we are working in and thus have only
applied for the same amount of grant funding we were awarded in 2020-21. This means that we
have already made some difficult decisions, such as closing our office in Great Dunmow and
replacing our face to face outreach work in Great Dunmow, Thaxted and Stansted with remote
18

Page 53

live video links from libraries. Although we accept that our service will not be the same for many
clients, we feel it is important to target funding and staff resources to rebuild our core volunteer
adviser numbers at this time. Clearly if more funding is forthcoming or available we would
certainly wish to revisit our decision to reduce face to face outreach.
It should also be recognised that this application assumes that we will be funded by DWP to
continue to offer the help to claim Universal Credit service in 21-22 and assumes that MaPs debt
training funding will be extended from April 21 to Nov 21 and then be extended again - although
we are reasonably confident this is likely we do not have a firm commitment in place at this time.
If the amount requested is not supported and alternative funding can not be secured the Board of
Trustees will review options to assess the impact of a number of different cost cutting strategies.
Scenarios would include;
Cut management time: This would impact on our ability to work jointly with other organizations
in the district and develop new services and funding opportunities and therefore would seriously
jeopardize our project income.
Reduce non-client facing activities: We would cease our involvement with central and local
consultations, campaigns and education. We would stop activities such as our regular press
releases, work on leaflets and support for campaigns including Energy Saving Week, Keeping
Warm, Scam Awareness, School Transport and Benefit Uptake work. As research and campaign
work is a key aim of Citizens Advice, this would jeopardize our ability to pass national
organizational audits.
Roll back plans to co-locate in libraries: We are currently budgeting for a £4,000 contribution
to libraries in Uttlesford for the opportunity to utilize floor space and accommodation to support
live video links. We would, reluctantly, pull back on this idea and look for other, potentially less
practical, but free hosting options elsewhere.
Reduce debt casework hours funded through core: Staff hours would be reduced and more
clients would be referred to national debt services there is a significant risk that vulnerable
clients will not manage with phone/ web-based support and would subsequently turn to the
Council with more serious debt and under greater threat of homelessness.
Stop caseworker support for clients appealing disability benefit decisions: If we were
unable to find replacement funding, we would need to take the difficult decision to stop work on
supporting disability benefit appeals. This would have a demoralising effect on the whole service
and would hugely impact the clients that so regularly have decisions successfully overturned.
Reduce face to face advice sessions in Saffron Walden: Staff hours would be reduced and
we would cut opening hours. Clients would be further screened for vulnerability when offering
support. This would have an immediate impact on our ability to support our community and
would be very unpopular with volunteers. We would expect volunteer numbers to drop
substantially and further erode our ability to deliver advice.

19

Page 54

If you are currently in receipt of a grant from Uttlesford District Council, what effect would
a reduction in funding have on your organisation? Please provide quantifiable
information?
Please see above.

Check List

Most recent Audited financial accounts

Yes

List of extra spending due to Covid-19

Yes

Medium/Long term business plan

Yes

Copy of the organisation constitution

Yes

I confirm that:
to the best of my knowledge the information given above is accurate;
I am authorised to make this application on behalf of the organisation named overleaf;
Neither I nor the organisation is seeking to obtain any personal or financial benefit from
the project/initiative.

Kate Robson 15/1/21

20

Page 55

Agenda Item 9
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Statement of Community Involvement and
Community Engagement Strategy

Tuesday, 9 March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor J Evans, Portfolio Holder for
Planning and the Local Plan

Report
Author:

Sarah Nicholas, New Communities Senior
Planning Officer

Key Decision:
No

snicholas@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. The Statement of Community Involvement and the Community Engagement
Strategy were published for consultation from the 28th October until the 9
December. Appendix 1 set out the comments received, officer comment and
recommended changes. Appendices 2 and 3 are the final Statement of
Community Involvement and Community Engagement Strategy for approval.
2. The proposed changes were considered by Scrutiny (Local Plan) on 16th
February. Considering the comments and recommendations of the committee
further changes have been made.
Recommendations
3. That Cabinet consider the comments and proposed changes to the Statement
of Community Involvement and the Community Engagement Strategy and
approve the documents for publication and use.
Financial Implications
4. The approved budget for the Local Plan in 2020-21 includes sufficient
provision for the work needed through to the end of March. Adequate provision
will need to be made in preparing the budget for 2021-22 in the revised
Medium-Term Financial Strategy.
Background Papers
5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
None
Impact
6.

Page 56

Communication/Consultation

The documents have been subject to a
period of consultation

Community Safety

n/a

Equalities

The documents support methods of
consultation such that all groups can be
involved in consultation processes.

Health and Safety

n/a

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

n/a

Sustainability

n/a

Ward-specific impacts

n/a

Workforce/Workplace

n/a

Situation
7. On 20th October 2020, Cabinet approved the publication for consultation of
the Statement of Community Involvement and the Community Engagement
Strategy.
8. The consultation ran from 28th October to 9 December 2020. 270 emails were
sent to all statutory consultees which comprises specific, general and other
bodies and includes all Town and Parish Council informing them of the
consultation. Ten representations were received. Although this is a low
response it is comparable to previous consultations when there were 13 in
2017 and 6 in 2019.
9. Appendix 1 is the report of consultation. It sets out the comments received
and officer comment and recommendation for each document.
10. The proposed changes to the Statement of Community Involvement improve
the clarity of the document. Following Scrutiny (Local Plan) further changes
were made - making the glossary more prominent; improving the clarity to
paragraphs 1.1, 1.6 and 5.13-5.14 and adding a new paragraph at 6.4 setting
out the Council’s expectations from applicants of major developments on
community engagement.
11. The proposed changes to the Community Engagement Strategy include
improving the clarity, inserting a new paragraph 6.11 on other engagement
taking place during the First Consultation (Issues and Options stage);
reference to Neighbourhood Plan Steering Groups within working with Key
Groups; two new appendices on the governance structure for preparing the
Local Plan and ground rules for meeting with developers.

Page 57

12. Appendix 2 is the Statement of Community Involvement incorporating the
proposed changes.
13. Appendix 3 is the Community Engagement Strategy incorporating the
proposed changes.
Risk Analysis
14.
Risk

Likelihood

If the Council
2
does not have an
up to date SCI
and has not
carried out
consultation in
accordance with
the Regulations
and the
Statement of
Community
Involvement the
Local Plan could
be found to have
failed the legal
compliance test at
examination.

Impact

Mitigating actions

4 – The
Council could
be required to
undertake
additional
periods of
consultation
and resubmit
the Plan

Ensure an up-to-date
SCI is adopted and
implemented,
supported by a
Community
Engagement Strategy.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 58

Uttlesford District Council
Local plan
Report of Consultation on Statement of Community
Engagement and Community Engagement Strategy

Cabinet 9 March 2021

Page 59

Contents
1.

Introduction.................................................................................................................................... 1

2.

Consultation Responses ............................................................................................................. 1

3.

General Comments ...................................................................................................................... 1

4.

Specific comments on Statement of Community Involvement .............................................. 3

5.

Specific Comments on Community Engagement Strategy .................................................. 12

Page 60

1. Introduction
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out the Council’s approach to public
consultation and involvement in the preparation of the Local Plan, other development plan
documents and in the determination of planning applications. In respect of the Local Plan, it
is supported by a Community Engagement Strategy
The Statement of Community Involvement and Community Engagement Strategy were
published for public consultation from the 28th October until 9th December 2020. This report
sets out the representations received, officer comment and recommended changes.

2. Consultation Responses
In total representations were received from ten organisations / individuals:


Natural England



Chelmsford City Council



Hertfordshire County Council (Property Planning Team)



Transport for London



West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group



Felsted Parish Council



Saffron Walden Town Council



Great Chesterford Neighbouring Plan Group



Great Abington Parish Council



Dr Graham Mott

3. General Comments
Transport for London have no comments to make on the documents
The Property Planning Team on behalf of Hertfordshire County Council as a landowner
have no comments to make on this consultation.
Chelmsford City Council note the changes and welcome continued dialogue on strategic
priorities and cross boundary issues as the Uttlesford Local Plan progresses.
West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group note the changes and the commitment to
engage with the CCG.
Natural England are supportive of the principle of meaningful and early engagement of the
general community, community organisations and statutory bodies in local planning matters,
both in terms of shaping policy and participating in the process of determining applications.
They are unable to comment, in detail, on individual Statement of Community Involvement.
Officer comment
1

Page 61

These organisations are thanked for their support.

Felsted Parish Council would like to see a detailed consideration of introducing Community
Infrastructure Levies (CIL) into the planning process.
In response to the Community Engagement Strategy, Felsted Parish Council




Fundamentally support the position of an improved engagement strategy
Consider it important that the District Council is seen to address concerns and
opinions by people raised in response to the consultation
Consider that having separate consultations on the nine themes could lead to
consultation fatigue.

Officer comment
The comment on CIL is not related to the SCI or consultation.
For information, in 2019 the Council had commissioned consultants to undertake the work so
the Council could prepare and consult on a charging schedule for the Community
Infrastructure Levy. However as this work is reliant on knowing the quantum and location of
development to be planned for and the associated infrastructure to support it, the work was
paused on the withdrawal of the Local Plan. The Council will re-examine the
appropriateness of preparing a CIL as the Local Plan progresses and in the light of
legislation.
In relation to the Community Engagement Strategy, the Parish Council’s comments are
noted. The issue of consultation fatigue is appreciated but, as explained in a report to Local
Plan Leadership Group on 28 September, it is hoped that it will be minimised by enabling
people to engage with themes which interest them and for the factsheets to be easily
understood and engaging.
Great Abington Parish Council are concerned about development in the north of Uttlesford
and request that the Council not only engages with South Cambridgeshire DC but also
Cambridgeshire County Council as the transport authority and all those parish councils in
South Cambridgeshire bordering or close to the border with Uttlesford.
Officer comment
Appendix 1 of the SCI and Appendices A and B in the Community Engagement Strategy list
the stakeholders with whom the Council will work with including Cambridgeshire County
Council and Parish and Town Council that adjoin the District.

2

Page 62

4. Specific comments on Statement of Community Involvement
Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

1.2

SWTC

Reference should be made to the key
principles of community engagement:
 Communication
 Diversity and Cohesion
 Social Justice and Equality
 Participation
 Ownership and ability to influence
 Power to act
 Partnership working
 Sharing of resources

These principles underpin
the consultation process
and every proposed action
should take reference
back to these principles

The Council’s principles of engagement are
set out in section 4.
No change

1.3

SWTC

This para presumes that the SCI is written
primarily for the local plan, whilst that may
be true, the SCI is appropriate for use in
all planning applications

Ensure the SCI is not so
prescriptive as to restrict
its use

2.2

SWTC

Include details of NPPF

2.3

SWTC

Add footnote to explain what NPPF is or
refer reader to any glossary
How will the SCI adapt to account for any
potential future changes to the planning
process or legislation?

The Engagement Strategy supports the
SCI as it relates to the Local Plan. The
SCI’s role in relation to development
management is clear.
Amend text to read - An Engagement
Strategy has been prepared setting out in
detail the engagement programme in
relation to the whole Local Plan
preparation.
Already included in Glossary.

Page 63

Paragraph
Reference

Note about future flexibility
of the SCI or that it is
annually reviewed?

3

The Council’s response to the Planning for
the Future White Paper is explained in
paragraphs 2.4 – 2.7.
Propose new paragraph 2.8 - The SCI will
be reviewed and updated as required
following changes to the planning
legislation

Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

2.4

SWTC

UDC’s response to the White Paper has
now been agreed

Reference here to a copy
of UDC’s response to the
White Paper

It is considered important to tell the reader
how the Local Plan is being prepared in the
light of the White Paper.

2.4

Dr Mott

UDC has already made representations
on ‘Planning for the Future’
There is a good case for deleting 2.4 to
2.7 inclusive, on the grounds that these
paragraphs are speculative and
dependent on Government legislation as
yet unknown, and thus have no place in a
statement of current policy. Reliance on
the last sentence of 2.3 should be
sufficient.
States that UDC will continue to improve
engagement with the business community
but how will it do this?

Page 64

Paragraph
Reference

3.1 Table 1
– blue box
re business
sector

SWTC

3.1 Table 1
SWTC
– green box
re statutory
stakeholders

You have included town and parish
councils here as a statutory stakeholder
but contrary advice is given in the
community engagement strategy

3.1 Table 1
4.2

Dr Mott
Dr Mott

4.3

SWTC

Delete the work ‘have’
list Add semi-colons after second and third
items
Poorly written, please rewrite
Also take out “they will feel” as this
suggests the process is just lip service
rather than an anticipated reality

Amend paragraph 2.4 to state that
representations have been made.
Add footnote referencing Local Plan
Leadership Group 26 October 2020 Item 3
when content of representation was
agreed.

Clarify how engagement
with business community
will be improved

Please clarify position of
town and parish councils
and be consistent in this

The Economic Development team and
other teams in the Council support the
business sector in many ways and as
appropriate to the circumstances at the
time. It is not appropriate to specify here.
Statutory stakeholders is an overarching
term for Specific and General Consultees
as listed in Appendix B of the Engagement
Strategy.
amended
amended

Suggested something like
“with reference to the first
objective “putting residents
first”, it is hoped that
through a consultative and
inclusive process (as
identified within the SCI),
4

The wording is taken from the Corporate
Strategy.
Amend to include part which was
inadvertently omitted.
In relation to ‘putting residents first’,
residents will know their views have been
listened to; they will feel they have the

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee

4.4

SWTC

4.4
4.5

Dr Mott
Dr Mott

Consultee comment

Page 65

Reference given to the corporate
consultation strategy and charter –
weblinks to these documents should be
inserted here
4 Insert a comma after Charter
A lot of this is wishy-washy pie-in-the-sky,
and I don’t suppose you’ll do things much
differently from before. In particular, re
bullet point 5:


Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

resents will know their
views have been listened
to, they will have the
opportunity to influence
the decision-making etc
etc.

opportunity to influence the decision
making; they will understand why decisions
have been made even if they disagree with
them. They will report increased levels of
trust and confidence in the way the council
conducts its business and manages its
resources.
The Corporate Consultation Strategy is
already hyperlinked.

Insert weblinks to
documents

Amended
The principles are based on the
Consultation Institute’s best practice.
The Council can only encourage people to
respond to the best of their knowledge

in return residents should disclose
the full range of local opinion.

It is recognised that this is a difficult
principle to measure success against.
However, even if it is difficult to measure it
does not mean that this principle should
not be considered when drafting
documents and planning consultations.
This can be done by trying to make
documents accessible and informative and
consultations sent out by a wide range of
methods in a format that is easy to
understand.
The Council makes people aware of what
planning issues are set by national policy.

How do you propose to achieve this? How
will you know if you’ve achieved it? How
will you receive the opinion of those who
think it is a total waste of time telling the
Council what their opinions are about
anything (a large number, probably a
majority)?

4.5
6th bullet
point

Dr Mott

Re bullet point 6. The Council will . . .
make decisions . . .representative of the
spread of local opinion.
5

Paragraph
Reference

4.5
Bullet points
10 & 11

Consultee

Dr Mott

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

See the key messages in the Community
Engagement Strategy

And if local opinion is near-unanimous in
believing that there should be no more
housing?
bullet points 10 and 11 say the same thing
re discussion or consultation with the local
community. What will you do if the
developer shows no inclination for any
such discussions or consultations?
There’s no bite in these provisions.

Bullet point 10 concerns the Council
offering pre-application advice and bullet
point 11 concerns the applicant
undertaking consultation with the
community.
Remove last sentence from point 10 to
avoid duplication.

Page 66

The Council has no authority to require
pre-application consultation but it can
encourage it as best practice.

4.5
Bullet point
12

Dr Mott

bullet point 12 (and last). How do you
propose to ensure this happens?

5.2

SWTC

5.4

SWTC

How will the Council meet its moral
requirements? Ie , the paragraph
concludes noting that the next section sets
out how UDC will meet the legal
requirements but what about non-legal
requirements?
Query re the validity of an emerging
neighbourhood plan. Certainly, info held
by SWTC suggests an emerging NP is a
material consideration

Clarify re other
requirements

UDC please clarify status
of emerging NP

6

The Council is consulting on a protocol
which will look at s106 process earlier in
the application stage and including Town
and Parish Councils.
This is set out in the Community
Engagement Strategy which supports the
SCI.

Add new text to paragraph 5.9 ‘The weight
of an emerging neighbourhood plans is
dependent upon stage of preparation,
extent of unresolved objections and degree
of consistency with NPPF’.

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

Include a footnote referencing Planning
Practice Guidance note on Neighbourhood
Plans.
5.5

5.5

SWTC

Dr Mott

Does UDC have a process for consulting
on SPDs? If not, should there be one?

Please clarify

Later reading found this in para 5.15.
Suggest reference is given in 5.5 to 5.15
so that readers will know there is a
process
first line. Amend documents to document

Page 67

5.9

Dr Mott

first paragraph. Regularise to commas
after each item, instead of some semicolons
line 4. Insert a comma after Radwinter
Neighbourhood Plan

5.10

Dr Mott

first line. Give the web address for the
adopted SPDs, instead of making a lazy
gesture toward the website.

5.13

SWTC

What is this paragraph trying to say?

Paragraph 5.15 explains that the methods
of engagement also apply to SPDs.
Insert new sentence
Further information on SPDs is given in
paragraph 5.15.
The ‘s’ is shown as struck through.
Underlined and struck through text
amended to show change clearer.
Amended

The word website is a hyperlink

Reword para as it lacks
clarity or definition

Amend paragraph to read
To generate broader and richer
conversations to inform more effective and
legitimate decision making, the Council is
keen to work with others such as Essex
County Council enlist partner agencies
with a view to pooling resources, ideas,
communication channels, contacts and

7

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

making make innovative uses of new digital
engagement and visualisation tools.

5.15

SWTC

This should be rewritten, difficult to read or
understand

Rewrite

Amend text

Page 68

As SPDs do not have development plan
status, they are not subject to the same
process of submission and independent
examination as the local plan or
neighbourhood plans. However,
consultation plays an important role in the
production of SPDs. The methods of
engagement considered for planning
documents as set out in paragraphs 5.215.25 below (page 19) also apply to SPDs.
The consultation period will involve at least
one round of engagement with a minimum
consultation period of four weeks. There
will be a minimum of 4 weeks consultation.
Following consideration of responses and
amendments to the SPD as appropriate,
the SPD would then be adopted by the
Council. In accordance with the Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning)
Regulations (2012) (as amended), prior to
adoption a consultation statement will be
prepared outlining the persons consulted
during SPD preparation, a summary of the
main issues raised during the consultation
and how those comments have been
addressed. As soon as reasonably
practicable following adoption of the SPD,
8

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

the Council will publish the Adoption
Statement setting out the date adopted and
that aggrieved persons have 3 months to
apply to the High Court for judicial review
of the decision to adopt the SPD. An
adoption statement will also be prepared
and made available to view, together with
the SPD as soon as reasonably practicable
following adoption.

5.17 Table 4
page 19

Page 69

Great
the web address listed for the Great and
Chesterford
Little Chesterford Neighbourhood Plan is
Neighbouring out of date.
Plan Group

5.22

Dr Mott

5.27

SWTC

5.33
6.1

Dr Mott
Dr Mott

6.3

SWTC

bullet point, line 1 councils’ should be
Council’s
Anonymous comments will not be
accepted

line 4. fully should be full
first line. Insert the to read: Involving
people in the planning application process
No reference to the role or involvement of
town or parish councils is given. There
should be a specific inclusion here noting
that town and parish councils (and District

Update web address to
https://www.lovegreatchesterford.com/theplan-itself

Amended
Please reconsider this,
there may be valid
reasons why a respondent
wishes to remain
anonymous and a more
sympathetic and
discretionary approach
should be taken

It is important to have a name and contact
details (either email or postal) to keep
people informed of the local plan and
further consultations. It is also important
for the Inspector to see who has made
comments.

Amend document to
include a specific
reference to town/parish
councils and District

Amend text to say ‘including the Town or
Parish Council or Meeting’

9

No change
Amended
Amended

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Councillors) should be included in pre-app
discussions

Councillors. This in line
with the recommendation
made by Ms Sue
Chadwick
Add in the process for
consideration of DoV
applications

SWTC

Should an application for a Deed of
Variation be included here? UDC has
agreed that DoV should follow a formal
planning process

6.5

Dr Mott

last sentence, says: If the planning officer
considers the development is likely to
have a wider impact, neighbouring parish
councils may also be notified.
There is no mechanism for achieving this.
Several applications have been made
which are outside Elsenham parish and
close to the boundary, but Elsenham
Parish Council has not been advised. The
most recent example is UTT/20/2908, 50
dwellings south of Bedwell Road,
Elsenham, which is in Ugley parish, on the
boundary, and not notified to Elsenham
Parish Council.
I almost know this provision by heart. It’s
been in the SCI since 2018. In that time,
S106 agreements have been drawn up for
four major applications in Elsenham
(UTT/19/0462/FUL; UTT/19/0437;
UTT/17/3573; UTT/19/2470). There has
not been the slightest attempt to involve
Elsenham PC in any of them. The PC has
drawn it to UDC's attention at least six
times, probably more. The Leader of the

Page 70

6.4 Table 5

6.7

Dr Mott

Officer comment and recommendation

Include new row in Table 5 stating that
relevant Town and Parish Councils and
Ward Members will be consulted on Deed
of Variation of s106 (excluding de-minimis
variations)
The boundary on the constraints map used
to identify consultees has been extended.
However, it is also advisable that parishes
review weekly list for neighbouring
parishes to see if any are likely to have an
impact.

The Council is consulting on a protocol
which will look at the s106 process earlier
in the application stage and including Town
and Parish Councils

10

Paragraph
Reference

6.11

Consultee

Dr Mott

Consultee comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Council, the Deputy Leader, the Portfolio
Holder for Planning, the senior members
of the Planning Department, the officers
responsible for the applications, have all
been copied in. No action has been
taken. The only answer the PC has been
given is the wholly spurious one that the
applications have gone to appeal - the
point is that the PC should be involved
long before then. What is the point of this
policy when you don’t have the slightest
intention of implementing it?
What is the GDPO, and where can its
relevant provisions be found?

Page 71

6.12

SWTC

Town and Parish Councils should be
involved in the discussions and
negotiations on the Heads of Terms for
the S106 and this should be included here

Appendix 1

Dr Mott

Glossary, p.
35.

Dr Mott

Adjoining district councils. Omit such as
since all the adjoining districts are
specified.
Local Strategic Partnership is tacked on at
the end, instead of being in its correct
alphabetical place.

Add in the consultation
and role of Town/Parish
councils in pre-app
meetings which will lead to
any HoT for draft S106
agreements

Officer comment and recommendation

Amend to read - (as defined by the Town
and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedures) (England) Order
2015)
This is covered in paragraph 6.7

Amended

Re-ordered

11

5. Specific Comments on Community Engagement Strategy

Page 72

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

1

Various

SWTC

Be consistent when using
quoted text

noted

1

Various

SWTC

Perhaps the core
components of the other
documents could be included
in a table format, so that
visually their relationship to
the community engagement
strategy is more obvious and
easier to understand at
this early stage of the
document
Be consistent. The
local plan is not a
proper noun so should
be lower case
throughout.
Amend grammar and
syntax so that text reads
more fluently

Each paragraph refers to a document
which sets the context for the strategy.

Reword to clarify how and
why there are 6 key
messages (why not 5 or 10
for example?). This could be
included as an
appendix

This is the number of key messages
we wanted to ensure that people are
aware of. They are important points
and need to be in the body of the
document.
No Change

Some quoted text from
other documents is shown
in italics and
speech marks but some is not
Already in reading paras 1.1 to
1.5 the reader is potentially
confused. There is lots of
reference to other documents
(SCI, corporate plan, corporate
consultation strategy). This is not
engaging

Variou Various
s

SWTC

Local Plan or local plan?

1

1.1

SWTC

1

2.1

SWTC

Poorly worded - “legitimacy” of
what? Generally, the document is
difficult to read, the text does not
flow but stumbles
“There are 6 key messages…..”
why 6? Where does this phrase
come from? Who determined
there are 6 key
messages?

12

No change.

Amended as appropriate.

To avoid jargon, remove ‘with
improved legitimacy’.

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

1

2.1 (i)

SWTC

Good context to explain how
planning is important and
potentially affects everyone but
this is poorly written. The use of
examples is good

Reword – for example:
For many, planning is not
seen as relevant to them until
a house, a change of use for
a property or an extension is
proposed next door. Planning
does, however, affect
everyone living, working or
visiting the district and the
community. Planning relates
to everyday matters in our
lives such as where we live,
whether we can extend our
property, where children play,
housing affordability, quality
of public open spaces,
housing location in relation to
work places. All of these are
planning matters and it is
important the engagement
explains why the local plan
matters and how it can
impact on everyday lives and
communities. The
engagement needs to be
attractive with clear
messages to encourage all
residents to take part and
help shape the plan.

Wording amended as suggested.

2.1

Dr Mott

The Local Plan will not give the
answer to: Can I extend my
house?; Is the new housing within
my budget?; Can I get a job I can

Page 73

Page
No

13

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

walk or cycle to?
2

2.1 (ii)

SWTC

Page 74

2

2.1 (iii)

SWTC

2

2.1 (v)

SWTC

3

3.2 (B)

SWTC

3.2 c

Dr Mott

Reword

Need further details of the climate
and
ecological emergency
Change “to make it a better plan”
as
this suggests it is rubbish
without the engagement
process

“The council will make a real effort
to
make all of those who have a right
to
participate” ……..
line 3. Amend to read: will use a
variety of engagement methods to
ensure as wide a range of people..

This is confusing and does not The purpose of this paragraph is to
clearly
explain why this is a 4 year process.
explain what the 2 stages are Detail of the consultation stages is
provided later and is also in the SCI.
Amend text
Preparing the local plan involves two
formal stages of consultation, an
independent and a public examination
of the plan and concludes with the
Council adopting the local plan.
Include a link or details here of Add footnote to Council Meeting 30 July
the emergency declaration
2019.
“To make this the best and
representative plan that it
can be”

This suggests there are
some which do not have a
right to participate? Clarify or
reword

The text suggests that testing the
plan through consultation will make it
a better plan. It doesn’t imply it would
be rubbish without consultation, but
that it can be improved through the
engagement process.
No change
Amend text to ‘those that have in
interest in Uttlesford’

Amended

14

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

3

3.2 (c)

SWTC

Include other
means of accessing
information

New text –
Documents will be available digitally and
hardcopy.

What about provision in
another language or braille?

Documents will explain how to access it
in another language or format

Any provision for those without
internet access? This may come
later in the document but worth
including info here

3.2 (d)

SW
TC

“unless there is a specific
reason to make them
exempt”

4

3.2 (g)

SWTC

Needs to further note how the
decision- making process will be
followed

4

3.2 (j)

SWTC

Not just assessing the numbers
but also the demographics of
those reached and evidence of
working with those hard to
reach groups

Page 75

3

Officer comment and recommendation

Might be worth citing some of Add footnote
those
In accordance with Local Government
Transparency Code 2015
confidential documents
to avoid later challenges
and to ensure inclusivity
Annotate here or include as
New text
an appendix, details of the
Appendix E is a summary of the
decision-making process.
functions of the Council, Cabinet,
Local Plan Scrutiny and Local Plan
Use a flow chart as an
Leadership Group.
appendix to show how each
part of the local plan will be
considered, where
responsibility will sit etc and
ideally, with time frames
Reword to show
The Council has found in previous
more inclusive
consultation exercises that the gathering
engagement
of demographic data has a very low
return rate, making the data statistically
unreliable. The reason for the low rate of
return is that the majority of respondents
make their comments in a format (by
email or through the consultation portal)
which does not lend itself to providing
such data. Furthermore many
respondents are planning agents and
15

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

developers representing their company
on behalf of clients.

5

4.5

SWTC

“in light of their inspector’s letter”

4.3

Dr Mott

Say which letter. Give it a date.

Page 76

5

4 generally SWTC

5

5.2

6

5.13

SWTC

SWTC

Might be useful to include
websites for groups referenced,
either as a footnote
or appendix
This has been subsequently
superseded? UDC is to
establish a Community Forum
(which may or not be called a
Town and Parish Council
forum)
Should this also include
consultation with residents in
areas which are prone to flooding

This needs to be put in
context, as a
standalone comment it is
meaningless

Include details so that those
interested in further info can
easily and readily access
info about these
groups/organisations
Further details of specific
engagement with Town and
Parish Councils is awaited
Should advise the
frequency of any such
meeting
Note that those living in a
flood risk area, or who have
experienced flooding, will
be
most familiar with their
16

No change
Amend text to read –
The Council will work with Braintree
District Council, especially as they
consider their way forward in the light of
the deletion of the proposed West of
Braintree Garden Community from the
North Essex Authorities Shared Strategic
Section 1 Plan
These are well known organisations
who can be easily searched for on
the internet.
No change
The Town and Parish Council Forum
and the Community Stakeholder
Forum are different groups.
No change

The Water Cycle Study will be
undertaken in accordance best
practice and in consultation with
Environment Agency and water
companies

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

local, specific needs

Page 77

6
7

5.14
5.18

SWTC
SWTC

3rd sentence too long
Insufficient info or details of how
UDC will engage with businesses
outside of a BID area

Reword / rephrase
Consider how UDC will
engage with rural
businesses or those
outside of any prescribed
BID area. In SW for
example, the BID area
includes the town centre so
what is the provision for
those outside of
this area?

7

5.19

SWTC

Don’t start a sentence with But

7

5.21

SWTC

Should be more transparent
about what those ground rules will
be and how the
minutes will be published.

Reword, as this standalone
sentence
starting with “But” does not
make sense
More clarity needed

Amended to list / bullet points
It is obviously easier to engage with
business who come together as a
group. Engagement with individual
businesses will be by similar means
to individual residents. As an
example, all businesses in the
district have been contacted to
inform them of the first consultation
on the local plan.
No change
Delete But

Include Ground Rules in Appendix and
amend text
Appendix F sets out the ground rules for
such meetings. All such meetings will
be subject to a set of ground rules
setting out It explains the requirement to
publish minutes of the meetings, how
requests made under the Freedom of
Information Act or the Environmental
Information Regulations will be dealt
with, the involvement of other

17

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

stakeholders and updating Councillors
on the meetings through the established
member governance arrangements.
Appendix F
Ground rules for meetings with
developers and other bodies
1. All discussions with developers will
be conducted without prejudice to the
Council’s future decisions on the
local plan;

Page 78

2. UDC will take formal minutes of all
discussions with a view to publication
on submission of a planning
application or inclusion of a site in
local plan proposals. UDC will seek
to agree the minutes with the other
parties to the discussions. The
parties will be invited to identify any
information which they consider
should not be published or otherwise
released by reason of commercial
sensitivity or other reasons.
3. UDC will treat all developers
equitably so that no unfair advantage
is gained, and to ensure that Council
time and resources are dedicated
proportionately.

18

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

4. UDC agrees to consult the other
parties on disclosure if a request is
made in respect of any information
relating to pre regulation 18
negotiations with site promoters and
developers. under the Freedom of
Information Act or the Environmental
Information Regulations;

Page 79

5. The Council will involve other local
authorities, or stakeholders, in the
negotiations as required and all
participants will be required to follow
these ground rules;

6. The Local Plan Project Plan will
include provision for a programme of
negotiations with site promoters with
the outcome of achieving the
objectives of the Local Plan; and
7. Regular updates will be given by the
Assistant Director of Planning to
senior members through the
established member governance
arrangements in accordance with the
programme in the Project Plan.

19

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

7

5.22

SWTC

To clarify attendance at these
meetings

8

6.2

SWTC

Just as the Town and Parish Council
Forum is for Town and Parish Councils,
this meeting is for Planning Agents.
No change
This is covered in paragraph 6.3.

Page 80
9

Will UDC Councillors and
town/parish councils be invited
to these meetings?
If not, why not?
Publicity process could also
include attendance at
community events such as
markets, using existing
communication channels with
groups
and clubs, town and parish
councils

Consider additional ways
of promoting each
engagement stage

The Council welcome groups
forwarding and linking to our
communications.
No change

6.5
6.7

Amend Let’s Talk About to First
Consultation to reflect wording used.

6.8

Update list of Themes

6.9

SWTC

Reference should also be made
here
about consultation with town
and parish councils

Include town and parish
councils

Insert new paragraph 6.11
The Community Stakeholder Forum only
represents one, albeit very important,
part of the conversations that will be
taking place during this period of
consultation. Inputs will also be made
through meetings with the following
groups: 


20

Town and Parish Council Forum;
Call for sites;

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation







Page 81

9

6.9

SWTC

Are the representatives at the
community forum, representative
of the community? If so, how will
they be informed of how the
community wants to be
represented at the community
forum meeting? There needs to
be a stage in front of this which
allows members of the
stakeholder community forum to
seek views and opinions PRIOR
to the actual meeting so that they
are truly representative of the
community; otherwise they may
simply express a personal view
and may not be representative of
their wider
community

Need to consider an
additional step prior to any
stakeholder community
forum which allows
members to consult with the
community so that they may
be fully represented

21

Planning Agents Forum;
Infrastructure Providers;
Duty to Cooperate Partners;
Strategic Infrastructure Delivery
Group and
Other Engagement Forums,
especially cross boundary groups
such as Essex Planning Officers
Association, Strategic Housing
Market Area partners, Transport
East.

Amend text
The Stakeholder Community Forum will
be is the focal starting point for the
engagement. The membership of the
Forum is comprised of representatives of
special interest areas. The Forum will
meet virtually and initially hold a series of
meetings discussing a different theme at
each meeting. The theme will be
introduced by an invited speaker
followed by a group discussion. The
meeting will be live streamed to allow
anyone to watch and have the option to
submit questions and comments during
the meeting. The Forum is not intended
to be representative of the local
community and the purpose of the
Forum is to inform, start a discussion

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

and generate comments. Information on
the Forum is kept up to date on the
website

Page 82

6.14

Dr Mott

line 2. rational should be
rationale
Anonymous comments will
not be considered

11

8.2

SW
TC

11

8.3

SWTC

The name of the Committee is not
given

General
comment

SWTC

There is no mention or reference
given to the weight of a
neighbourhood plan and how
policies in that may affect the
community
engagement
strategy or emerging policies

Amended
There may be very good
reason why a person
does not want their
name published and I
would suggest a more
sympathetic and
discretionary view is
taken regarding anonymous
comments.
For the purposes of
openness and
transparency, it would be
useful to name here those
Committees which will
have responsibility for the
local plan. Once available,
an indicative calendar of
meetings should be
attached to this
strategy
How will the policies and
evidence already found in
neighbourhood plans feed
into the local plan process?

22

It is important to have a name and
contact details (either email or
postal) to keep people informed of
the local plan and further
consultations. It is also important
for the Inspector to see who has
made comments.
No change
Insert new text at end of paragraph
The role of these meetings is set out
in Appendix E.

The weight attached to emerging NPs as
well as Local Plans depends on a
number of factors and is set out in PPG
on Neighbourhood Planning (paragraph
007) and Paragraph 48 of the NPPF.

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Officer comment and recommendation

The Council will need to take into
account made and emerging local plans
when preparing the local plan.

in the local plan.

Include reference to Neighbourhood Plan
Steering Group in paragraph 5.6 on
Working with other Key Groups.
Appendi
xB

Council
Membe
rs

Additional consultees
added to database

to

be

Flitch Way Action Group
Hundred Parishes Society
Neighbourhood Plan Groups

Page 83

BT
UK Power Networks
Saffron Walden Business
Improvement District
Stansted Business Forum
Stansted Airport Chamber of
Commerce
Federation of Small
Business
Dunmow Chamber of Trade
Saffron Walden Town Team
Great Dunmow Town Team
BAA Aerodrome
Safeguarding
National Air Traffic Service
Imperial War Museum
23

Added
Already on database but added to
appendix
Amended appendix to refer to
Neighbourhood Plan Steering
Groups. Updated database with
contacts for active groups
Investigating contact details
Investigating contact details
Already on database but added to
appendix
Already on database but added to
appendix
Already on database but added to
appendix
Removed duplication
Removed as no longer active
Superseded by Saffron Walden BID
Already on database but added to
appendix
Remove as Safeguarding carried out
by MAG
Added
Contact details updated

Page
No

Paragraph
Reference

Consultee Comment

Consultee Recommended
amendment

Duxford
Andrewsfield Aviation Ltd
National Farmers Union
The Georgian Group
Essex Developers Group
Flitch Green Charitable
Trust

Page 84
24

Officer comment and recommendation

Added
Investigating contact details
Added
Individual members invited to register
themselves.
Added

Statement of Community Involvement

March 2021

Page 85

Statement of Community Involvement

Contents
GLOSSARY .............................................................................................................. 4
1

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................ 6
COVID-19 Pandemic response.................................................................................................... 7
The planning system ................................................................................................................... 7

2

WHAT’S IT ALL ABOUT? .................................................................................. 8
What is a statement of community involvement? .................................................................... 8
Why is a statement of community involvement required? ...................................................... 8

3

UTTLESFORD’S COMMUNITY ....................................................................... 10

4

PRINCIPLES OF ENGAGEMENT .................................................................... 11

5

PLAN MAKING ................................................................................................. 13
Planning policy documents ......................................................................................................13
When can you get involved?.....................................................................................................15
How will you be kept informed of the development of planning policy documents? .........21
Key stakeholders and community groups ..............................................................................22
Engagement methods on planning policy documents ..........................................................23
Feeding information into decisions .........................................................................................24

6

PLANNING APPLICATIONS............................................................................ 26
The pre-application stage ..........................................................................................................26
Application stage .......................................................................................................................27
Determining planning applications ..........................................................................................29
Outside the planning application process ..............................................................................31

2/33

March 2021

Page 86

Statement of Community Involvement

7

MONITORING AND REVIEW ........................................................................... 32

8

CONTACT US .................................................................................................. 32

APPENDIX 1: KEY STAKEHOLDERS ................................................................... 33

3/33

March 2021

Page 87

Statement of Community Involvement

Glossary
Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR) A report monitoring the effectiveness of the
development plan. Monitoring information will be published on the website as soon as
practicable
Consultation Bodies The consultation bodies are set out in Schedule 1 to the
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
Development Plan The development plan consists of the Development Plan Documents
produced by Uttlesford District Council, (or jointly with neighbouring authorities), Essex
County Council and any Neighbourhood Plan. Planning applications must be determined
in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.
Development Plan Document (DPD) A document setting out Uttlesford District
Council’s planning policies and proposals. DPDs are subject to community involvement,
consultation and independent examination.
Independent Examination Development Plan Documents are subject to an examination
by a planning inspector to rigorously test legal compliance and overall ‘soundness’.
Local Development Scheme (LDS) The LDS sets out the timetable for preparing the.
Local Plan The plan for the future development of the local area, drawn up by the Local
Planning Authority in consultation with the community.
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) is a collaboration of organisations including the
district council, the county council, the local health service and the emergency services.
LSPs allow public bodies to work together on projects they wouldn't be able to do on their
own.
Material Consideration A material consideration is any planning matter which is relevant
to a particular case.
Minerals and waste development plan documents DPDs prepared by Essex County
Council with regards to mineral extraction and waste management
Neighbourhood Planning A new tier of the planning system, introduced under the
Localism Act 2011, to give communities more control over the future of their area.
Neighbourhood Plan A type of Neighbourhood Planning, which can establish general
planning policies for the development and use of land in a defined neighbourhood area.
A Neighbourhood Plan must be in general conformity with the Local Plan, undergo
Examination and a Referendum. After adoption, they are part of the statutory
development plan and are used (alongside other policy documents) to determine
planning applications.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Sets out the Government’s planning
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It provides guidance for
local planning authorities and decision-takers, both in drawing up plans and making
decisions about planning applications. It must be taken into account in the preparation of
local and neighbourhood plans and is a material consideration in planning decisions.
4/33

March 2021

Page 88

Statement of Community Involvement

Additional detail is given to the NPPF through Planning Practice Guidance which is the
governments on-line, web-based guidance on national planning policies.
Planning Inspectorate (PINS) The Planning Inspectorate holds independent
examinations to determine whether or not DPDs are ‘sound’. The Planning Inspectorate
also handles planning and enforcement appeals.
Prescribed Bodies The bodies subject to the Duty to Cooperate are prescribed in the
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
Section 106 Agreements A binding legal agreement requiring a developer or landowner
to provide or contribute towards facilities, infrastructure or other measures, in order for
planning permission to be granted. Planning obligations are normally secured under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
Sound/soundness This describes where a DPD is considered to ‘show good judgement’
and also to fulfil the expectations of legislation, as well as conforming to national policy.
A sound plan is
o Positively prepared
o Justified
o Effective; and
o Consistent with national policy.
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) The SCI is a document explaining to the
community how and when they can be involved in the preparation of the planning policy
documents and the determination of planning applications, and the steps that will be
taken to encourage this involvement.
Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) An SEA is an iterative assessment of the
environmental effects of policies and proposals contained in Local Plans.
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) SPDs are not subject to an independent
examination and do not have ‘development plan’ status, but are intended to elaborate
upon the policies and proposals in DPDs. They can be used as a ‘material consideration’
in the determination of planning applications.
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) An SA is an assessment of the social, economic and
environmental effects of policies and proposals within Local Development Documents.
Sustainable Development Development that is in accord with economic, social and
environmental objectives. Development that meets today’s needs without compromising
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

5/33

March 2021

Page 89

Statement of Community Involvement

1

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of planning is to help achieve sustainable development, assisting economic,
environmental and social progress for existing and future communities. Planning shapes
the places where people live and work, so it is important that communities can take an
active part in the process. Uttlesford District Council works to improve the quality of lives
of people who live, work, or visit the District. One of the ways we do this is by talking to
and hearing from individuals and organisations in Uttlesford about their concerns, ideas
and ambitions.

1.2

There are a wide range of benefits to community engagement. This Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI) has been prepared to explain how the Council will engage
communities, businesses and organisations in the planning process.

1.3

An Engagement Strategy has been prepared setting out in detail the
engagement programme in relation to the whole Local Plan
preparation. It will explain the methods of engagement, how they
will be tailored to each consultation stage, the needs of the
community and other consultees.

6/33

March 2021

Page 90

Statement of Community Involvement

1.4

COVID-19 Pandemic response
1.5

In July 2020, the Council published an Addendum to the 2019 SCI temporarily
suspending parts of the SCI to take account of Government requirements in response to
the COVID-19 Pandemic. This SCI incorporates these requirements.

The planning system
1.6

The current planning policy system consists of:


National policy in the form of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). At the heart of the National Planning
Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development which
encourages a culture in which development plays a key role in meeting the needs
and aspirations of the area. The NPPF (in line with the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004) still promotes a plan-led system whereby decisions must be
made in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.



Local policy in the form of the Local Plan, and other appropriate documents
(produced by District Councils),



Neighbourhood Plans (produced by Parish Councils and Neighbourhood
Steering Groups) and



7/33

Minerals and Waste Plans (produced by County Councils).

March 2021

Page 91

Statement of Community Involvement

2

What’s it all about?
What is a statement of community involvement?

2.1

The main purpose of a SCI is to set out how the local community, businesses and other
organisations with an interest in development in Uttlesford can engage with the planning
system. It sets out how the Council will involve the community when preparing planning
documents and deciding planning applications. When involving the community in the
planning process, account will also be taken of any corporate guidance and strategies
adopted by the Council.

Why is a statement of community involvement
required?
2.2

Local planning authorities are required to produce a SCI under Section 18 (Part 1) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). The National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) (2019) stated that Plans should:
“be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and
communities, local organisations, business, infrastructure providers and operators and
statutory consultees” (Paragraph 16c)

2.3

The previous SCI was adopted in July 2019 and was updated in July 2020 to include the
changes required during COVID-19 crisis. The Council is preparing a new Local Plan for
the district which will contain the planning policies and proposals that will help shape the
future of the District over the next 15-20 years. This new SCI will help to ensure that the
new Local Plan takes into account recent legislative changes as part of its preparation.
Planning for the Future (MHCLG, 2020)

2.4

In August 2020 the Government published a White Paper ‘Planning for the Future’ for
consultation which would, if enacted into legislation next year as the Government intends,
have a very significant effect on the process, content and timetable for making local plans.
The Council made representations on the consultation White Paper proposals to
government in the interests of the District as a whole1.

1

Content of representation agreed at Local Plan Leadership Group 26 October 2020

8/33

March 2021

Page 92

Statement of Community Involvement

2.5

In the context of the White Paper and need for the Council to carry out its current statutory
duties as efficiently and effectively as possible the detailed work programme will be
drawn up in such a way as to be appropriate under the present or proposed plan making
regimes. The Council will keep abreast of legislative developments and keep residents
and other stakeholders informed of the details and implications of changes as they arise.

2.6

The White Paper particularly advances the case to:
“move the democracy forward in the planning process and give neighbourhoods and
communities an earlier and more meaningful voice in the future of their area as plans
are made, harnessing digital technology to make it much easier to access and
understand information about specific planning proposals. More engagement should
take place at the Local Plan phase” (paragraph 1.12).

2.7

The timetable for the production of the Council’s new Local Plan as set out in the Local
Development Scheme being published concurrently with this SCI would, of course, be
subject to change should the Government’s proposals, set out in the White Paper, be
translated in to law, new national policy and practice guidance next year. The early and
more extensive issues and options stage proposed in the LDS aligns closely with the
proposed plan-making process while being appropriate under existing arrangements.
Accordingly, the Council can make early and effective progress with this initial stage
without wasting resources or time.

2.8

The SCI will be reviewed and updated as required following changes to the planning
legislation.

9/33

March 2021

Page 93

Statement of Community Involvement

3

Uttlesford’s community

3.1

Our ‘community’ includes all the individuals, groups and organisations that live, work or
operate within the District. We recognise that the different groups that make up our
community have different needs and expectations. They also have their own desires,
capabilities and capacity to get involved. This SCI sets out to maximize the opportunities
for everyone in the community to be involved and their voices heard.
Table 1. Uttlesford’s Community

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

STATUTORY STAKEHOLDERS

SERVICE PROVIDERS

The interests of local
communities are represented by
county, district, parish and town
councils, all have the capability to
be involved. Specific interests
can be represented by amenity or
interest groups. The community
is made up of individuals who
have the ability and those who
find it harder to be involved.

There are certain groups that we
are required to involve. These
include Historic England,
Environment Agency, Highways
England, Natural England, Essex
County Council and parish/town
councils.

Service providers include local
health trusts/clinical
commissioning groups, schools,
utility and transport providers,
emergency services, community
development organisations and
others. All of these can be easily
identified and have the capacity
to be involved in the Local Plan
process. However we will seek to
involve them only when it is
relevant for them.

DEVELOPERS AND
LANDOWNERS

OTHER AGENCIES
Other organisations can provide
valuable views regarding specific
development plans. These
organisations are easy to identify
and generally have the capacity
to be involved. Some may need
support in understanding the
Local Plan process and how it
relates to their operations, so
they are able to contribute
effectively.

10/33

March 2021

Developers are already involved
in the planning system and will
seek to be involved. Most can be
easily identified from previous
involvement and have the
capability to be involved.
Landowners will be keen to
understand and consider the
implications of any policies/
decisions in order to protect their
rights to develop or protect their
land and its value. Both groups
will be supported in being more
actively involved in the Local
Plan.

Page 94

BUSINESS SECTOR
Local businesses range in size
from the self-employed and small
businesses to larger
organisations. Their capacity to
be involved also varies. Larger
organisations may have the
capacity to get more actively
involved, whilst smaller
organisations may need support
in understanding the planning
system, how it relates to them
and how they can get involved.
The Council will continue to
improve its engagement with the
business community.

Statement of Community Involvement

4

Principles of engagement

4.1

This section sets out the general principles of community engagement. Undertaking
consultation is a fundamental part of the planning process.

4.2

Uttlesford’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024 sets a vision of ‘Making Uttlesford the best place
to live, work and play’, and four strategic objectives namely:
Putting residents first,
Active place maker for our towns and villages,
Progressive custodian for our rural environment,
Championing our district.

4.3

In relation to ‘putting residents first, residents will know their views have been listened
to; they will feel they have the opportunity to influence the decision making; they will
understand why decisions have been made even if they disagree with them. They will
report increased levels of trust and confidence in the way the Council conducts its
business and manages its resources.

4.4

The Corporate Consultation Strategy contains the Council’s Consultation Charter, the
principles of which can be summarised that all consultations undertaken by the Council
should be:






4.5

Clear – Clear and concise questions are asked, and consultees are clear why we
are consulting and how we are using their feedback.
Effective – The appropriate methods and resources are used in consultation so that
the information produced is both useful and used
Inclusive – The diverse range of groups from all corners of Uttlesford are included
in consultation
Consistent – High standards of consultation are used throughout the council
whenever consultation is carried out
Co-ordinated – Consultation is planned, avoids duplication and maximises, where
possible, opportunities for joint consultation.

Our key principles of engagement are:


Integrity: Engaging the community and stakeholders in the early formative stages
of plan-making, providing sufficient context and information to enable consultees to
give ‘intelligent consideration’ of the consultation along with adequate time for
response, as well as giving and demonstrating conscientious consideration of
responses before decision are made.

11/33

March 2021

Page 95

Statement of Community Involvement



Visibility: making a real effort to make those who have a right to participate aware
of what is going on to facilitate recognition and enhancement of a sense of identity
with the local area, creating a local sense of pride and greater sense of ‘community’.



Accessibility: Using appropriate methods and channels to reach out to and cater
for those whose voices are seldom heard, being inclusive, fair and representative in
the plan-making process.



Transparency: Making all submissions public and disclosing all data unless there
is a specific reason to make them exempt.



Disclosure: The Council will disclose all relevant material and content and in return
residents should disclose the full range of local opinion.



Fairness:



Publication:



Empowering communities through supporting localism, supporting neighbourhood

The Council will make objective assessments and interpretations of
consultation responses and make decisions representative of the spread of local
opinion.
Providing the right for participants to receive feedback on the final
output and on eventual outcome of the process.

plan-making and other community-related planning activities.


Ensuring consultation is worthwhile and achieves value for money by balancing
cost, time constraints and available Council resources.



Encouraging



Encouraging meaningful consultation by the applicant with the community before
applications for major development are submitted.



Continued engagement with community and stakeholders after a decision has been

pre-application advice, by advising applicants to discuss future
development proposals prior to submitting a planning application.

made on a planning application including S106 issues.

12/33

March 2021

Page 96

Statement of Community Involvement

5

Plan making

5.1

The Council is responsible for plan making. Plan making sets out how an area will
develop over time and provides a guide for future development. This part of the SCI sets
out the Council’s standards and approach for consulting Uttlesford’s community in the
preparation of, and revisions to, plans and explains who, how and when the Council will
consult when preparing planning policy documents.

5.2

The legal requirements for consultation and community involvement in plan making are
set by the Government in legislation including The Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act (2004) (as amended), the Neighbourhood Planning Act (2017) and The Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012) (as amended). This
legislation sets out the procedure to be followed by local planning authorities in relation
to the preparation of local plans and supplementary planning documents including who
is to be consulted and which documents must be made available at each stage of the
process. However, the legislative requirements do not specify how communities or
stakeholders should be involved and accordingly the Council has flexibility as to how it
undertakes engagement. Furthermore, the scale and extent of consultation may vary
depending on the subject of the planning document. This section of the SCI sets out how
the Council will meet these legal requirements.

Planning policy documents
5.3

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (as amended) requires local
planning authorities to prepare a statutory development plan that will guide future
development within their area. It identifies the locations for housing, employment and
other development. Development plans are comprised of several documents
Local Plans

5.4

The local plan sets out the vision and core policies for the future development of a district.

5.5

Accompanying the Local Plan will be a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and a Habitats
Regulation Assessment (HRA).

The SA will make sure that social, economic and

environmental considerations are fully considered at every stage of preparation for each
development plan document. The HRA will determine if policies would have any
significant effects on internationally important nature conservation sites and, if so,
suggest ways in which the impacts could be mitigated. When a local plan is published

13/33

March 2021

Page 97

Statement of Community Involvement

to allow representations to be submitted the SA and HRA will be published for comments
at the same time.
Neighbourhood Plans
Neighbourhood plans set out a vision and policies to shape the development and growth

5.6

of a local area for a 10, 15- or 20-year period. Once a neighbourhood plan is made and
brought into force, it becomes part of the development plan.
Supplementary Planning Documents
A local planning authority may also produce supplementary planning documents (SPDs).

5.7

SPDs are prepared to expand policy or provide further detail to the policies in the
development plan. They are not subject to independent examination. SPDs are a
material consideration in planning decisions. Further information on SPDs is given in
paragraph 5.17. SPDs will also need a Sustainability Appraisal and they may require a
Habitats Regulation Assessment.
Uttlesford Development Plan
The development plan for Uttlesford is currently made up of

5.8



the Uttlesford Local Plan (2005),



the Essex Minerals Local Plan (2014),



the Essex and Southend on Sea Waste Local Plan (2017),



the Great Dunmow Neighbourhood Plan (2016),



Thaxted Neighbourhood Plan (2019) and



Felsted Neighbourhood Plan (2020).

5.9

The Council has a number of adopted SPDs which are available on the Council website. .
Emerging Documents

5.10

The Council is presently preparing a new Local Plan covering the period up to 2040. The
Council is required to maintain a timetable for the preparation of the new Local Plan. This
is known as a Local Development Scheme (LDS) and is available on the Council website.

5.11

There are also a number of emerging neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford:
Ashdon Neighbourhood Plan,
Great and Little Chesterford Neighbourhood Plan,
Little Easton Neighbourhood Plan,
Newport and Quendon & Rickling Neighbourhood Plan,

14/33

March 2021

Page 98

Statement of Community Involvement

Radwinter Neighbourhood Plan,
Saffron Walden Neighbourhood Plan,
Stansted Mountfitchet Neighbourhood Plan,
Stebbing Neighbourhood Plan.
5.12

The weight an emerging neighbourhood plan has is dependent upon the stage of
preparation, extent of unresolved objections and the degree of consistency with NPPF.

5.13

The Council will support and encourage communities to develop their own community
led plans - Parish Plans and/or Village/Town Design Statements. The Council will
continue to work with the Rural Community Council of Essex to encourage this type of
participation.
Conservation Area Appraisals and Local Heritage List

5.14

The Council has undertaken a project of, Conservation Area Appraisals, serving Article
4 Directions and compiling a Local Heritage List. Any new appraisals, Directions or Local
Listings will be subject to consultation and consideration will be given to the use of a
range of engagement methods listed in paragraphs 5.25-5.29 below.

When can you get involved?
5.15

To generate broader and richer conversations to inform more effective and legitimate
decision making, the Council is keen to work with others such as Essex County Council
to pool resources, ideas, communication channels, contacts and make innovative uses
of new digital engagement and visualisation tools.

5.16

The key informal and formal opportunities for communities to be involved in the
preparation of planning policy documents are set out in Table 2 and Table 3 below.

15/33

March 2021

Page 99

Statement of Community Involvement

Table 2. The Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents

KEY
Informal engagement

Formal consultation

Referendum

The Local Plan
Preparation stage

What happens

Development of the evidence
base
Examination of issues and
options, needs and aspirations

Background research and evidence
gathering to inform the emerging plan.
Inform stakeholders and the public that
the plan is being produced.
Extensive and inclusive engagement
with residents and other stakeholders.

Preparation of the Local Plan
(Regulation 18)

Formally consults on the preferred
option draft plan published for a sixweek period to allow representations to
be made.

Publication (Regulation 19)

After taking into account the
representations received on the
(Regulation 18) preferred options draft
plan, the plan is formally published for a
six-week period to allow representations
to be made (to be considered during the
Independent Examination).
Any Addendum to the Regulation 19
plan shall be published for a six-week
period to allow representations to be
made.

Submission (Regulation 22)

16/33

March 2021

The local plan document will be
submitted to the Secretary of State for
examination along with other key
supporting documents.

Page 100

Key time to get
involved

Statement of Community Involvement

The Local Plan
Preparation stage

What happens

Examination (Regulation 24)

An examination is held by an
independent Inspector. The Inspector
will assess the soundness of the Local
Plan. Those people who submitted
representations at the (Regulation 19)
stage are entitled to be heard at the
examination.
Any main modifications the Inspector
considers necessary to make the plan
sound would be subject to sustainability
appraisal and consultation.

Publication of Inspector’s
Recommendations (Regulation
25)

The Local Authority publish the
Inspector’s recommendations and give
notice to all persons who requested to
be notified that the recommendations
are available.

Adoption (Regulation 26)

If the Inspector finds the Local Plan
sound, the Council will proceed to adopt
the Local Plan. This may include
modifications recommended by the
Inspector.

17/33

March 2021

Page 101

Key time to get
involved

Statement of Community Involvement

Table 3. Neighbourhood Plans
Neighbourhood Plans
Preparation stage

What happens

Neighbourhood Area
Designation

An application for neighbourhood area
designation will be publicised for six
weeks (unless the area to which the
application relates is the whole of the
area of a parish council and is wholly
within the area of one local planning
authority, in which case the Council
does not have a choice other than to
approve the area).

Preparing a Draft
Neighbourhood Plan

The qualifying body gathers baseline
information, engages and consults
those living and working in the
neighbourhood area, and starts to
prepare the draft neighbourhood plan

Pre-Submission
(Regulation 14 21)

The qualifying body publicises the draft
plan for a minimum of six weeks to
bring it to the attention of people who
live and work or carry on business in
the neighbourhood area.
The qualifying body consults
“Consultation Bodies”, adjoining parish
councils, voluntary bodies, racial, ethnic
or national groups, religious groups,
persons carrying on business in the
area and interests of disabled persons.
A draft report is sent to the local
planning authority (LPA).

Publicising the Submission
Neighbourhood Plan
(Regulation 16 22)

18/33

March 2021

The qualifying body submits the
neighbourhood plan to the local
planning authority (LPA). The LPA
publicises the neighbourhood plan for a
minimum period of six weeks. The LPA
notifies consultation bodies and
everyone who made representation as
referred to in the consultation
statement.

Page 102

Key time to get
involved

Statement of Community Involvement

Neighbourhood Plans
Preparation stage

What happens

Submission of Plan proposals
to Examination
(Regulation 17 24)

The local planning authority submits
plan proposal and representations to
the Examiner. Publicises the name of
the appointed Examiner and submits a
copy of any representations received at
Regulations 14 and 16 consultations.
An examination is held by an
independent examiner. The examiner
will assess if the neighbourhood plan
meets the basic conditions

Publication of Examiner’s
Report and Plan Proposal
Decisions
(Regulation 18)

The local planning authority publicises
the Examiners report on the website as
soon as practicable after it is received.
The Examiner’s report will form a view
on whether the neighbourhood plan
meets the basic conditions. This may
include modifications. If the Council
propose to make a decision which
differs from that recommended by the
examiner, the Council will notify
relevant parties including those who
were previously consulted and invite
representations for a period of six
weeks

Decision on a Plan Proposal
(Regulation 19)

The local planning authority will
publicise on their website their decision
to make the neighbourhood
development plan. The publication
should include the decision and
reasons for making that decision and
details of where the decision can be
inspected. A copy of the decision will
be sent to the Qualifying Body and any
person who asked to be notified.

Publicising of Neighbourhood
Development Plan “Made Plan”
(Regulation 20)

The local planning authority publicises
the decision that a plan has been made,
publishes the Neighbourhood
Development Plan, details where the
plan can be inspected and notify all
persons who asked to be notified.

19/33

March 2021

Page 103

Key time to get
involved

Statement of Community Involvement

Neighbourhood Plans
Preparation stage

What happens

Referendum

The Council is responsible for
organising the Referendum. The
Council must publish an information
statement and notice of the referendum
and declare the results.

Adoption (Regulation 25)

If the majority of those who vote in a
referendum are in favour then the plan
must be made/adopted by the local
planning authority within 8 weeks of the
Referendum

Key time to get
involved

Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
5.17 As SPDs do not have development plan status, they are not subject to the same

process of submission and independent examination as the local plan or
neighbourhood plans. However, consultation plays an important role in the production
of SPDs. The methods of engagement considered for planning documents as set out in
paragraphs 5.25-5.29 below also apply to SPDs. There will be a minimum of 4 weeks
consultation. In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
Regulations (2012) (as amended), a consultation statement will be prepared outlining
the persons consulted during SPD preparation, a summary of the main issues raised
during the consultation and how those comments have been addressed. As soon as
reasonably practicable following adoption of the SPD, the Council will publish the
Adoption Statement setting out the date adopted and that aggrieved persons have 3
months to apply to the High Court for judicial review of the decision to adopt the SPD.

20/33

March 2021

Page 104

Statement of Community Involvement

How will you be kept informed of the development of
planning policy documents?
5.19 Throughout the process of preparing planning policy documents, from the earliest stages

through to adoption, community and stakeholders will be kept informed of progress as
follows:


The Local Development Scheme2



The planning policy page of the Council’s website3



Reports to Cabinet and Council4

A database of all interested parties wishing to receive information on key consultation
stages is maintained by the Council. If you wish to be added please contact the
Planning Policy Team at the Council by email:planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk
Information on GDPR/UDC Privacy Notice can be found at the following website
5.20 Information about neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford is retained on the Council website.

Details of current emerging neighbourhood plans and where more information can be
obtained is set out in Table 4 below.
Table 4. Examples of emerging neighbourhood plans in Uttlesford

Neighbourhood Plan

More information

Ashdon Neighbourhood Plan

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/ashdonnp
https://www.ashdonplan.co.uk

Great and Little Chesterford
Neighbourhood Plan

https://www.lovegreatchesterford.com/the-plan-itself

Little Easton Neighbourhood
Plan
Newport and Quendon &
Rickling Neighbourhood Plan

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/lteastonnp

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/nqrnp
https://www.facebook.com/Newport-QuendonRickling-Neighbourhood-Plan-2001363280090063/

2

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4969/Local-Development-Scheme

3

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningpolicy

4

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5019/Decision-records-and-notices

21/33

March 2021

Page 105

Statement of Community Involvement

Radwinter Neighbourhood
Plan

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/radwinternp

Saffron Walden
Neighbourhood Plan

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4963/SaffronWalden-Neighbourhood-Plan
http://www.waldenplan.org/

Stansted Mountfitchet
Neighbourhood Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stanstednp
https://www.stanstedneighbourhoodplan.com/whatis-the-plan

Stebbing Neighbourhood
Plan

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/stebbingnp
https://www.stebbingneighbourhoodplan.co.uk/

Key stakeholders and community groups
5.21 The Council is required under the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)

(England) Regulations (2012) (as amended) to consult ‘specific consultation bodies’ and
other interest groups which cover the whole range of voluntary, community, special
interest, amenity and business interests, referred to as ‘general consultation bodies’.
5.22 The list in Appendix 1 refers to key types of groups rather than listing every individual

group and organisation. The lists are not exhaustive; the Council maintains a
comprehensive list of consultees which is updated regularly.
5.23 The duty to co-operate was introduced in the Localism Act (2011) and amends the

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). It places a legal duty on local planning
authorities and public bodies to engage constructively, actively and on an on-going basis
to maximise the effectiveness of local plan preparation in the context of strategic cross
boundary matters. This means that the Council must seek to actively engage
neighbouring councils and a range of other agencies when preparing and reviewing its
planning policies, particularly in relation to strategic priorities and cross-boundary issues.
The Council will produce a Duty to Cooperate Statement of Compliance which will be
made available for inspection as part of the Local Plan Examination process.

22/33

March 2021

Page 106

Statement of Community Involvement

Engagement methods on planning policy documents
5.24 The consultation and community involvement methods applied will be proportionate to

the nature of the planning policy document being prepared.
5.25 INFORMATION: The Council will provide information on what the Council is doing, what

stage it is at in the preparation of the documents, where documents can be inspected,
and how people can get involved.


Notices on the council’s website, and advertising through other methods such as
social media, news releases, Council publications or press adverts.

5.26 CONSULTATION: Consultation will take place informally during the research stages of

documents and formally during the publication stages where people can comment on
the Council’s proposed policy direction.


Written / email consultations with ‘specific consultation bodies’ and appropriate
‘general consultation bodies’ and other relevant stakeholders (see appendix 1) and
people who have requested to be kept informed.



Consultation documents will be available to view on the Council’s websites, and at
Council offices. At times of Government restrictions due to Covid-19 resulting in
either the fully or partial closure of principal office, community information centres and
libraries, documents will be available on the website.

5.27 PARTICIPATION: Inviting representations through:



Public consultation events if appropriate to the nature of the consultation either in
person or virtual via appropriate IT platforms.

5.28 Every effort will be made to undertake the consultation outside August and the end of

year holiday period. However, where this is unavoidable, due to the need to make
progress on development plan preparation we will seek to ensure that a reasonable part
of the consultation period extends beyond these holiday periods.
5.29 An Engagement Strategy will be prepared setting out in detail the engagement

programme for the whole Local Plan preparation.

It will explain the methods of

engagement, how they will be tailored to each consultation stage, the needs of the
community and other consultees. It will contain the following:

23/33



The principles of community engagement on the Local Plan



How the Council will engage with partners, town and parish councils, key groups,
infrastructure providers, residents, businesses and landowners and developers.

March 2021

Page 107

Statement of Community Involvement



Outline the specific consultation and engagement methods of how people are to be
involved and how they can respond.



Roles and responsibilities



Explain how feedback will be provided and how comments will be taken into
account.

Feeding information into decisions
5.30 The information and comments the Council obtains through participation and

consultation with the community and stakeholders will be used to inform the Council’s
decisions and shape any documents produced.
5.31 Formal comments will need to be made either through the consultation portal (if the

document is published on the portal), by email or by letter. Respondents are required to
provide their name and contact details, preferably email. They will be added to a
database which will be used to keep people informed of the next stages in the plan
making process. Anonymous comments will not be accepted.
5.32 All comments are registered and can be viewed on the consultation portal Representor’s

name and organisation, if appropriate, are shown against the comment. Contact details
remain confidential.
5.33 The Council will produce a Consultation Statement which will summarise the main issues

raised through consultation on planning policy document consultations and how these
have been addressed.
5.34 It is the responsibility of the planning policy team to prepare planning policy documents,

undertake consultation, consider the comments and recommend actions to the Local
Plan Leadership Group (LPLG) and Cabinet, and then implement Members’ decisions.
The recommendations will clearly explain the reasoning for the recommendation taking
into account the views of stakeholders and consultees.
5.35 Cabinet is responsible for approving plans and related documents for consultation and

submission. Full Council is responsible for approving the submission and adoption of the
Local Plan. Any future changes to the delegation of decisions will be set out in the
Council procedures and standing orders.
5.36 All documents produced will be available at the Council’s principal office and on the

Uttlesford website. Planning documents which are being consulted upon will also be sent
to the Council’s other offices, and local libraries. At times of Government restrictions

24/33

March 2021

Page 108

Statement of Community Involvement

due to Covid-19 resulting in either the full or partial closure of principal office, community
information centres and libraries, documents will be available on the website.

25/33

March 2021

Page 109

Statement of Community Involvement

6

Planning applications
6.1

Involving people in the planning application process allows them to influence
development as it is being designed and helps to resolve issues more meaningfully.

The pre-application stage
6.2

All applicants are encouraged to discuss future development proposals with the Council
prior to submitting a planning application. Our development management team can
advise on the general acceptability of proposals before they are submitted and explain
what information is likely to be required to enable the determination of an application.
Further information is contained in the Council’s Planning Application Guidance Notes
and a Planning Application Checklist. These are available on the Council’s website5.

6.3

Applicants are encouraged to involve the community, including the Town or Parish
Council or Meeting before a formal application has been submitted as this will help to
address issues and may help to avoid unnecessary objections being made at a later
stage. At times of Government restrictions relating to Covid-19, applicants are
encouraged to discuss the approach with the case officer.

6.4

For all major developments but specifically residential developments of 50 or more
dwellings and commercial developments of 2,000 square metres or more of floor space,
applicants are strongly encouraged to agree the scope, nature and location of
community engagement with the local planning authority in advance. The Council will
wish to be assured that the engagement events and consultation will be -

5



advertised widely by a variety of means to reach as many people as possible,



a wide variety of engagement methods are used to enable all sectors of the
community to participate,



that in-person engagement takes place in an easily accessible location to the
communities effected and on days and at times to enable all sectors of the
community to participate,



that communities are given sufficient notice of engagement events, and



that sufficient time is given to respond to consultations.

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/planningapplicationforms

26/33

March 2021

Page 110

Statement of Community Involvement

Applicants are referred to the Council’s Community Engagement Strategy as a source
of engagement principles, methods and stakeholders.

Application stage
6.5

Once the application is submitted, the Council must publicise it, consult the relevant
parish or town council, and allow people the opportunity to contribute their views in
writing or online. The legal requirements for consultation on submitted planning
applications is set by the Government in legislation including The Town and County
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order (2015) as amended.
These are set out in more detail below. All applications are publicised via the Council’s
website under Application and Decision Search 6 . In addition, all applications are
publicised through a neighbour notification letter or if that is not appropriate by a site
notice. At times of Government restrictions due to Covid-19 the agent/applicant may be
asked to display these on site. Table 5 sets out those circumstances when a site notice
or notice in a newspaper is required in addition to the neighbour notification letter.

Table 5. Engagement on planning applications

Type of development

6

Publicity required

Development where the application is
accompanied by an environmental
statement





Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice*
Council website

Departure from the development plan





Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice*
Council website

Development affecting a public right of
way





Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice*
Council website

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4863/Comment-or-search-for-a-planning-application

27/33

March 2021

Page 111

Statement of Community Involvement




Major development



Development affecting a listed building
or its setting





Development affecting a conservation
area or its setting





Other development

– Certificate of Lawfulness of proposed
use or development
– Certificate of Lawfulness of existing
use or development
– Approval of details/Discharge of
Conditions
– Non-material amendments
– Deed of Variation of s106 (excluding
de-minimis variations)

Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice* or neighbour
notification
Council website
Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice* or neighbour
notification
Council website
Notice in the local newspaper
Site notice* or neighbour
notification
Council website



Site notice* or neighbour
notification



No statutory requirement to
consult



Consult relevant Town / Parish
Council and Ward Member
Council website



* At times of Government restrictions

–

due to Covid-19 the agent/applicant
may be asked to display these on site.

Table 7. Consultation periods on planning applications

28/33

Method of publicity

Consultation period

Notice in a local newspaper

21 days from the date of publication

March 2021

Page 112

Statement of Community Involvement

Site notice

21 days from the date that the notice was
first displayed

Neighbour notification letter

21 days from the day on which the
notification letter was delivered

Website

21 days from the date of publication

Revised plans

6.6

Where revised plans are submitted as
part of a planning application these will
be given a reduced consultation time
period, if consultation is required. An
application already on an agenda may be
withdrawn from the agenda to allow
further consultation

In cases where neighbours are to be notified this will be undertaken in writing, either
electronically or by letter. The Council will put up site notices when required and publish
planning applications online. Town and Parish councils (and, where appropriate on
significant applications, known residents’ associations and local community groups) are
notified of individual planning applications in their area. If the planning officer considers
the development is likely to have a wider impact, neighbouring parish councils may also
be notified.

6.7

6.8

Applicants are required to publicise applications where:


An environmental statement is submitted, after the application has been made to
the Council



Certain types of development for agriculture, forestry and for the demolition of
buildings

Prior to submission or during determination of an application, discussions will be held
between planning officers, and applicants and representative of the parish council to
discuss issues such as infrastructure, amenities and matters subject to any S106.

Determining planning applications
6.9

Planning applications are determined against the Development Plan and other material
considerations. Often, planning permission may be granted subject to conditions to
ensure that the development is acceptable, or to prevent certain impacts or activities
arising from the proposal. There are two ways decisions are made on planning

29/33

March 2021

Page 113

Statement of Community Involvement

applications determined by the Council: these are by the Planning Committee and
through delegated decisions.
6.10 Planning Committee: The Planning Committee comprises elected Councillors and is

responsible for making decisions on applications received by the Council, excluding
those which fall within delegated powers unless the application is called in by a councillor
for determination by Planning Committee.
6.11 Committee reports are available five working days before Committee. On applications

reported to Committee the Council operates a policy of public speaking. Details on how
to get involved in meetings can be found on the website under Meetings and the Public
or by contacting a democratic services officer on committee@uttlesford.gov.uk. At times
of Government restrictions due to Covid-19 meetings take place virtually using Zoom
and public speaking is still facilitated with the same rights and rules applying. If a
speaker is unable to use Zoom, it is possible to dial into a virtual meeting by telephone
or a statement can be read out on their behalf.
6.12 Delegated decisions: The Council receives a large volume of applications each year,

and it is impractical for all applications to be determined by the Planning Committee.
Planning legislation permits the Council to delegate the determination of certain planning
applications to officers rather than the Planning Committee. The scheme of delegation
is

set

out

in

the

Council’s

Constitution

available

on

the

website

site

(https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5028/Constitution), Part3 – Page 31, whereby
officers are not empowered to deal with:
Approval of Major Applications (as defined by the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedures) (England) Order 2015) in Great Dunmow,
Saffron Walden and Stansted and approval of applications of more than 5 dwellings
elsewhere.
6.13 Committee and delegated reports set out the relevant local and national polices;

town/parish council comments, comments of consultees, comments of representations;
and an appraisal of the issues to be considered in determining the application. If an
application is recommended for approval the report will set out any conditions and Heads
of Terms for the S106 obligation.
6.14 A decision notice will be sent to the applicant, explaining the reasons why a planning

application has or has not been granted planning permission. Notification of the decision
will also be sent to the Parish Council and to those members of the public who have
made representations. Planning decisions are published on the Council’s website under
30/33

March 2021

Page 114

Statement of Community Involvement

the relevant planning application number. The accompanying officer reports, which set
out the planning considerations and make a recommendation of approval or refusal, may
also be obtained online.
6.15 Appeals: If an application is refused or not determined within statutory timeframes, the

applicant may exercise their right to appeal. When the Council is notified of an appeal
by the Planning Inspectorate, the Council will notify interested parties of the appeal and
provide a copy of comments made on the application to the Planning Inspectorate.
Interested parties will be advised on how they can participate in the appeal process,
including venue and time of any informal hearing or public inquiry. At times of
Government restrictions due to Covid-19 hearings and inquiries will take place virtually
and participants will be informed on how they can participate.

Outside the planning application process
6.16 Prior approvals: The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)

(England) Order (2015) (GPDO) allows for specific changes of use subject to a prior
approval process. The Council will consult adjoining neighbours as required by
regulations for all prior approvals. Up-to-date guidance on prior approvals, including
neighbour notifications can be found on the planning portal website.
6.17 Permissions in principle: The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register)

Regulations (2017) and the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order
(2017) require local planning authorities to prepare and maintain registers of brownfield
land. The Order provides that sites entered on Part 2 of the new brownfield registers will
be granted permission in principle. Permission in principle will settle the fundamental
principles of development (use, location, amount of development) for the brownfield site
giving developers/applicants more certainty. A developer cannot proceed with any
development, however, until they have also obtained technical details consent. The
technical details consent will assess the detailed design, ensure appropriate mitigation
of impacts and that any contributions to essential infrastructure are secured. Both the
permission in principle and the technical details consent stages must be determined in
accordance with the local development plan, the National Planning Policy Framework
and other material considerations. The Council will meet the statutory requirements for
consultation including contacting parish and town councils under the Neighbourhood
Planning Act (2017) in relation to permissions in principle.

31/33

March 2021

Page 115

Statement of Community Involvement

7

Monitoring and Review
7.1

This SCI will be subject to review as the community involvement techniques are
monitored and reviewed, and the findings are used to inform community involvement
practices and procedures in the preparation of future stages of the Local Plan and other
planning policy documents and the consideration of significant planning applications.

8

Contact us
8.1

For more information on this Statement of Community Involvement please contact us at:
Local Plan and New Communities Team
Uttlesford District Council
London Road
Saffron Walden
Essex CB11 4ER
Tel: 01799 510541
Email: planningpolicy@uttlesford.gov.uk

32/33

March 2021

Page 116

Statement of Community Involvement

Appendix 1: Key Stakeholders

33/33



Environment Agency



Historic England



Natural England



Network Rail



Electronic Communications Operators



National Grid



UK Power Networks



Water and wastewater undertakers



Homes England



Clinical Commissioning Groups



Highways England



Essex County Council



East of England Ambulance Service



Essex and Kent Police



Essex County Fire & Rescue Service



Parish and town councils, including those within the District and those that adjoin the
District



Adjoining district councils: Braintree District, Chelmsford City, East Hertfordshire
District, North Hertfordshire District, Epping Forest District and South
Cambridgeshire District councils



Adjoining county councils – Cambridgeshire County Council and Hertfordshire
County Council



Greater London Authority

March 2021

Page 117

Uttlesford District Council
Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021

Page 118

Contents

1. Context for Community Engagement

1

2. Six Key Messages

1

3. The Principles of Community Engagement on the local plan

3

4. Duty to Cooperate and joint working arrangements

4

5. How we will engage with particular groups

5

6. Outline Engagement Strategy

8

7. Roles and responsibilities

10

8. How responses will be dealt with

11

9. How to contact us

11

Appendix A: Local Planning Authorities, County Councils and other
Prescribed Bodies

13

Appendix B: Specific, General and Other Consultees

14

Appendix C: Local plan stages and when to get involved

16

Appendix D: Example of Virtual Exhibition

17

Appendix E: Role of Council, Committees and Working Groups

18

Appendix F: Ground Rules for Meeting with Developers and Other Bodies

19

Page 119

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
1.

Context for Community Engagement

1.1. When preparing a local plan, the aim of good engagement is to have better decision
making, where the community is fully involved and development is aligned to the needs
of today’s and future communities. The Council recognises these aims as the means
to help it understand people’s views and develop a locally relevant and sound local
plan.
1.2. The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) outlines the standard required
consultation and identifies the range of engagement methods available to help prepare
the Plan. This strategy builds on the SCI to set out in more detail the methods of
engagement and how they can be tailored to each consultation stage, the needs of the
community and other consultees.
1.3. The importance of community engagement is stated at national level with Paragraph 61
of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) on Plan-making requiring ‘effective
engagement and consultation with local communities, businesses and other interested
parties’.
1.4. At the local level the Council’s Corporate Plan emphasises ‘putting residents first’, with
the result being that ‘residents will know their views have been listened to; they will feel
they have the opportunity to influence the decision making; they will understand why
decisions have been made even if they disagree with them. They will report increased
levels of trust and confidence in the way the Council conducts its business and
manages its resources’.
1.5. The Corporate Consultation Strategy contains the Council’s Consultation Charter the
principles of which can be summarised that all consultations undertaken by the Council
should be:
 Clear – Clear and concise questions are asked and consultees are clear why we
are consulting and how we are using their feedback.
 Effective – The appropriate methods and resources are used in consultation so that
the information produced is both useful and used
 Inclusive – The diverse range of groups from all corners of Uttlesford are included
in consultation
 Consistent – High standards of consultation are used throughout the Council
whenever consultation is carried out
 Co-ordinated – Consultation is planned, avoids duplication and maximises, where
possible, opportunities for joint consultation.

2.

Six Key Messages

2.1. There are six key messages to be borne in mind when considering engagement on the
local plan.
i.

The local plan is an important document which many people might not know very
much about or even have heard of.
For many, planning is not seen as relevant to them until a house or a change of use
or an extension is proposed next door. Planning does, however, affect everyone
living, working or visiting the district and the community. Planning relates to everyday
matters in our lives such as where we live, whether we can extend our property,
where children play, housing affordability, quality of public open spaces, housing
1

Page 120

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
location in relation to workplaces. It is important that the engagement explains why
the local plan is important. It needs to be attractive with clear messages to
encourage as many people and groups as possible to take part and shape the plan.
ii.

This is the start of a 4-year process.
Preparing the local plan involves two formal stages of consultation, a public
examination of the plan and concludes with the Council adopting the local plan. It is
important that the Council clearly explains that preparing a local plan is a lengthy
process. Each engagement stage needs to explain where in the process it is, what
has happened, how comments have been taken into account and what will happen
next.

iii.

Uttlesford has declared a Climate and Ecological emergency
Like many of its neighbouring councils, Uttlesford has declared a Climate and
Ecological Emergency1. The purpose being to act now to prevent a climate and
ecological catastrophe that will greatly impact future generations. The Council is
committed to achieving net-zero carbon status by 2030 and protecting and enhancing
biodiversity by working collaboratively across the Council and the community and
producing an action plan which will have been significantly delivered by April 2023. It
is important that the engagement asks for views on how the local plan can respond to
this declaration and put the environment at its centre.

iv.

Uttlesford is an area where people want to live.
The engagement needs to explain that the Council will have to use a national
standard to identify the number of houses needed to address the growth in
households and historic undersupply. We need to make sure that the plan allows
existing residents to remain living and working in the area as their family
circumstances change and that new residents are properly planned for. The
engagement needs to ask for views on how the local plan can deliver the right types
of homes, jobs and environment for future generations.

v.

There will not be complete consensus on the local plan across the community.
Whilst recognising this, the Council will use the engagement process to test each
stage of the plan with residents, businesses and organisations to make it a better
plan. The engagement will allow people to see and hopefully understand the views
of others and explore the implications of their own views.

vi.

A huge amount of data and evidence is an important part of the local plan.
The strategy and policies of the local plan will be led by the evidence. Some of the
evidence produced for the recently withdrawn local plan can be rolled forward, other
topics will need new evidence. It is not considered best practice to consult on the
technical studies as they are factual assessments. The Council will engage with the
relevant infrastructure providers and use the Local Plan Leadership Group to
scrutinise the technical work. By its very nature the evidence can be lengthy and
technical. It is important that the engagement explains the evidence and the
implications clearly and succinctly.

1

Meeting of the Council 30 July 2019

2

Page 121

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021

3.

The Principles of Community Engagement on the Local Plan

3.1. This strategy sets a number of principles to guide the community engagement
throughout the local plan process. These principles are based on the Consultation
Institute’s best practice.
3.2. Principles
a. All engagement will be conducted with integrity
The Council will be honest in its engagement, engaging in the early stages of plan
making and will have a genuine willingness to listen and be influenced.
b. All engagement will be visible
The Council will make a real effort to make all of those who have an interest in
Uttlesford aware of what is going on to facilitate recognising and enhancing a sense
of identity with the local area, creating a local sense of pride and greater sense of
community.
c. All engagement will be accessible and use methods to reach as many local people
and businesses as possible
The Council will reach out to those whose voices are seldom heard, being inclusive,
fair and representative in the plan making process. The Council will use a variety of
engagement method to ensure as wide a range of people and groups are reached
as possible. The website will be easily navigated. Documents, available digitally
and hardcopy, will be written in plain English avoiding jargon and explaining
technical terms. Documents will be prepared in a format which can be easily read
digitally. Documents will explain how to access it in another language or format.
d. All engagement will be transparent
The Council will make clear the purpose of the engagement, the timescale of the
engagement, its legal status, how to make comments and how they will be dealt
with and what happens next. Documents will be disclosed by the Council and
made public unless there is a specific reason to make them exempt2. Residents
and other stakeholders should disclose the full range of local opinion.
e. Engagement will use methods which allows parties to engage in the process at a
level commensurate with their interest.
The Council will take great care not to confuse stakeholders with messages which
assume familiarity with national policy requirements and the local plan process. At
the same time it is important that those who want to, are able to follow and take part
in the process in detail.
f.

2

Engagement will be fair

In accordance with Local Government Transparency Code 2015

3

Page 122

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
The Council will consider responses to the engagement fairly and objectively and
decisions will be taken with an understanding of the range of local opinion received.
g. The Council will publish meaningful feedback on comments made in the
engagement process.
Following each engagement stage the Council will prepare a “You Said, We Did”
type report summarising the issues raised and explaining the Council’s direction
following the engagement and why changes have or have not been made. Officers
will make recommendations which will be considered by Councillors at the relevant
Committee and Council meetings. Councillors will make the final decisions.
Appendix E is a summary of the functions of the Council, Cabinet, Local Plan
Scrutiny and Local Plan Leadership Group.
h. At each engagement stage the Council will make clear what can and cannot be
influenced.
The local plan needs to comply with national policy and guidance and therefore
there will be certain aspects of the local plan where any possible changes must be
made with these policy constraints.
i.

All engagement will use a consistent branding ‘Uttlesford Local Plan: Towards Net
Zero Carbon’
The branding will help deliver the message that the Council is putting its declaration
of Climate and Ecological Emergency into action and is putting the Environment at
the heart of the local plan.

j.

The success of the engagement will be measured
The Council will identify ways to measure the success of the engagement strategy.
This cannot be measured by the level of support expressed for the final Plan as it is
never possible to put forward a plan that has full consensus but by assessing the
number of individuals and groups who engaged and responded.

4.

Duty to Cooperate and joint working arrangements

4.1. The Council is under a duty to cooperate with other local planning authorities and
county councils and with other prescribed bodies, on strategic matters that cross
administrative boundaries3.
4.2. The Council will work with Essex County Council, drawing on its strategic knowledge of
the County and its expertise in relation to its many functions and statutory
responsibilities4.

3

See Appendix A
Education, Transport and Highways, Sustainable Drainage and Local Lead Flood Authority, Minerals and
Waste, Public Health, Adult Social Care, Libraries, Recycling, Heritage.
4

4

Page 123

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
4.3. The Council will work with the other authorities in the Housing Market Area and the
Functional Economic Market Area (Epping Forest DC, Harlow Council and East Herts
DC and Essex County Council) through the Cooperation for Sustainable Development
group.
4.4. The Council will build on existing relationships with South Cambridgeshire District
Council, the Greater Cambridge Partnership and the Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Combined Authority.
4.5. The Council will work with Braintree District Council, especially as they consider their
way forward in the light of the deletion of the proposed West of Braintree Garden
Community from the North Essex Authorities Shared Strategic Section 1 Plan.
4.6. The Council will work with organisations working at a regional scale, namely M11
Innovation Corridor, Oxford Cambridge Arc Spatial Strategy, South West Herts
Strategic Plan, Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Planning Partnership, and North Essex
Combined Authorities.
4.7. The Council will work with Historic England and Natural England to agree best practice,
especially in identifying and assessing areas of search and potential sites.
4.8. Uttlesford lies within the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and the Council
will work with the partnership so that Uttlesford’s development strategy is aligned with
their Local Industrial Strategy and that the LEP can assist in employment growth and
the delivery of infrastructure proposed in the local plan.
4.9. Uttlesford will work with Highways England and the highways authorities in Essex and
adjoining counties to ensure that the development strategy is deliverable in transport
terms.
4.10. The Council will record all Duty to Cooperate meetings and make them available on the
Council’s website and as a single report demonstrating effective and on-going joint
working to submit to the Planning Inspector.

5.

How we will engage with particular groups

5.1. The following identifies some key groups of people and organisations and outlines how
we will engage with them. The Council is legally required to consult with a range of
bodies which in relation to Uttlesford are listed in Appendix B.
Town and Parish Councils and Parish Meetings
5.2. The Council will use the existing Town and Parish Council Forum for direct liaison
between officers and Parish Councillors and provide an opportunity for structured
discussion around a range of issues on the local plan and neighbourhood planning.
5.3. District and County Councillors have the opportunity to engage with Town and Parish
Councils when attending town and parish council meetings.
Local Plan Community Stakeholder Forum
5.4. This is an informal forum chaired by an independent person appointed by UDC
comprising about 15-20 people representing existing Forums and interest groups.

5

Page 124

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
5.5. The purpose of the forum is to act as a consultative group to support the work on the
local plan, and formal and informal planning guidance in accordance with the Uttlesford
Statement of Community Involvement and this Engagement Strategy, and to provide
advice in full compliance with the objectives and policies set out in the new emerging
local plan.
Working with other Key Groups
5.6. The Council will use groups such as the Energy and Climate Change working group,
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Groups, Youth Council and the working groups forming
Uttlesford’s Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) known as Uttlesford Futures for
structured discussion and testing of emerging strategies and policies.
Infrastructure Providers
5.7. One of the main challenges around engagement with infrastructure providers is that as
specialists in different fields they all use different terminology and have different
concepts and priorities in their daily workload. It is important to translate the key
evidence into plain English which is capable of being drawn into the planning process.
5.8. In the case of the NHS, we will engage with NHS England and the Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs).
5.9. The Council will work with Essex County Council in relation to the many aspects of
infrastructure which it provides.
5.10. The Council will work with the Minerals and Waste section of Essex County Council in
developing appropriate minerals and waste policies in the local plan.
5.11. School planning has become more complex with the proliferation of Free Schools and
Academies outside Local Authority control. Essex County Council is responsible for
ensuring that development provides adequate education provision. On occasions it
may be necessary to communicate directly with individual schools, through their Heads
or Chairs of Governors to discuss any specific needs. The team’s Community
Infrastructure Planner employed by the County with specific responsibilities for
Uttlesford will support communication between County departments and the District to
ensure that the requirements of the local plan can be communicated.
5.12. Essex County Council is the Highways and Transportation Authority5 and Highways
England is responsible for the motorway network and A120. The team’s Principal
Transportation and Infrastructure Planner at the County with specific responsibilities for
Uttlesford will support communication between the agencies and to ensure that the
requirements of the local plan can be communicated.
5.13. The Council will update its Water Cycle Study6 which will involve engaging with the
Environment Agency and the water utility companies.
5.14. The delivery of infrastructure will be overseen by the Strategic Infrastructure Delivery
Group. This is a Member reference group for Cabinet which will: -

5

Note that Manchester Airports Group is the highway authority of the airport road network and a section of
Bury Lodge Lane.
6
The study considers whether the development proposed can be accommodated by the existing or new water
and wastewater infrastructure, without causing a detriment to the wider receiving water environment and any
necessary mitigation required to achieve this.

6

Page 125

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
 oversee and coordinate bids for capacity and infrastructure funding,
 actively investigate delivery models for strategic growth including long term
stewardship,
 promote cross boundary collaboration on all policies related to growth, and
 co-ordinate the achievement of best practice in the delivery and implementation of
the strategic elements of the local plan proposals including engagement with
external partners where this is necessary.

Residents
5.15. The Council will use various means, such as the website, social media, press releases,
leaflets and posters to contact residents and make it easy for them to find out about the
local plan process, what stage it is at, how they can get involved and what is happening
next.
5.16. The Council has in the order of 6000 people registered on the consultation database
who have engaged in the local plan process previously or have expressed an interest
to be kept informed. There are also about 7000 subscriptions to our e-newsletter via
our GovDelivery system, as well as connecting with people via the Council’s Facebook,
Twitter and Instagram accounts. The Council will use these systems to keep people
informed of engagement events.
5.17. District and County Members also have the opportunity to raise awareness of
engagement and consultations events when they meet their constituents at events,
through writing articles in parish/village magazines, parish websites etc.
Businesses
5.18. There are several organisations representing businesses which the Council will engage
with. At the local level the Council will work with Town Teams of Saffron Walden and
Great Dunmow and Chambers of Trade and Commerce. It can reach companies
through the Uttlesford for Business website. At a County level there is the Essex
Chambers of Commerce and at the regional level there are the Local Enterprise
Partnerships.
Internal
5.19. Preparation of the local plan will involve cross directorate working within the Council.
Traditionally the Council works with the housing department on issues such as the
provision of affordable housing, with Environmental Health on pollution and air quality
matters, waste collection. There are also the departments with responsibilities for
parking, health and wellbeing, community safety, voluntary sector and engagement.
Landowners and developers (site promoters)
5.20. Deliverability of the local plan is an important consideration in preparing an effective
plan and it is important for Local Planning Authorities to involve landowners and
developers (‘site promoters’).
5.21. For large, complex sites it may be necessary for the Council to seek further information
beyond that commonly sought through the Call for Sites. This may necessitate direct
face-to-face meetings and requests for additional information. Appendix F sets out the
7

Page 126

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
ground rules for such meetings. It explains the requirement to publish minutes of the
meetings, how requests made under the Freedom of Information Act or the
Environmental Information Regulations will be dealt with, the involvement of other
stakeholders and updating Councillors on the meetings through the established
member governance arrangements.
5.22. The Council also holds an Agents’ Forum meeting which is an opportunity for planning
agents representing site promoters to discuss issues with Council Officers.

6.

Outline of Engagement Strategy

6.1. Appendix C is a simple diagram of the stages in preparing the local plan and when
residents and organisations can get involved.
Publicity for each stage
6.2. Each engagement stage will be publicised by a variety of means such as









Consultation portal (automated email or letter to those without email)
Website
Use of Council’s social media platforms
o Facebook
o YouTube
o Twitter
o Instagram
E-newsletter
Local newspapers (press release / advert)
Posters/Leaflets
Piggybacking on other UDC events

6.3. After each stage of this engagement strategy, it should be reviewed to learn from the
experience of the previous engagement and modify forthcoming engagements to
ensure that the key messages are still being made and the principles are being met.

Inception Period
6.4. This is not an active engagement stage but a period of time for the Council to ensure
the right material and resources are in place for the Issues and Options stage.
6.5. The Inception period will concentrate on






Setting up the communications and starting to put this strategy into place
Ensuring appropriate resource and structures are in place
Working internally through member workshops to ensure a consistent level of
knowledge, understanding and approach to preparing the local plan across
Council officers and members
Ensuring the material for the first consultation is accessible and engaging.

6.6. The Inception Period will be overseen by the Corporate Overview Board and the Local
Plan Leadership Group. Workshops will be held with Members.
8

Page 127

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
First Consultation
6.7. In preparation to the formal consultation on a draft Local Plan (regulation 18) the
Council will undertake a programme of interrelated discussions on themes that matter
to residents and to the future wellbeing of the District. These themes and questions will
be developed with key partners such as Essex County Council. The purpose of this
stage is to have a period of continual and evolving engagement, educating, listening
and responding, to allow the Council to understand people’s views on these themes in
order to prepare the local plan.

6.8. Nine themes will be talked about










Where you live
Character and heritage
Climate change
Transport
Leisure, Culture and Health Lifestyles
Biodiversity
Local Economy
Homes
Creating new places and communities

6.9. The Stakeholder Community Forum is the starting point for the engagement. The
membership of the Forum is comprised of representatives of special interest areas.
The Forum will meet virtually and initially hold a series of meetings discussing a
different theme at each meeting. The theme will be introduced by an invited speaker
followed by a group discussion. The meeting will be live streamed to allow anyone to
watch and have the option to submit questions and comments during the meeting. The
Forum is not intended to be representative of the local community and the purpose of
the Forum is to inform, start a discussion and generate comments. Information on the
Forum is kept up to date on the website
6.10. Following each meeting there will be a four week consultation on that theme. People
will be asked to respond to a series of questions on that theme guided by a fact sheet,
a recording of the speaker’s presentation, and a recording of the meeting available
online. Hard copies of the factsheet and questions will also be made available.
Comments received during that 4 week period will be presented back to the Forum and
to Local Plan Leadership Group. Any comments received after the four week period
will be collated into the final report of consultation to be produced after every theme has
been discussed.
6.11. The Community Stakeholder Forum only represents one, albeit very important, part of
the conversations that will be taking place during this period of consultation. Inputs will
also be made through meetings with the following groups: 






Town and Parish Council Forum,
Call for sites,
Planning Agents Forum,
Infrastructure Providers,
Duty to Cooperate Partners,
Strategic Infrastructure Delivery Group, and
9

Page 128

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
 Other Engagement Forums, especially cross boundary groups such as Essex
Planning Officers Association, Strategic Housing Market Area partners, Transport
East.
6.12. Following this engagement the Council will produce a report setting out the process
and activities undertaken, the views expressed, the Council’s conclusions on the issues
in the light of these views and how they will be reflected in the Draft Local Plan
(Regulation 18).

Draft Local Plan (Regulation 18)
6.13. The purpose of this stage is to test the initial draft strategies and policies.
6.14. The draft Local Plan will have assimilated the comments made during the Let’s Talk
About discussions, the evidence base, input from infrastructure providers and cross
boundary strategic issues.
6.15. Engagement will need to communicate the Plan’s vision, the big picture as well as how
it affects daily lives, and the rationale for the decisions made.
Methods of Engagement







Publication on the consultation portal
Exhibitions / Virtual Exhibitions / pop-up exhibitions
Attractive and engaging Website storyboard.
Workshops / Zoom meetings with key groups
Topic based focus groups comprising representatives from different groups
Area focused engagement activities

6.16. Following the consultation, a report summarising and commenting on the comments
made and explaining why changes to the plan have or have not been recommended to
Council for approval.
Publication
6.17. The purpose of this stage is to publish the Plan which the Council wishes to submit to
the Secretary of State for examination and enable people to make comments for the
Inspector to consider.
6.18. The Pre-submission Local Plan will have considered the comments made on the Draft
Local Plan and made appropriate amendments.
Method of engagement


Publication on the Consultation portal.

6.19. Following the period for comment a report summarising the representations and
whether modifications to the plan would be supported by the Council will be prepared
and sent to the Inspector. A copy of all representations received during this stage is
also sent to the Inspector.

7.

Roles and responsibilities
Role of District and County Councillors
10

Page 129

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
7.1. At times of consultation the role of all Councillors becomes particularly critical because
of their links with Town and Parish Councils, with local residents and businesses. It is
hoped that Members will proactively identify opportunities for local awareness raising at
consultation times. Local plan-making must by its nature address challenging and
contentious issues. It is hoped that District and County Councillors will ensure that any
public communications reflect awareness of the national policy, evidence and process
constraints which provide the framework for plan-making. This should apply even in
cases where Members personally disagree with the decisions taken.
Officers
7.2. Officers will represent the Council with honesty and integrity. They will advise and
answer questions from Councillors, members of the public, groups and organisations
with impartial professional judgement to the best of their skill and understanding. They
will listen to and report on the comments of others with respect and without
discrimination or prejudice. Throughout the process officers will support members with
workshops.
Town and Parish Councils and Meetings
7.3. Town and Parish Council know their community and those who may have difficulty
engaging in the process. It is hoped that they will assist the District Council by
disseminating and gathering information and if necessary acting as an advocate for
those unable to participate directly.
Individuals and organisations
7.4. Members of the public are asked to treat councillors and officers with courtesy and
respect. They are asked to listen to the information they are being given and to
understand that the local plan is being prepared in the context of National policy over
which the Council has no influence.

8.

How responses will be dealt with

8.1. In the interests of transparency all comments and documents received during formal
consultations will be published to the relevant section of the consultation documents on
the Council’s online consultation portal. The name of the person or organisation making
the comment will be made public. Where comments are particularly long, this will
involve a summary of the comments made and a copy of the full representation will be
attached. The Council encourages consultees to register on the Consultation portal
and submit comments online themselves. Comments submitted by email will receive an
automated acknowledgement. Submissions made by post will not receive an
acknowledgement. The process of administrating the comments and entering them
onto the portal is very resource hungry and it can be a number of weeks after the close
of consultation that all the comments are available to view.
8.2. The Council is committed to transparency in the plan-making process and therefore
anonymous comments will not be considered. Personal or defamatory comments about
individuals or groups of people will not be published.
8.3. Officers will prepare a report summarising the representations received on each section
or policy in the local plan, commenting on those issues and explaining any
recommended changes or why no change is recommended. The reports and
11

Page 130

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
recommendations will be considered by Councillors at the relevant Committee and
Council meetings who will make the final decision. The role of these meeting is set out
in Appendix E.
8.4. Weight is not given to the source of the comments made, except in the case of bodies
which have statutory weight, including duty to co-operate bodies and organisations
such as the Environment Agency, Natural England, Historic England and Highways
England.
8.5. It should be noted that in addressing comments made, the Council will consider the
wider definition of sustainability as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework7,
and that the presence of adverse impacts does not mean that a development option
should automatically be rejected.
8.6. Comments received during less formal, non-statutory engagement events will be
summarised in a report and presented to Local Plan Leadership Group.

9.

How to contact us
Contact details will be clearly visible on all engagement material.

7

Paragraphs 7-11 of National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)

12

Page 131

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix A: Local planning Authorities, County Councils and other Prescribed
Bodies
Prescribed bodies for the purposes of section 33A(1)(c) and 33A(9) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)

The Environment Agency
Historic England
Natural England
Mayor of London
Civil Aviation Authority
Homes England
Clinical Commissioning Group
Office of Rail Regulation
Transport for London
Each Integrated Transport Authority (not relevant to Uttlesford)
Each highway authority (for Uttlesford namely Highways England, Essex,
Cambridgeshire, Hertfordshire and Suffolk County Councils, Manchester Airport
Group and Transport for London)
l) The Marine Management Organisation (not relevant to Uttlesford)
m) Each local enterprise partnership

Local Planning Authorities relevant to Uttlesford
Braintree District Council
Chelmsford City Council
East Herts District Council
Epping Forest District Council
Harlow Council
North Herts District Council
South Cambridgeshire District Council
West Suffolk Council
County Councils relevant to Uttlesford
Essex
Hertfordshire
Cambridgeshire
Suffolk

13

Page 132

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix B: Specific, General and Other Consultees
Specific Consultees

General Consultees

Affinity Water
Anglian Water Services Ltd
Braintree District Council
Cadent Gas

Cambridgeshire Race Equality & Diversity Service
Chelmsford Diocese Board of Finance
London Gypsies and Travellers Unit
National Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups

Cambridgeshire County Council
Chelmsford City Council

South East Local Enterprise Partnership
Uttlesford Area Access Group
Greater Cambridge Greater Peterborough
Partnership
Essex Chambers of Commerce
LARA (Land Access & Recreation Association)
Gypsy Council
Gypsy and Traveller Law Reform Coalition
Council for Voluntary Service Uttlesford
Greater Cambridge and Greater Peterborough
Local Enterprise Partnership
Federation of Small Businesses

Colchester Borough Council
County Broadband Ltd
East Hertfordshire District Council
Environment Agency
Epping Forest District Council
Essex County Council
Gigaclear plc
Greater London Authority
Harlow Council
Hertfordshire County Council
Highways England
Mobile Operators Association
National Grid
Natural England
North Hertfordshire District Council
Oil Pipeline Agency Ltd
South Cambridgeshire District Council
Suffolk County Council
Thames Water
West Suffolk Council
Town and Parish Council in Uttlesford
Adjoining Town and Parish Councils in
Braintree District
Chelmsford City
Epping Forest District
East Hertfordshire
North Hertfordshire
South Cambridgeshire

East Anglian Gypsy Council
Cambridgeshire Traveller Initiative, Ormiston
Children and Family Trust
Great Dunmow Town Team
Stansted Airport Chamber of Commerce
Saffron Walden Business Improvement District
Stansted Business Forum

Government Departments
Department for Transport
Ministry of Defence
Public Health England (East of England)

14

Page 133

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Other Consultees
Active Essex / Active Uttlesford
Age UK Essex
Andrewsfield Aviation Ltd
Arriva (Essex and North Kent)
Basildon Borough Council

Greenfields Community Housing
Hadstock Society
Hastoe Housing Association
Hatfield Broad Oak Conservation Group
Health and Safety Executive
Home Builders Federation

British Horse Society
Broxted & District Community Association
Buzzcom
Cambridge Airport International Airport
CAMRA
Chelmer Housing Partnership

Homes England
Hundred Parishes Society
Imperial War Museum Duxford
Logistics UK
London Stansted Cambridge Consortium
Manchester Airports Groups (MAG)

Church Commissioners
Circle Anglia
Civil Aviation Authority
Clarion Housing
Clavering Countryside Group
Clavering Landscape History Group

Member of Parliament
Mid Essex Hospital Services NHS Trust
National Air Traffic Services (NATS)
National Grid plc
National Trust
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Groups

Corona Energy
County Broadband
CPREssex
Dunmow Historical Society
English Rural Housing Association
Equality and Human Rights Commission

Network Rail
NHS England Midlands and East
NHS North Essex
NHS Property Services Ltd
NHS Strategic Planning Team
North West Essex and East Herts
Preservation Assoc
Office of Rail regulation
Open Space Society

Essex Ambulance Service
Essex Bridleways Association
Essex County Councillor Dunmow Division
Essex County Councillor Stansted Division
Essex County Councillor Saffron Walden
Division
Essex County Councillor Thaxted Division
Essex County Fire & Rescue Services
Essex Fire and Rescue Service

Police and Crime Commissioner for Essex
Ramblers Association
Renewable UK
Road Haulage Association
Royal Mail Group Ltd
RSPB

Essex Gardens Trust
Essex Police
Essex Police Architectural Liaison
Essex Wildlife Trust
Essex Wildlife Trust (Uttlesford Branch)
Fibre WiFi Ltd t/a FibreWiFi

Rural Community Council of Essex
Sport England
Stage Coach
Stansted Surgery
Stebbing Society
Stop Easton Park Community Group

Fields in Trust
First Essex Buses Ltd
Flitch Green Charitable Trust
Flitch Way Action Group
Friends of the Earth
Friends of the Earth – Saffron Walden &
District
Garden History Society
GeoEssex

Stop Stansted Expansion
Sustainable Uttlesford
Tenant Forum
Thaxted Society
Theatres Trust
Transport for London
Uttlesford Badger Group
Uttlesford Futures (Employment, Economy,
Skills, Environment and Transport)

The Georgian Group

West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group

15

Page 134

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Youth Council

16

Page 135

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix C: Local Plan stages and when to get involved

Take part in engagement events
and activities

Engagement Stages

Publish report on
comments received and
how they will be reflected
in local plan.

You

Collect evidence

The Council
“Let’s talk about …”
Identify and engage on
Key Themes.

Consult on Draft Local
Plan

Publication stage
(Publish Local Plan)

Make representations

Formal
consultation

Submit Plan to Secretary
of State

Independent Examination

Attend examination to speak if
you requested to do so at
Publication Stage; or to listen.
Consultation on modifications

Adoption

Implementation and
monitoring

17

Page 136

Formal
consultation

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix D
Example of what a Virtual Exhibition might look like.

18

Page 137

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix E
Role of Council, Committees and Working Groups
UDC Council: Full Council meetings to approve the submission of the local plan to PINS
and to adopt the subsequent local plan following Examination and an Inspector’s findings.
UDC Cabinet: Preparation of the local plan is an executive function and key decisions are
made by Cabinet.
Scrutiny Committee: Scrutiny of the plan making process and its delivery.
Local Plan Leadership Group: Cabinet working group to advise on the shape and
preparation of the local plan

19

Page 138

Uttlesford Local Plan
Community Engagement Strategy 2021
Appendix F
Ground rules for meetings with developers and other bodies
1. All discussions with developers will be conducted without prejudice to the Council’s
future decisions on the local plan;
2. UDC will take formal minutes of all discussions with a view to publication on submission
of a planning application or inclusion of a site in local plan proposals. UDC will seek to
agree the minutes with the other parties to the discussions. The parties will be invited to
identify any information which they consider should not be published or otherwise
released by reason of commercial sensitivity or other reasons.
3. UDC will treat all developers equitably so that no unfair advantage is gained, and to
ensure that Council time and resources are dedicated proportionately.
4. UDC agrees to consult the other parties on disclosure if a request is made in respect of
any information relating to pre regulation 18 negotiations with site promoters and
developers. under the Freedom of Information Act or the Environmental Information
Regulations;
5. The Council will involve other local authorities, or stakeholders, in the negotiations as
required and all participants will be required to follow these ground rules;

6. The Local Plan Project Plan will include provision for a programme of negotiations with
site promoters with the outcome of achieving the objectives of the Local Plan; and
7. Regular updates will be given by the Assistant Director of Planning to senior members
through the established member governance arrangements in accordance with the
programme in the Project Plan.

20

Page 139

Agenda Item 10
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Budget Forecast Outturn - 2020/21 Quarter 3

Tuesday, 9 March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor Neil Hargreaves,

Report
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources

Key decision:

aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

No

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget

Summary
1. This report details the financial performance of the General Fund, Housing Revenue
Account, Capital Programme and Treasury Management. It is based upon actual
expenditure and income from April to December and predicts a forecast for the end of
the 2020/21 financial year.
2. The General Fund is predicting a net underspend of £503,000, which is mainly due to
increased income from the Commercial Investments.
3. The Housing Revenue Account has a net budget surplus of £797,000; the key factors
are the net effect of the capital receipts contributions and a reduction in the revenue
contribution to reserves.
4. The Capital Programme has a current year net overspend of £94,300,000; after
adjusting for requested slippage of £4,352,000 to be carried forward to 2021/22 (set
out later in this report), this leaves an actual full year predicted net overspend of
£89,948,000. The overspend is due to the commercial investments which were
undertaken after the budget setting process was completed for 2020/21.
Recommendations
5. The Cabinet is recommended to approve The General Fund, Housing Revenue
Account and Capital Programme forecast outturn positions including the updated use
of reserves and requested slippage for the Capital Programme.
Financial Implications
6. Included in the main body of the report
Background Papers
7. None

Page 140

Impact
Communication/Consultation

Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Joint
Executive Team (JET)

Community Safety

N/A

Equalities

N/A

Health and Safety

N/A

Human Rights/Legal Implications

N/A

Sustainability

N/A

Ward-specific impacts

N/A

Workforce/Workplace

N/A

Covid-19 Financial Impact
8. The impact of the pandemic has affected all areas of the council, and this is reflected
in the budgets and the forecast outturn positions presented in this report.
9. The forecast position in this report is based on information available at the end of
quarter 3 (31 December) and is consistent with the Ministry for Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG) monthly returns on the financial impact of Covid-19.
10. These forecasts are subject to change as the situation and circumstances evolve,
these events and the subsequent financial impacts are outside the council’s control
and influence.
Key Risks to the forecast outturn
11. The uncertainty of the Covid-19 situation and the potential for further financial impacts
later in the year increase the risks of material fluctuations in the following areas:
I.

The sales, fees and charges income has been predicted based on a
continuing downturn in the economy

II.

Decreases in collection rates for both Council Tax and Business Rates due to
unemployment and businesses unable to continue trading as normal

III.

Increases in the level of Local Council Tax and Exceptional Hardship support
as unemployment and the number of households with reduced incomes
continue to increase

Page 141

General Fund Revenue Account
12. The net direct expenditure is £708,000 underspent and after adjusting for the
associated use of reserves and Covid-19 Government grants, this gives an overall net
underspend of £503,000. The following table provides a summary of the budget
outturn and full details of service income and expenditure is shown in Appendix A.
2019/20
£'000

2020/21
Current
Budget
Outturn

Outturn

Original
Budget

1,221
1,487
3,271
5,912

914
1,855
5,065
7,040

917
1,869
5,106
6,982

1,240
1,778
5,832
3,433

323
(91)
727
(3,549)

Portfolio (Service) Budgets

11,891

14,874

14,874

12,284

(2,590)

Corporate Items

(1,909)

(1,171)

4,387

6,269

1,882

9,982

13,703

19,261

18,553

(708)

(7,864)

(7,251)

(7,251)

(14,145)

(6,894)

Net Operating Expenditure

2,118

6,452

12,010

4,408

(7,602)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves

3,539

(495)

(6,053)

1,046

7,099

OVERALL NET POSITION

5,657

5,957

5,957

5,454

(503)

Communities & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental Services
Finance & Administration

Net Direct Expenditure
Funding

Variance

13. A summary table of all the General Fund variances reconciling the final underspend of
£503,000 has been set out in Appendix B.
14. The quarter 2 position reported a predicted overspend of £139,000 and the key areas
of change in the financial position for quarter 3 has been set out in the following table;

Key movements quarter 2 to quarter 3
Direct Service Expenditure
Capital Financing
Investment interest charges

(310)
(158)
(163)
(631)

Page 142

Direct Services Net Expenditure
15. Direct Services are reporting a net underspend of £2,590,000, after adjusting for
government funding to support the impact of Covid-19 and associated reserves
movements the actual position shows a £4,743,000 net underspend. This is set out in
the table below and the variances have been set out in categories relating to normal
service activity and items directly related to Covid-19.
£'000

Communities & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental Services
Finance & Admin
Total Service Variances

Normal Service Activity
Savings/Additional Income
Increased costs/Decreased Income
One off
Ongoing
One off
Ongoing

(24)
(257)
(1,492)
(2,101)
(3,875)

(55)
(51)
(964)
(3,911)
(4,981)

Net reserves allocations
Government Funding
Actual Service Variances
net of reserves/funding

42
101
1,769
1,624
3,536

161
63
163
619
1,007

Covid -19 Service Impact
Savings/Additional
Income

Costs/Decreased
Income

Other
Immaterial

Total Net
Variance

(38)
(127)
(203)
(879)
(1,246)

246
185
1,445
1,125
3,002

(9)
(6)
8
(27)
(34)

323
(91)
727
(3,549)
(2,590)

(403)

(403)
(1,750)

(1,750)
(3,875)

(4,981)

3,133

1,007

(2,996)

3,002

(34)

16. The movement in the service variances has been detailed in the following table,
setting out the key items that have occurred during the year as per the quarterly
reports presented during 2020/21. The total cost impacts of the Covid 19 emergency
are shown as a total net figure in a separate line on the table.

Page 143

(4,743)

£'000

Norse Mgt Fees - updated for actuals
Insurance premiums
Consultancy (GCT) - investment related
Highways panel - update on match funding element
Net minor variances

£'000

(325)
100
498
(150)
(71)
52

Net of expenditure and income losses due to Covid-19

2,854

Quarter 1 - Direct Service variance - (under)/over spend

2,906

Commercial Rental income
Revision of Local Plan and Garden Communities budgets
Priority funds to support Local Plan
Housing Benefit subsidy, Council Tax and Business Rates
Covid-19 funding
Planning Appreals
Local Highways Panel
Other net minor variances
Normal service activity variances

(3,414)
(789)
(300)
(199)
(100)
1,050
150
235
(3,367)

Covid-19 net change

(984)

Material income/expenditure movements

(4,351)

Quarter 2 - Direct Service Variance - (under)/over spend

(1,445)

Major sports facilities grant
Planning appeal
Income for planning applications
Planning Policy
Vehicle Maintanance material/parts
Highways Panel Funds c/fwd
Grant Funds to match cost of hardship fund
Other net minor variances

150
119
(60)
(800)
(79)
(200)
(325)
163
(1,032)

Covid-19 net change

(113)

Material income/expenditure movements

(1,145)

Quarter 3 - Direct Service Variance - (under)/over spend

(2,590)

17. There have been significant movement in the direct services variances and the
reasons for these are explained below;
 Commercial Rental Income – the council purchased four commercial properties in
quarter 2 which are leased out to tenants and generate annual rental income to
underpin core service delivery. This is shown in the Commercial Assets budget as
direct income.
 Local Plan – the local plan timetable and financing requirement has been revised
following the Inspectors findings and comments, this has led to a reduced funding
requirement in 2020/21.
 Housing Benefit/Collection Fund – the Housing Benefit subsidy income is
adjusted at the mid year point to reflect the current claimant caseload. In addition,
year end adjustments relating to the collection fund are written back to the
revenue accounts.
 Planning Appeals – unbudgeted costs of funding external specialists to support the
council in defending planning appeals. The cost is off set against the draw down
on the planning reserve and has a net nil impact on the overall financial position.
 Local Highways Panel – A programme of works over the next 2 years has been
discussed and agreed with ECC and the previously reported underspend has
been allocated to support this.

Page 144

Covid-19 Direct Financial Impact
18. The main financial impact to the council has been the loss of income related to sales,
fees and charges. The income risk reduced during quarter 2, but with further tier
restrictions since December and then the latest national lockdown, services are
predicting an ongoing impact for lost income until the end of the year.
19. The expenditure reduction relates to savings generated from the indirect
consequences of Covid-19 and the new ways of working, e.g. reduced travel costs
and utility costs for offices.
20. The following table details the expenditure and income losses directly attributable to
the Covid-19 emergency, a net cost of £1,756,000. These costs reflect the direct
impact on the council’s finances and do not include the full cost, an example being
staff currently employed who have been redirected to supporting the emergency are
not included.
Quarter 3
Covid-19 impact detailed analysis

Day Centre

£'000

£'000

Savings/increased
Income

Costs/decreased
income

(29)

Grants (Fairycroft income share)
Museum

(6)

Building Surveying
Economic Development

(81)

Health Improvement

(19)

Variance details

48 Utilities savings and no room hire income received
27 Fairycroft income donation to grants reduced in line with car park revenue losses
24 Emergency staffing costs due to volunteers shielding and loss of admission fees
66 Loss of income from inspections
78 Grant received for opening the High Street safely - offset against costs of supporting
safe practices and initiatives

Homelessness
Car Parks Income share saving

(40)

21
19 Additional resources to support the vulnerable and homeless
639 Parking income loss, plus reduction in the income share to Fairycroft, Rose &
Crown and Crafton Green

Development Control
Licensing
Public Health

(64)

227 Pre-planning and planning applications fee income reductions
115 Reduced income in applications for licences and some associated costs
143 Loss of inspection income and overall saving in costs due to reduced services
12 Loss of income for Street naming and numbering
41 Additonal costs for administration of additional work for Covid plus allocation of new

(83)

100 Funding for additional support costs for ongoing pandemic support for the District
19 Savings due to staff vacancy and reduced postage cost with lost income for sales

(4)
(6)
(136)

Planning Management
Benefits Administration

burdens grant
Corporate Management
Central Services (scanning, stationary, postage)

and printing
Housing Benefits
HR

(105)
(35)

IT
Land Charges
Legal Services
Local Taxation
Offices
Revenues Administration

(19)
(231)

245 Reduction in overpayment recovery and increased bad debt
Training and consultancy not required/available during lockdown and ongoing limited
contact
51 Additional cost of resources and supplies to support the organisation in new ways of
working
20 Loss of income for searches and associated reduction in costs

20 Loss of income mainly from S106 agreements
112 Loss of income as recovery action is frozen for first half of the year
9 Savings in utility costs for the building and loss of wedding income
35 New Burdens funding to support additional workloads for Business and Council tax
grant support

Waste and Recycling

299 Additonal staff costs to support service in lockdown and employees shielding, plus

Council Tax Discounts

147 Additional support for LCTS funded by MHCLG & loss of share back income based

Private Finance Initiative

148 Rental income waived from April to December
312 Additional government support for residents in support of LCTS

expected loss of income in recycling and Trade Waste
on the increased level of non payment of council tax
LCTS additonal gov support
Net minor income and expenditure
Total impact on revenue

(325)
(63)
(1,246)

26
3,002

Corporate Costs

Page 145

21. The capital financing current budget has been updated to reflect the slippage brought
forward from the 2019/20 capital programme. The total slippage approved by
Members at their July meeting was £6,488,000 of this amount £5,558,000 is being
financed during 2020/21, with the remainder deferred to future years. The current
budget is of £7,230,000 is the sum of the original budget of £1,672,000 and the
slippage of £5,558,000 giving a current budget of £7,230,000.
22. The forecast outturn is predicting a further financing requirement of £1,454,000
compared to the current budget. The additional costs relate to the purchase of the
commercial properties, which is offset against the rental income generated and the
new depot site funded directly from reserves.
23. The investment income is reduced by £310,000 as this relates to the council’s new
investment properties and is now accounted for as revenue income in direct services.
The increased investment charge of £102,000 reflects the additional borrowing cost of
the commercial properties; details of the commercial investments are included in the
capital programme section further down on this report and set out in Appendix E.

Funding
24. Business Rates have not at this point shown a significant drop in collection and this is
due to the extension of business rates reliefs put in place by the Government to
support businesses affected by the lock down.
25. These additional reliefs along with other reliefs already in place as part of the 2020/21
finance settlement cover a majority of the businesses in the Uttlesford District and the
council receives 100% reimbursement for these reliefs via a Section 31 grant.
26. An additional £4,790,000 of Section 31 grant has been received to reimburse the
council for the new reliefs and discounts, these are detailed in the following points:
I.

Retail Discount – increased to 100% for all eligible retail properties and
extended to include Hospitality and Leisure properties; no limit on rateable
value (Originally set at £51,000)

II.

Nursery Relief – 100% relief for Early Learning providers

III.

Pub Relief – increased discount to £5,000 for pubs up to RV £100,000 (This
became irrelevant when the RV cap of £51,000 was removed for retail
properties, as pubs are classified in this category)

IV.

Local Council Tax Discount (LCTS) discounts hardship support
Additional support for residents in receipt of LCTS; giving a maximum of £150
discount on their council tax liability (this is now included in the direct service
Revenue budget to match the expenditure costs)

27. The collectable income for business rates is accounted for in arrears and this means
the impact of any changes to our income will be accounted for in the following year.
To ensure we match the funding to the expenditure the business rates element of the
additional S31 grant has been added to reserves to offset the future year deficits.

Page 146

28. The council receives additional financial support for the impacts of Covid-19 set out
above in paragraph 20. The funding received totals £1,750,000 and this is made up of
the following:


£1,147,000 direct support, this is a fixed sum and will not change and is not
subject to any criteria or pay back



£603,000 relates to the actual loss of income on sales, fees and charges only
and does not include any income losses for Council Tax or Business Rates.
The funding is payable on 95% of the lost income and of this the council will
receive funding at 75%

Reserves
29. The balance of reserves at the 1 April 2020 was £20,958,000 and the original
budgeted net use of reserves was £495,000.
30. The reserves have been updated to reflect the £5,558,000 approved capital slippage
as discussed in paragraph 21; this now gives a current budgeted net use of reserves
at £6,053,000 and a forecast net addition to reserves from revenue by March 2021 at
£1,046,000.
31. The actual forecast position includes the capital slippage and the additional S31 grant
funding discussed in paragraph 27.
32. The following table sets out the changes to the use of reserves from the original
budget and full details of all the reserves and current balances are set out in Appendix
C.
Reserve

£'000

Original Budget net use of reserves
Reserve in year movement

£'000
(495)

Section 31 Grant (Business Rates)

4,788

S31 grant - to match future years actual income losses

Capital Slippage (prior years)

(5,558)

Financing of capital programme b/fwd from 2019/20

Capital Slippage (current year)
Waste Depot
Licensing
Planning (Appeals)
Sustainable Communities
Homelessness
Working Balance

600

Superfast broadband project delayed - funding deferred to match expenditure

(1,000)

Drawdown of funds to support the Little Canfield Business Park development

(78)

Alignment of 3 and 5 year taxi licence income and expenditure account

(1,184)

Drawdown to match predicted spend on appeals (external experts) and Neighbourhoood plan cost

842

Expenditure for Local Plan deferred to 2021/22

17

Support for service resources

172

Statutory contingency calculation to reflect actual income and expenditure
(1,401)

MTFS Mid Year Reserve Additions
Emergency Response

500

Support for effects of the Pandemic on cash flow balances

Sports Reserve

150

Local sport funding for district

Climate Change

380

To provide funds to deliver an effective climate change action plan

Medium Term Financial Strategy

912

Support future years budget pressures from reduced levels of funding

New Depot

1,000

Additional funds allocated to support depot relocation
2,942

Forecast net use of reserves

1,046

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Covid-19 Impact
33. The key impact of covid-19 on the HRA will be the dwelling rental income and the
current predicted arrears for the year are expected to be £1,240,000.

Page 147

34. The impact on the HRA is an increased bad debt provision (amount expected to be
unrecoverable) of approximately 30%; this is included in the corporate items at a sum
of £370,000.
35. The remaining balance (70% - £870,000) will sit as a debtor on the balance sheet as
it is deemed to be recoverable income in the future and so this is not reported as
reduced income in year.
36. Officers continue to support Tenants and recover arrears where possible but recovery
action is limited due to the Government guidance preventing any court action.
Service Delivery
37. The HRA is predicting a net operating deficit of £198,000 and after adjusting for
funding contributions and reserves the bottom line impact is forecast at £797,000
surplus. The following table provides a summary of the budget and the full budget is
set out in Appendix D.

£'000

Total Service Income
Total Service Expenditure
Total Corporate Costs
OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT
Funding of Capital Programme from HRA
Use of Reserves
Total Use of Reserves/Funding

Original
Budget

2020/21
Current
Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Variance

(15,979)
4,564
11,203

(15,979)
4,564
11,203

(16,188)
4,801
11,584

(209)
237
381

(212)

(212)

198

410

1,325
(1,113)

1,325
(1,113)

2,106
(3,100)

781
(1,987)

212

212

(994)

(1,206)

0

0

(797)

(797)

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

38. The key service variances relating to the operating deficit are detailed below:


Service income – Collectable rental income has increased against budget by
£118,000 due to 2020/21 being a 53 week year



Service Expenditure - Housing Repairs transitional costs of £248,000 relating
to the Uttlesford Norse Joint Venture, finalisation of existing contractor
payments and first year costs



Corporate Costs – The bad Debt provision increase of £370,000 relating to
rent arrears as discussed in paragraphs 35-37



Reserves/Funding - the impact of the £370,000 bad debt provision and the
reduced capital receipts available to finance the loan repayment by £500,000
has removed the planned addition to reserves of £897,000.

Reserves

Page 148

39. The reserves balances at 1 April 2020 were £2,279,000 and the predicted net use of
reserves is £1,599,000 to support capital projects, this leaves a forecast year end
balance of £680,000. The detailed reserves balances are set out in Appendix E.
Capital Programme
40. The current budget for the 2020/21 Capital Programme is £19,299,000 and this is
made up of the original budget of £8,887,000 and the slippage of £10,412,000
brought forward from 2019/20 as set out in the Final Outturn report approved at the
July Cabinet.
41. The forecast outturn spend is predicted to be £113,600,000 against the current
budget of £19,299,000, this gives a total net overspend of £94,301,000. After allowing
for current year requested slippage of £4,352,000 this leaves an actual net overspend
of £89,948,000.
42. The overspend is due to the commercial investment purchases which were not
included in the original capital programme budget. All purchases are fully financed
from the direct income generated from the associated commercial activity of each
purchase.
43. The capital schemes requesting slippage are listed below;


GF – Superfast Broadband -

£ 600,000



HRA – Walden Place Thaxted Road -

£1,762,000
£1,590,000

44. The full Capital Programme is set out in Appendix F; this provides a summary of all
the schemes for the Commercial Investments, General Fund and HRA, along with the
balances for S106 funds.
Investments
45. During the first half of the year the Council completed on the purchase of four
commercial property investments, this was in line with the requirements of the
Commercial Strategy approved by Members in February 2020.
46. The details of the investments, the purchase price (excluding stamp duty, Land
Registry fees and insurance) and the predicted income for this year are:
I. Skyway House, Parsonage Road, Takeley for an initial purchase price of
£17,000,000. A further £2,500,000 was paid during the quarter as performance
milestones were met. £500,000 will be paid when a final milestone is reached,
which may be in November 2021.
For the period 1 July 2020 – 31 March 2021 the council will receive rental
income of £795,000 with ongoing annual rental income of £1,128,000.
II. Deer Park Road, Livingston, a Veterinarian Practice in Scotland was purchased
for £5,925,000
For the 2020/21 financial year the investment will generate £255,000 with
ongoing annual rental income of £372,456

Page 149

III. Stane Retail Park located in Colchester is an out of town retail development.
Phase One is forward funding of the site and two stores pre-let to Aldi and B&Q.
The initial purchase of the land has taken place at a cost of £7,500,000 The site
build is due to complete in early summer 2021 when a further sum of
£23,000,000 will be payable.
There is no income for the current year, with approximate rental income of
£1,500,000 in 2021/22 and an annual income of £1,784,024 in future years.
IV. A Regional Distribution Centre located in Chorley and let on a long lease to
Waitrose was purchased for £55,000,000 and will generate income for the
current year of £1,451,000 and an annual income of £2,465,000 thereafter.
47. All of the tenant leases have upward only increases in their leases, which in most
cases are compounded five yearly and therefore will increase the rental income in
2025/26

Treasury Management
48. Treasury Management Activities have been in accordance with the approved strategy.
Full details of all the council’s investments and borrowing are attached as Appendix
G.
49. The average rates of interest for the period April to December;
 Investments – 0.05%
 Borrowing – 0.28%
50. In October to December the DMO applied negative interest rates for short term
deposits of a few days and what was deemed as small amounts. Every effort was
made to place funds with an alternative investor to the DMO, this was not possible on
all occasions and the council was subject to negative interest rates on 3 occasions
during this period.
51. The council’s long term investments relate to the loans to Aspire (CRP) Ltd for the
purchase of the 50% share of Chesterford Research Park and the ongoing
development of the park. The table below provides details of both the actual
investments to date and future agreed amounts:

Drawdown Date

03/05/2017
26/03/2018
02/01/2019
09/06/2020
01/07/2020
20/08/2020

Amount Loan Term
£'000

47,250
223
2,518
1,250
2,600
3,000

50 Years
49 years 1 month
48 years 4 month
20 years
20 yeas
20 years

Rate Repayment Basis
%

4.0
4.0
4.0
4.5
4.5
4.5

Interest Only
Interest Only
Interest Only
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest

Annual Interest
Receivable
£'000
1,890
9
101
56
117
135

52. The additional funds to Aspire (CRP) Ltd are for the refurbishment and refit of two
units on the site.

Page 150

53. The council has two long term loans:
I. £37,000,000 with Phoenix Life Limited over 40 years for the investment in
Aspire (CRP) Ltd
 The loan is to be drawn down in 3 separate stages
 £10,000,000 on the 3rd July 2017
 £12,000,000 on the 3rd July 2020
 £15,000,000 on the 3rd July 2021
 No principal repayments will be made until 5th January 2022.
 Fixed rate of interest @ 2.86% for all 3 drawdowns.
II. Housing Revenue Account borrowed £84,807,000 to fund the purchase of the
council’s housing stock; this is a mix of fixed and variable rate loans. The annual
interest payment is £2,604,000 with a current annual principal repayment of
£2,000,000.

Risk Analysis
54.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

Actual income and
expenditure will
vary from forecast,
requiring
adjustments to
budget and/or
service delivery

2 – some
variability is
inevitable

2 – budget will
be closely
monitored and
prompt action
taken to deal
with variances

Budgetary Monitoring
and monthly analysis of
the financial position

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project

Page 151

Appendix A
General Fund Budget Summary

£'000

Quarter 3 April to December

2019/20
Outturn

Current Budget

Portfolio Budgets
Community & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental
Finance & Administration
Total - Direct Portfolio Budgets

1,221
1,487
3,271
5,912
11,891

Corporate Items
Capital Financing Costs
PFI interest cost
Interest Charges
Investment Income
Exceptional corporate items
Pension Fund - Added Years
Pension Triennial Payment
Corporate Core HRA Share
Recharge to HRA
Subtotal - Corporate Items

Forecast

Variance

1,240
1,778
5,832
3,433
12,284

323
(91)
727
(3,549)
(2,590)

1,854
0
417
(2,167)
(108)
113
0
(376)
(1,643)
(1,909)

1,672
372
788
(2,912)
0
85
571
(372)
(1,375)
(1,171)

7,230
372
788
(2,912)
0
85
571
(372)
(1,375)
4,387

8,684
372
890
(2,602)
5
85
582
(372)
(1,375)
6,269

1,454
0
102
310
5
0
11
0
0
1,882

9,982

13,703

19,261

18,553

(708)

(67)
(1,052)
(2,205)
481
(126)
(1,646)
(279)
(2,969)
0
(7,864)

(20)
(26)
(2,440)
690
(133)
(1,408)
(279)
(3,635)
0
(7,251)

(20)
(26)
(2,440)
690
(133)
(1,408)
(279)
(3,635)
0
(7,251)

(20)
8
(2,475)
338
(133)
(6,198)
(279)
(3,635)
(1,750)
(14,145)

0
34
(35)
(351)
(0)
(4,790)
0
0
(1,750)
(6,894)

Net Operating Expenditure

2,118

6,452

12,010

4,408

(7,602)

Transfer to/(from) Reserves
Business Rates
Departments for Work and Pensions
Licensing
Capital Slippage
Working Balance
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Transformation
EU Exit
Income Protection
Emergency Response
Economic Development
Elections
Homelessness
Health and Wellbeing
Planning and Development
Strategic Initiatives
Garden Communities
Sustainable Communities
Pension Reserve
New Homes Bonus Ward Members
Voluntary Sector
Waste Depot Relocation Project
Waste Management
Private Finance Initiative
Sports reserve
Climate Change
Subtotal - Movement in General Fund Reserves

1,052
0
(11)
108
39
191
(27)
385
1,060
0
185
(55)
65
46
305
(500)
0
623
0
22
0
(59)
49
60
0
0
3,539

197
0
34
0
0
0
(3)
0
0
0
0
25
102
0
(15)
0
0
(835)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

197
0
34
(1,054)
0
0
(3)
0
0
0
0
25
102
0
(15)
0
0
(835)
0
0
0
(4,504)
0
0
0

(495)

(6,053)

4,986
0
(45)
(454)
172
912
(3)
0
0
500
0
25
119
0
(1,199)
0
0
7
0
0
0
(4,504)
0
0
150
380
1,046

4,789
0
(78)
600
172
912
0
0
0
500
0
0
17
0
(1,184)
0
0
842
0
0
0
0
0
0
150
380
7,099

COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT

5,657

5,957

5,957

5,454

(503)

(5,657)

(5,957)

(5,957)

(5,957)

0

0

0

0

(503)

(503)

Council Tax (precept levied on Collection Fund)

OVERALL NET POSITION (Under) / Over spend

Page 152

23
(252)
(320)
(3,167)
(3,716)

Original Current Budget
Budget

917
1,869
5,106
6,982
14,874

Funding
Council Tax - Collection Fund Balance
Business Rates - Collection Fund Balance
Business Rates - UDC Share (net of tariff)
Business Rates - Levy/(Safety Net) Payment
Business Rates - Renewable Energy Schemes
Collection fund - Section 31 Funding
Rural Services Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Covid impact funding
Subtotal - Funding

724
1,076
3,110
2,118
7,029

2020/21

Variance to Date

914
1,855
5,065
7,040
14,874

Subtotal - General Fund

701
1,329
3,429
5,285
10,744

Actuals to
Date

Appendix A continued…
Portfolio Service Variances
Communities and Partnerships

£'000

Community Information
Day Centres
Emergency Planning
Grants & Contributions
Leisure & Performance
Saffron Walden Museum
New Homes Bonus
Private Finance Init
Communities Partnership
Renovation Grants
Portfolio Total

2019/20
Outturn

Original
Budget

2020/21
Current
Forecast
Budget
Outturn

Variance

50
77
29
823
43
206
57
(44)
0
(19)

51
91
26
394
43
227
78
3
0
0

51
92
26
394
44
229
78
3
0
0

48
103
33
577
43
233
78
154
0
(30)

(3)
12
7
182
(0)
5
0
151
0
(30)

1,221

914

917

1,240

323

2020/21
Current
Forecast
Budget
Outturn

Variance

Housing & Economic Development

£'000

2019/20
Outturn

Original
Budget

Building Surveying
Committee Admin
Customer Services Centre
Democratic Represent
Economic Development
Energy Efficiency
Health Improvement
Homelessness
Lifeline
Communications

(56)
354
448
334
141
24
106
112
(163)
187

7
288
547
352
272
34
169
107
(158)
237

10
290
551
352
273
34
171
108
(158)
238

39
266
492
330
260
22
183
157
(158)
188

29
(25)
(59)
(22)
(13)
(13)
12
49
0
(50)

Portfolio Total

1,487

1,855

1,869

1,778

(91)

Page 153

Appendix A continued…
Portfolio Service Variances
Environmental Services

£'000

2019/20
Outturn

Original
Budget

2020/21
Current
Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Variance

Animal Warden
Grounds Maintenance
Car Park
Development Control
Depots
Garden Planning
Street Cleansing
Housing Strategy
Highways
Local Amenities
Licensing
Vehicle Management
Public Health
Planning Management
Planning Policy
Planning Specialists
Waste Management
Community Safety
Street Services

6
332
(730)
235
50
286
434
48
1
(13)
(321)
474
502
379
547
153
334
302
250

8
355
(668)
(125)
53
1,638
415
57
6
(12)
(282)
483
678
407
910
218
311
370
240

8
357
(668)
(119)
53
1,639
417
58
7
(12)
(280)
484
684
410
912
219
321
372
242

3
347
(60)
1,343
54
131
413
44
12
(8)
(174)
406
553
401
822
204
685
373
283

(5)
(11)
608
1,462
0
(1,508)
(5)
(13)
5
4
106
(79)
(131)
(9)
(89)
(15)
364
1
41

Portfolio Total

3,271

5,065

5,106

5,832

727

Forecast
Outturn

Variance

Finance & Admin

£'000

2019/20
Outturn

Original
Budget

2020/21
Current
Budget

Benefits Admin
Corporate Management
Conveniences
Central Services
Corporate Team
Conducting Elections
Electroral Registration
Financial Services
Housing Benefits
Human Resources
Internal Audit
Information Technology
Land Charges
Legal Services
Local Taxation
Non Domestic Rates
Office Cleaning
Offices
Revenues Admin
Council Tax Discounts

269
1,132
20
399
238
130
45
1,059
(57)
272
140
1,303
(65)
226
(114)
(147)
214
503
560
(215)

343
1,907
0
457
49
1
55
1,024
(77)
377
150
1,532
(66)
182
(100)
(146)
213
688
597
(148)

347
1,827
0
459
50
1
55
1,028
(77)
379
152
1,535
(65)
183
(100)
(146)
213
688
602
(148)

332
1,383
0
365
(2,882)
(5)
24
1,134
(660)
293
151
1,567
(50)
339
466
(69)
215
419
415
(4)

(15)
(444)
0
(94)
(2,931)
(6)
(31)
106
(583)
(86)
(1)
31
15
155
566
77
3
(269)
(187)
145

Portfolio Total

5,912

7,040

6,982

3,433

(3,549)

Page 154

Appendix B
General Fund Variances
Quarter 3 budget underspend analysis

£'000
Norse Mgt Fees - updated for actuals
Commercial Property (GCT)
Consultancy (GCT) - investment related
Planning appeals
Garden Communities
Planning Policy
Local Plan support - Members Priorities
Precept Funding
Treasury Management
Highways Panel
Major Sports facilities grant
Covid Hardship grant
Housing Benefit/Local Taxation
Net of expenditure and income losses due to Covid-19
Net minor variances

£'000

Direct Services Variance

Page 155

Capital Financing updated MRP/internal borrowing
Investment charges
Investment Income
Other

Addition Section 31 grant - Business Rates reliefs
Gov't funding for Covid 19 cost impact
Gov't funding for Covid 19 loss of income
Other minor variance

Capital Slippage
MTFS
Emergency Response
Planning
Sustainable Communities
Sports Reserve
Climate Change
Working Balance - adjusted to reflect actual net expenditure
Licensing
Homelessness

Legal Fees, due dilligence work and other associated external fees assoicated with the purchase of commercial investments
Planning appeals cost of legal and external consultancy
Realignment of the budget requirement for the Local Plan
Funds c/fwd in reserve to match spending for 2021/22
Funds set aside to support Local Plan - no longer required
Covid funding to support the district during pandemic
Broker fees for commercial property borrowing
Budget c/fwd to match future spending 2 year spending plan
Grant expenditure funded from reserves
Covid hardship funding for LCTS and residents on low incomes
Historic reconciliation and release of prior years accruals
Actual financial Impact on the direct services directly attributable to Covid-19

Net effect of slippage/MRP and additional financing of commercial investments

1,454
102
310
16

Cost of borrowing increased in line with the additonal commercial property purchases
Rental income (non CRP) has been inlcuded as direct rental income (included in £3,414 above)
1,882
Our levy is estimated when setting the budget and adjusted to reflect the updated NNDR3 position at year end 31 March 2019

(387)
(4,790)

Government funding for additonal/expanded releifs to support buisness through Covid 19 (retail relief from 50% to 100%, Nursery
relief and Pub relief)
Support for additonal costs and workstreams directly related to Covid-19

(1,147)
(603)

Funding to offset 71% loss of income from Sales, Fees and Charges directly attributable to Covid 19. This does not compensate for
any loss in council tax or business rates

33

Funding Variance
Section 31 grant allocated to reserves

Rental income receipts on commercial investment properties

(2,590)

Corporate Services Variance
Business Rates - Levy charge

Variance is compared to a budget set in November 2019 which used estimated figures

(325)
(3,414)
548
1,169
(789)
(775)
(300)
(100)
130
(200)
150
(325)
(199)
1,756
85

(6,894)
Business rates income reliefs and levy changes are accounted for in the year after they are incurred and this is the associated
funding/surplus held in reserves to offset the future year deficits
Superfast broadband rollout delayed to future years

4,789
600
912
500
(1,184)
842
150
380
172
(78)
17

Commercial income received in advance to be reallocated in 2021/22
Funding to support any future implications of the pandemic
Drawdown to fund airport appeal
Updated reserves position for the Local Plan addition of current year budget for future year expenditure
Reallocation of budget to provide funding for sports initiatives
Reallocation of budget to support the climate change agenda
This reflects our minimum contingency requirement and is calculated using a specific formula of actual income and expenditure
Adjustment to reflect the rolling 3/5 year rolling programme for Taxi Licensing
To fund additional resources for homelessness

Movement in Reserves Variance

7,099

General Fund net variance

(503)

Appendix C
General Fund Reserves

Balance

Transfer From

Transfer to

Transfer

Balance

1st April 2020

General Fund

General Fund

Between Reserves

31st March 2021

RINGFENCED RESERVES
Business Rates
Departments for Work and Pensions
Licensing
Capital Slippage
Working Balance
TOTAL RINGFENCED RESERVES

2,833
71
80
1,279
1,311
5,574

4,986

0

7,819
71
35
825
1,483
10,233

USABLE RESERVES
Financial Management Reserves
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Transformation
EU Exit

1,527
1,142
513

912

£'000

Income Protection
Contingency Reserves
Emergency Response
Service Reserves
Economic Development
Elections
Homelessness
Health and Wellbeing
Planning
Neighbourhood Planning
Housing Strategy
Development Control
Strategic Initiatives
Garden Communities
Sustainable Communities
Pension Reserve
New Homes Bonus Ward Members
Voluntary Sector
Waste Depot Relocation Project
Waste Management
Private Finance Initiative
Sports reserve
Climate Change

0
172
5,158

(45)
(454)
0
(499)

2,439
1,139
513

(3)

1,060
4,242

912

(3)

0

1,060
5,151

40
40

500
500

0

0

540
540

247
45
283

25
150

118
1,628
58
25
96
1,660
0
1,774
0
22
0
4,590
250
307
0
0
11,102

(31)

247
70
402

(1,184)

118
444

(15)

775

(768)

1,000

(5,504)

150
380
2,480

(7,502)

0

43
25
96
1,660
0
1,781
0
22
0
86
250
307
150
380
6,080

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES

15,384

3,892

(7,505)

0

11,771

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RESERVES

20,958

9,050

(8,004)

0

22,004

Page 156

Appendix D
Housing Revenue Account Budget Summary

April to December
Current
Actuals to
Variance to
Budget
Date
Date

Original
Budget

2020/21
Current
Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Forecast
Variance to
Current
Budget

(11,000)
(172)
(3)
(809)
0
(11,984)

(10,859)
(165)
(1)
(514)
(81)
(11,621)

141
7
1
295
(81)
364

(14,667)
(230)
(3)
(1,079)
0
(15,979)

(14,667)
(230)
(3)
(1,079)
0
(15,979)

(14,785)
(229)
(2)
(1,091)
(81)
(16,188)

(118)
0
1
(12)
(81)
(208)

0
56
56

0
68
68

0
11
11

0
75
75

0
75
75

0
77
77

0
2
2

157
147
1,837
45
0
267
2,453

95
147
2,083
48
1
275
2,650

(62)
(0)
247
3
1
8
198

209
196
2,449
60
0
356
3,270

209
196
2,449
60
0
356
3,270

209
196
2,733
60
1
356
3,555

0
0
284
0
1
0
285

396
518
0
914
3,423

338
492
0
830
3,547

(58)
(26)
0
(85)
125

528
691
0
1,219
4,564

528
691
0
1,219
4,564

496
674
0
1,170
4,801

(32)
(17)
0
(49)
237

Corporate Costs
Bad Debt Provision
Depreciation - Dwellings (to MRR)
Depreciation - Non-Dwellings (to MRR)
Impairment - Non-Dwellings
Interest / Costs - HRA Loan
Repayment of Loan
Investment Income
Recharge from General Fund
HRA Share of Corporate Core
Pension Fund - Added Years
Pension Fund - Deficit
Right to Buy Admin Cost Allowance
Total Corporate Costs

100
4,555
66
0
2,613
2,000
(13)
1,375
372
19
126
(10)
11,203

100
4,555
66
0
2,613
2,000
(13)
1,375
372
19
126
(10)
11,203

470
4,555
66
0
2,613
2,000
(0)
1,375
372
19
126
(10)
11,585

370
(0)
0
0
0
0
13
(0)
0
0
0
0
382

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

15,767

15,767

16,386

619

(212)

(212)

198

411

(2,000)

(2,000)

(1,500)

500

0
1,325
1,325

0
1,325
1,325

0
2,106
2,106

0
781
781

897
0
0
0
0
0
(10)
887
2,212

897
0
0
0
0
0
(10)
887
2,212

0
(110)
0
(1,302)
0
(170)
(17)
(1,599)
507

(897)
(110)
0
(1,302)
0
(170)
(7)
(2,486)
(1,705)

0

0

(797)

(797)

£000

Housing Revenue Account Income
Dwellings Rent
Garage Rents
Land Rents
Charges for Services & Facilities
Contributions Towards Expenditure
Total Service Income
Housing Finance & Business Management
Business & Performance Management
Rents, Rates & Other Property Charges

Housing Maintenance & Repairs Services
Common Service Flats
Estate Maintenance
Housing Repairs
Housing Sewerage
Newport Depot
Property Services

Housing Management & Homelessness
Housing Services
Sheltered Housing Services
Supporting People
Total Service Expenditure

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT
Funding from Capital Receipts Reserve for HRA Loan
Funding of Capital Programme from HRA
Funding of Action Plan Capital Items
Funding of Capital from Revenue

Transfers to/from (-) Reserves
Capital Projects Reserve
Potential Developments (New Builds)
Sheltered Housing Reserve
HRA Capital Slippage Reserve
Revenue Projects
Transformation Reserve
Working Balance
Total Use of Reserve / Funding
(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

Page 157

Appendix E
Housing Revenue Account Reserves

Forecast transfer
from HRA

Forecast Transfer
to HRA

514
514

0
0

(17)
(17)

0
0

497
497

180
160
340

0
0
0

(170)
0
(170)

0
0
0

10
160
170

13
110
0
1,302
1,425

0
0
0
0
0

0
(110)
0
(1,302)
(1,412)

0
0
0
0
0

13
0
0
0
13

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES

1,765

0

(1,582)

0

183

TOTAL RESERVES

2,279

0

(1,599)

0

680

Reserve
£'000
RINGFENCED RESERVES
Working Balance
USABLE RESERVES
Revenue Reserves
Transformation / Change Management
Revenue Projects
Capital Reserves
Capital Projects
Potential Development Projects
Sheltered Housing Projects
HRA Slippage Reserve

Reserve with conditions
£'000
Capital Receipt Reserve - RTB
Capital Receipt Reserve - Other
Capital Receipt Reserve - Total
Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)

Actual Balance
1st April 2020

Actual Balance

Transfer between
Estimated Balance
Reserves
31st March 2021

Forecast transfer Forecast Transfer to
from HRA
HRA

1st April 2020

Estimated Balance
31st March 2021

1,739
50
1,789

1,600
150
1,750

(2,302)
(200)
(2,502)

1,037
0
1,037

215

4,621

(3,761)

1,075

Page 158

Appendix F
Capital Programme expenditure
Scheme

Commercial Investments
Community and Partnerships
Environmental Services
Finance and Administration
Housing and Economic Development
Total General Fund

Page 159

Housing Revenue Account
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

ACTUAL TO ORIGINAL BUDGET
DECEMBER
2020/21
£'000
£'000

SLIPPAGE FROM CURRENT BUDGET
2019/20
2020/21
£'000
£'000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
£'000

FORECAST
VARIANCE
£'000

SLIPPAGE
REQUESTED

93,375

0

0

0

93,374

93,374

0

42
92
8,140
147
8,421

125
1,025
460
280
1,890

30
755
5,023
680
6,488

155
1,780
5,483
960
8,378

155
1,780
11,029
360
13,324

0
0
5,546
(600)
4,946

0
0
0
600
600

2,127
103,923

6,997
8,887

3,924
10,412

10,921
19,299

6,901
113,600

(4,020)
94,301

3,752
4,352

Capital Programme financing
INVESTMENTS

GENERAL FUND

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

£'000

£'000

£'000

92,331
0
1,043
0
0
0
0
0
93,374

0
200
469
3,986
5,958
0
2,711
0
13,324

0
456
694
0
1,412
0
578
3,761
6,901
113,600

FINANCING SUMMARY 2020/21

Borrowing
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contribution (RCCO)
Internal Borrowing
Reserves
S106
Capital Receipts
Major Repairs Reserve
Total Financing

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme General Fund

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

ACTUAL TO
DECEMBER

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2020/21

SLIPPAGE FROM
2019/20

CURRENT BUDGET
2020/21

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

FORECAST

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2021/22

INVESTMENTS

Skyway House
Deer Park Road
Stane Retail Park
Waitrose Distribution Centre

CIN001/6826
CIN002/6826
CIN003/6826
CIN004/6826

Page 160

20,767
6,389
8,190
58,029

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

20,767
6,388
8,190
58,029

20,767
6,388
8,190
58,029

93,375

0

0

0

93,374

93,374

40
2

110
15

30
0

140
15

140
15

0
0

42

125

30

155

155

0

0
44
18
5
24
0
0
1

0
70
30
10
20
0
15
880

25
0
0
0
0
92
0
638

25
70
30
10
20
92
15
1,518

25
70
30
10
20
92
15
1,518

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

92

1,025

755

1,780

1,780

0

0

0
146
0
0

70
200
10
0

70
0
10
600

140
200
20
600

140
200
20
0

0
0
0
(600)

600

147

280

680

960

360

(600)

600

0

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY AND PARTNERSHIPS

Community Project Grants
Tree Planting

CGF502/6842
CGF533/6841

TOTAL COMMUNITY AND PARTNERSHIPS

0

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

White Street Car Park
Household Bins
Trade Waste Bins
Kitchen Caddies
Garden Waste Bins
Car Parking Machine Replacement
Electic Car Charges
Vehicle Replacement Programme

CGF108/6801
CGF300/6822
CGF301/6822
CGF304/6822
CGF308/6822
CGF321/6822
CGF323/6822
CGF602/6823

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Private Sector Renewal Grant
Disabled facilities Grant
Empty Dwellings
Superfast Broadband
TOTAL HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CGF500/6841
CGF503/6841
CGF505/6841
CGF528/6841

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme General Fund

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

ACTUAL TO
DECEMBER

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2020/21

SLIPPAGE FROM
2019/20

CURRENT BUDGET
2020/21

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

FORECAST

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2021/22

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Page 161

Minor Items IT
Revenues and Benefits IT
PCI Compliance
PSN CoCo Works
Replacement Electoral System
Asset Management System
Cyber Security
Grounds Maint & Vehicle System
Idox Additional Modules
Licensing - Lalpac to Idox Uni
ArcGIS Upgrade
Network Monitor&Threat Protect
Postal Software
Scanner Replacement
Sharepoint
Wifi
Northgate Housing Assets
Telephony System (8x8)

CGF401/6834
CGF410/6834
CGF413/6834
CGF425/6824
CGF434/6824
CGF437/6824
CGF438/6824
CGF439/6824
CGF441/6824
CGF442/6824
CGF443/6824
CGF445/6824
CGF446/6824
CGF447/6824
CGF448/6824
CGF449/6824
CGF450/6824
CGF451/6824

0
0
0
0
17
0
0
0
0
0
0
29
0
0
0
0
0
0

20
20
20
30
0
0
20
0
0
0
0
0
0
30
30
50
0
0

0
0
14
32
17
30
32
95
5
16
21
30
27
0
0
0
0
0

20
20
34
62
17
30
52
95
5
16
21
30
27
30
30
50
0
0

20
20
34
62
17
30
52
95
5
16
21
30
27
30
30
50
20
10

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
20
10

New Depot Site
London Rd Office Building works
Day Centres Cyclical Improvements
London Rd Office Electrical
London Road - Fire Alarm Upgrade
London Road - LED Lighting

CGF103/6801
CGF112/6801
CGF115/6801
CGF316/6822
CGF127/6801
CGF128/6801

7,993
98
3
0
0
0

0
120
25
0
50
45

4,504
190
0
10
0
0

4,504
310
25
10
50
45

10,020
310
25
10
50
45

5,516
0
0
0
0
0

8,140

460

5,023

5,483

11,029

5,546

TOTAL FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

0

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme Housing Revenue Account

SCHEME

Sheltered Digital Upgrade
Cash Incentive Scheme Grants

COST CENTRE

CHR400/6841
CHR500/6841

TOTAL

ACTUAL TO
DECEMBER

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2020/21

SLIPPAGE FROM
2019/20

CURRENT BUDGET
2020/21

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

FORECAST

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2021/22

18
5

0
50

20
0

20
50

20
50

0
0

23

50

20

70

70

0

931
157
62
48
0

0
2,350
900
0
0

1,960
0
0
0
0

1,960
2,350
900
0
0

1,960
760
500
100
100

0
(1,590)
(400)
100
100

1,198

3,250

1,960

5,210

3,420

(1,790)

1,990

7
123
29
16
90

0
0
0
0
0

49
0
1,762
0
0

49
0
1,762
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

(49)
0
(1,762)
0
0

1,762

265

0

1,811

1,811

0

(1,811)

1,762

642
0
0
0

3,542
100
0
55

0
0
133
0

3,542
100
133
55

3,311
100
0
0

(231)
0
(133)
(55)

642

3,697

133

3,830

3,411

(419)

0

RTB SCHEMES

Page 162

The Moors
Thaxted Road
Great Chesterford
Auton Court
Gold Close

CHR116/6801
CHR119/6801
CHR118/6801
CHR122/6801

TOTAL RTB SCHEMES

1,590
400

SHELTERED SCHEMES

Reynolds Court
Hatherley Court
Walden Place
Alexia House
Parkside

CHR107/6801
CHR108/6801
CHR109/6801
CHR121/6801
CHR120/6801

TOTAL SHELTERED SCHEMES
HRA - UTTLESFORD NORSE

HRA Repairs
UPVC Fascia's and Guttering
Resurfacing Access Road
Lift Replacement
TOTAL UTTLESFORD NORSE

Various
CHR223/6812
CHR111/6801
CHR224/6812

0

Appendix F continued…
Section 106

With Conditions
S106 Receipts in Advance
Priors Green, Takeley
Land north of Ingrams, Felsted
Rochford Nurseries/Foresthall Park, Stansted
The Orchard, Elsenham
Wedow Road, Thaxted
Sector 4 Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow
Keers Green Nurseries, Aythorpe Roding
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital
Land at Blossom Hill Farm, Henham
Land at Webb & Hallett Road, Flitch Green, Felsted
Land south side of Radwinter Road
Total

Other Bodies
S106 Receipts in Advance
Sector 4 Woodlands Park (Helena Romanes School)
Brewers End, Takeley
Land adj Hailes Wood, Elsenham
Land at Flitch Green, Felsted
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital
Ashdon Road Commercial Centre
Land south of Stansted Road, Elsenham
Land south of Ongar Road, Dunmow
Land at 119 Radwinter Road, adj S/W Hospital
Land North of Ongar Road, Gt Dunmow
Land at Bury Water Lane, Newport
Land at Elsenham Nuseries
Bury Water Lane, Newport
Walpole Farm, Cambridge Road, Stansted
14 Stortford Road, Gt Dunmow
Grants and Contributions to Other Bodies
Without Conditions

S106 Unapplied
Affordable Housing;
-Land South Side of Great Chalks, Hatfied Broad Oak
Drawn Down
Affordable Housing
Dunmow Eastern Sector
Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow
Bell College, Saffron Walden
Priors Green, Takeley
Foresthall Park, Stansted
Lt Walden Road/Ashdon Road, Saffron Walden
Oakwood Park, Takeley
Total

£'000

Drawn Down Capital
£'000

Balance at 31 Dec
2020
£'000

-

-

-

78
10
20
42
53
10
120
31
33
33
49
479

31 March 2020

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

£'000

Transferred to
other bodies
£'000

Balance at 31 Dec
2020
£'000

165
31
10
67
1
34
53
17
15
21
29
14
26
53
536

35
35

-

-

165
31
10
67
1
34
53
17
15
21
29
14
26
53
35
571

31 March 2020

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

£'000

Drawn Down Capital
£'000

Balance at 31 Dec
2020
£'000

327
327
18
36
15
8
33
98
5
540

486
486
486

-

-

327
486
813
18
36
15
8
33
98
5
1,026

31 March 2020

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

78
10
20
42
53
10
120
31
33
33
49
479

Page 163

Appendix G
Investments April – December 2020
Date of
Investment

Counterparty

01-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
16-Apr-20
20-Apr-20
27-Apr-20
15-May-20
11-Jun-20
05-Jun-20
08-Jun-20
15-Jun-20
16-Jun-20
22-Jun-20
24-Jun-20
30-Jun-20
01-Jul-20
02-Jul-20
15-Jul-20
23-Jul-20
31-Jul-20
03-Aug-20
06-Aug-20
13-Aug-20
17-Aug-20
01-Sep-20
15-Sep-20
06-Oct-20
20-Oct-20
15-Oct-20
16-Nov-20
11-Dec-20
15-Dec-20

DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
Thurrock Council
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
Monmouthshire County Council
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
North Lanarkshire Council
DMO
DMO
Thurrock Council
DMO

Amount (£)

Date of
Repayment

Interest
Rate %

06-Apr-20
07-Apr-20
08-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
14-Apr-20
15-Apr-20
16-Apr-20
20-Apr-20
23-Apr-20
30-Apr-20
19-May-20
11-Dec-20
08-Jun-20
15-Jun-20
22-Jun-20
24-Jun-20
25-Jun-20
25-Jun-20
06-Apr-21
02-Jul-20
06-Jul-20
16-Jul-20
30-Jul-20
03-Aug-20
06-Aug-20
13-Aug-20
20-Aug-20
19-Aug-20
03-Sep-20
17-Sep-20
20-Oct-20
20-Apr-21
19-Oct-20
19-Nov-20
11-Mar-21
17-Dec-20

0.055%
0.030%
0.035%
0.045%
0.040%
0.075%
0.080%
0.045%
0.055%
0.055%
0.040%
0.600%
0.020%
0.020%
0.020%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.300%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.000%
0.100%
-0.015%
-0.015%
0.120%
-0.020%

21,000,000
1,000,000
4,000,000
16,500,000
1,800,000
1,000,000
12,400,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
3,400,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
3,800,000
2,000,000
1,800,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
4,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
1,600,000
1,800,000
3,800,000
1,000,000
1,600,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
4,500,000
2,000,000
2,700,000

Average interest rate

0.05%

Money Market Funds
Opening
Balance (£)
01/04/2020

Fund Name
Aberdeen Standard Liquidity Fund (Lux) - Sterling Fund
Aviva Investors Sterling Liquidity Fund
CCLA - The Public Sector Deposit Fund
Federated Short-Term Sterling Prime Fund
Invesco Sterling Liquidity Portfolio (Institutional)

Page 164

0
0
1,000,000
1,000,000
0

Closing
Average
Balance (£) No. of days
1 day
31/12/2020
invested
yield
£750,000.00
£950,000.00
£1,050,000.00
£700,000.00
£700,000.00

101
120
275
275
205

0.05%
0.05%
0.19%
0.15%
0.09%

Appendix G
Borrowing April – December 2020

Date of
Investment

Counterparty

01-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
06-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
16-Apr-20
20-Apr-20
27-Apr-20
15-May-20
11-Jun-20
05-Jun-20
08-Jun-20
15-Jun-20
16-Jun-20
22-Jun-20
24-Jun-20
30-Jun-20
01-Jul-20
02-Jul-20
15-Jul-20
23-Jul-20
31-Jul-20
03-Aug-20
06-Aug-20
13-Aug-20
17-Aug-20
01-Sep-20
15-Sep-20
06-Oct-20
20-Oct-20
15-Oct-20
16-Nov-20
11-Dec-20
15-Dec-20

DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
Thurrock Council
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
Monmouthshire County Council
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
North Lanarkshire Council
DMO
DMO
Thurrock Council
DMO

Amount (£)

Average interest rate

21,000,000
1,000,000
4,000,000
16,500,000
1,800,000
1,000,000
12,400,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
3,400,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
3,800,000
2,000,000
1,800,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
4,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
1,600,000
1,800,000
3,800,000
1,000,000
1,600,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
4,500,000
2,000,000
2,700,000

Date of
Repayment

Interest
Rate %

06-Apr-20
07-Apr-20
08-Apr-20
09-Apr-20
14-Apr-20
15-Apr-20
16-Apr-20
20-Apr-20
23-Apr-20
30-Apr-20
19-May-20
11-Dec-20
08-Jun-20
15-Jun-20
22-Jun-20
24-Jun-20
25-Jun-20
25-Jun-20
06-Apr-21
02-Jul-20
06-Jul-20
16-Jul-20
30-Jul-20
03-Aug-20
06-Aug-20
13-Aug-20
20-Aug-20
19-Aug-20
03-Sep-20
17-Sep-20
20-Oct-20
20-Apr-21
19-Oct-20
19-Nov-20
11-Mar-21
17-Dec-20

0.055%
0.030%
0.035%
0.045%
0.040%
0.075%
0.080%
0.045%
0.055%
0.055%
0.040%
0.600%
0.020%
0.020%
0.020%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.300%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.010%
0.000%
0.100%
-0.015%
-0.015%
0.120%
-0.020%
0.05%

Page 165

Agenda Item 11
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21
progress update

Tuesday, 9 March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Cllr Reeve, Portfolio Holder for the Economy,
Investment and Corporate Strategy

Report
Author:

Dawn French, Chief Executive

Key decision:

dfrench@uttlesford.gov.uk

No

Tel: 01799 510400
Summary
1. This report sets out the progress made on the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan
(CPDP) for 2020/21
Recommendations
2. To note progress against the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21, attached
at appendices A-D
Financial Implications
3. All financial implications arising from the delivery plan were reflected in the
budget for 2020/21, as approved by Full Council on 25 February 2020.
Background Papers
4. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
None
Impact
5.
Communication/Consultation

Consultation on specific projects was very
limited due to the impact of Covid19

Community Safety

Progress on Community safety projects is
included within the report.

Equalities

Progress on equalities is included within
the report.

Health and Safety

Any health and safety implications resulting
from actions or projects in the delivery plan

Page 166

are the subject of appropriate risk
assessments, where necessary.
Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Any human rights or legal implications
arising from individual projects within the
delivery plan are assessed and addressed

Sustainability

Any sustainability implications arising from
individual projects within the delivery plan
are assessed and addressed.

Ward-specific impacts

Any ward specific issues arising from
individual projects within the delivery plan
are identified.

Workforce/Workplace

Any workforce implications arising from
individual projects within the delivery plan
are assessed and addressed.

Situation
6. The Corporate Plan 2020 – 2024 was adopted by Full Council at its meeting
on 25 February 2020. This included a new vision of: Making Uttlesford the best
place to live, work and play
7. It also included four priorities:
- Putting residents first
- Active place-maker for our towns and villages
- Progressive custodian of our rural environment
- Championing our District
8. The first iteration of the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan (CPDP) was approved
by Cabinet at their meeting in May 2020. It was, at the time, heavily caveated
because of the impacts on the organisation of managing the public health
emergency and the uncertainty over the council’s finances.
9. A revised CPDP was approved by Cabinet at its meeting in October 2020
when the council’s financial position had stabilised.
10. In addition, the impact of Covid19 on officer resources had reduced, albeit
there was clear recognition that the public health emergency remained the
number one priority, that the demand on some services in the council
remained extremely high and that require further redeployment of staff away
from their normal duties may be required in order to support our residents and
communities. The CPDP was therefore subject to what was referred to as the
‘general caveat’.
11. Attached at Appendices A-D is the progress update on the CPDP for 2020/21.
Whilst not reporting to the end of March 2021, it should be read effectively as
an outturn report.

Page 167

12. The CPDP for 21/22, considered elsewhere on the agenda of this evening’s
meeting, builds on the progress reported for 20/21.
13. Within the 30 page report, there are many highlights. This is remarkable
considering the council was also responding to the pandemic and many new
duties placed upon it. This is due to the incredible efforts and outstanding
commitment of all staff, at a time when many were themselves adapting to a
new working life in lockdown and also delivering the routine functions of the
council.
Risk Analysis
14.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

The Delivery Plan
actions do not
further the
Council’s
priorities as
intended

1

4

Actions have been
selected that are
considered most
appropriate to support
the Councils priorities;
evaluation will be
ongoing to reflect on
whether the outputs
achieve the outcomes
expected

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 168

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21: Annual Progress Report
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and place

Theme 1: Putting Residents First
We Will:

Activities

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Changes due to Covid19

PAS final report to
Scrutiny by Dec 2020

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Planning and Local
Plan/Assistant Director
of Planning

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

1

Planning Obligations final
report to Scrutiny March
2021
Progress Update: As part of the new Local Plan, a comprehensive Engagement Strategy has been developed and is being implemented to ensure local people and
community groups are engaged in the development of the new Plan’s policies and proposals. For example, a Community Forum, chaired by an independent
representative, has been established to stimulate discussion and ideas from a range of groups on key themes relating to the Local Plan. The Council has also
committed to holding a 6 month early consultation period on the Local plan as opposed to the statutory 6 weeks. In terms of planning applications, Town and
Parish Councils are being pro-actively engaged in pre-planning application meetings with developers so they can comment on applications before they are even
submitted. The PAS review has been delayed as all of the information needed to complete its report is still being finalised. A final report will be presented to the
Council by end March 2021. The Planning Obligations report will be reported to Scrutiny in the Spring by the member task groups leading on this issue.
b. Administer public
BAU: Continuous
Portfolio Holder for
Consultations will
consultations that are
improvement, within Council and Public
continue within the
effective, accessible,
existing resources
Services/Assistant
constraints of
timely and high quality
Director of Corporate
government guidance
Services
on social distancing, etc.

Page

Page 169

1. Be a council that listens to and acts for residents
a. Increase the voice
Review the Scrutiny
and influence of
Committee’s findings
residents in planning
regarding major planning
and other Council
applications and planning
matters
obligations

Outputs/Milestones

2
Page

Page 170

Progress Update: Annual consultation on the council's proposed LCTS scheme for 2021-22 was carried out during the late summer of 2020. This was delivered
primarily as an online survey, although citizens were offered the opportunity to request paper copies of the response forms, should they want. Supported the CSC
in an ongoing customer engagement survey which aims to collect date on how satisfied citizens have been with their most recent contact with the council's
Customer Services team. Staff have also been consulted on current working arrangements in two working from home/not working from home surveys. The first of
these was carried out during the early summer and a follow up piece of feedback is being undertaken at present.
c. Increase the reach of Support the Youth Council to Greater participation of
Within existing
Portfolio Holder
Within the constraints of
the Youth Council
participate and engage in a
young people in the
resources
for Communities/
government guidance
range of activities that enable democratic process
Assistant Director of
on social distancing, etc.
their voice to be heard and
Housing, Health and
encourage wider
Communities
membership across all
sectors of the community.
Progress Update: Although recruitment continues to be difficult during the pandemic, particularly in periods of lockdown when the majority of young people are
not in school, the youth council still has a small group of active members. We have a representative attending the Community Stakeholder Forums and working
groups focusing on the constitution, environment and equality & diversity. As soon as is possible we will look to resume recruitment in schools and aim to raise the
profile of the youth council through some work [hopefully supported by the schools and delivered through their curriculum] around environment, climate change,
equality & diversity and future housing / community. We are aiming to establish working relationships between youth councillors and district councillors to try and
establish direct involvement in council projects and better links into local communities.
d. Improve the council’s To provide enhanced
Procurement of
£30,000 - mix of
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
use of the web and
customer contact
appropriate live chat
technology and
Council and Public
identified subject to
social media to increase opportunities including selfprogramme by end
human resource
Services/Assistant
general caveat
communication with
service facilities at remote
December 2020. Public
Director of Corporate
residents
site and extended opening
launch of live chat facility
Services
hours through the
by end February 2021
introduction of ‘live chat’
Self-service facilities to be
established as part of the
re-opening of Council
services at remote sites
Progress Update: The LiveChat function now forms part of a wider customer contact project which also involves new telephony technology. This will allow greater
visibility and monitoring of various customer contact channels for Customer Service Advisors, particularly when working remotely, meaning we will be able to
improve customer service delivery through better analysis of call data. LiveChat is part of this package although the project plan requires other elements to be
installed first which means it is now likely to go live in June.

e. Actively and
positively engage with
and listen to our town
and parish councils

Continue to promote and
develop liaison with town
and parish councils through
regular meetings of the Local
Councils Liaison Forum
Ensure that engagement with
town and parish councils
forms a key part of the
council’s approach to
community engagement and
consultation (link to Active
Place-maker for our Towns
and Villages 3 (b) relating to
pre-app process)

Regular meetings of the
Local Councils Liaison
Forum take place
Feedback is sought from
town and parish councils
regarding the utility and
potential development of
the Forum.

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Communities,
/Chief Executive

Within the constraints of
government guidance
on social distancing, etc.

3
Page

Page 171

Effective guidance
available regarding good
practice in engaging with
town and parish councils.
Town and parish councils
are actively and positively
engaged with and
consulted on local
matters.
Progress Update: There have been three meetings of the Local Councils’ Liaison Forum on 18 February 2020, 15 September 2020 and 11 February 2021
Topics included
18/2 Essex Association of Local Councils, Local Policing, Local Plan
15/9 LGA member code of conduct, Community Governance review, Local Policing, Public health emergency, Local Government review
11/2 Public health emergency update including a briefing from the NHS West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group to explain and answer questions about the
Covid-19 vaccination programme in Uttlesford, Elections, Local Policing.
Agenda items are requested from all town and parish councils ahead of each meeting; feedback on the future of the forum was sought at the February meeting.
The meetings held September 2020 and February 2021 were held virtually.
f. Support town and
Promote awareness through
Information provided to
Within existing
Portfolio Holder
Within the constraints of
parish councils to better the Local Councils Liaison
town and parish councils
resources
for Communities/Chief government guidance
represent their
Forum of “good practice”
about support available
Executive
on social distancing, etc.
communities
support available through the through EALC through the
Essex Association of Local
Forum.
Councils (EALC), especially its
Chartermark scheme.

Progress Update: The Governance Review Working Group have met six times to find the best governance model, modified as necessary, for the Council. Whilst
the GRWG was initially focused on evaluating the alternative models available to the Council, there has been agreement that culture and behaviour are also vital
elements of good governance. The Group agreed that measures should be introduced, where possible, to enhance the desired principles that do not require fullscale systemic change.

The Council has been actively engaged in discussion with ECC and other Essex Councils regarding devolution and local government reorganisation. However, the
publication of the white paper has been postponed, partly due to the timings and acknowledgement that local authority resources are required elsewhere in
responding to the pandemic. The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) has invited three areas, Somerset, North Yorkshire and
Cumbria, to submit proposals to create unitary authorities as work in these areas had been underway for some time and was at an advanced stage. MHCLG has
said it is committed to empowering regions through devolving money, resources and control. Essex district councils together with Southend and Thurrock councils
commissioned Grant Thornton to evaluate the strengths and opportunities for closer working and further devolution of powers without requiring reorganisation
and together with Essex County Council, Essex continues to look at the opportunities for joint working and other partnership opportunities.

4

At the GRWG meeting held on 16 September 2020, it was resolved that the review of the GRWG be continued with the intention that a programme of work be
prepared in readiness for a recommendation to be presented to Full Council in July 2021. At the GRWG meeting held on 28 January 2021, the Group resolved to
authorise officers to draw up draft proposals for an amended Cabinet model, to be considered by the GRWG before proposing any change to Full Council in July.

Page

Page 172

Progress Update: The Essex Association of Local Councils (EALC) attended the meeting in February 2020 and the new Chief Executive Officer Designate introduced
herself and outlined the role of the EALC in liaising with local, regional and national bodies and highlighted the services offered to affiliated members. This
included an update on the training EALC offered, in particular the Certificate in Local Council Administration (CiLCA) and shared information on the bursary scheme
available to Clerks. The EALC attend each meeting and are able to contribute examples of local councils that may be demonstrating good practice in relation to
items on the agenda.
2. Deliver local government with outstanding levels of transparency and accountability
A (i) Implement a
Complete work of
This action falls to the
£50,000 for
Leader/Chief Executive Having been paused
corporate change
Governance Working Group
working group of council;
dedicated/external
completely, there are no
programme to increase to review current and
any actions arising for
resources
further identified
accountability,
possible future governance
Cabinet will be detailed at
changes, subject to
transparency and
structure
the appropriate time
general caveat
democracy at the
Council
Participate in the Essex wide
Agreement on the future
discussion on Local
shape of local government
Government Reorganisation
within Essex, ahead of a
and Devolution
proposal submission to
Government

5

Planning Advisory Service
reviewing the process of
major planning applications

Page

Page 173

A (ii) Implement a
Planning Committee working Review completed and
Portfolio Holder for
This work on changes to
corporate change
group to review
agreed recommendations
Planning and Local
the planning committee
programme to increase arrangements for start time
adopted
Plan/Assistant Director will be paused due to all
accountability,
and/or geographical location
of Planning
meetings taking place
transparency and
of applications (north
remotely.
democracy at the
committee/south committee)
Council
Progress Update: The informal Planning Committee Working Group has met to consider how to best to proceed with the Planning Committee’s duties. An all
Planning Committee member briefing is now held a few days prior to each Committee meeting to allow members to clarify aspects of officers’ reports in advance
of the formal Committee meetings. During the initial stages of Covid 19, a virtual Planning Committee was established and met more regularly than was previously
the case to ensure as many applications as possible could still go to Committee on time. The “virtual” Committee now operates very effectively online. Recently, it
has been decided to start Committee meetings at 10am and to run for the whole day if the agenda requires this to happen.
A (iii) Implement a
Review Equalities Policy
Revised policy adopted by
Portfolio Holder for
Having been paused
corporate change
October 2020
Environment and
completely, there are no
programme to increase
Green Issues;
further identified
accountability,
Full training programme
Equalities
changes, subject to
transparency and
for members and officers
/ Assistant Director of
general caveat
democracy at the
completed by Dec 20
Housing, Health and
Council
Communities
Listening events
completed by January
2021
Progress Update: The Equalities Policy has been reviewed and adopted by Council. Mandatory training was offered to all staff and Councillors, however there will
need to be a follow up session for those that did not attend. The first listening event will be held on the 11th March 2021. Members of an overview board have
been identified and an internal staff group is being encouraged.
b. Seek external review East of England Local
Action plans to be
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
of and recognition for
Government Association
developed once the
resources
Planning and Local
identified subject to
positive change
(EELGA) to review the
outcomes of the reviews
Plan/Assistant Director general caveat
achieved by the Council strategy around Local Plan
have been received
of Planning

a. Be a self-sufficient
Council that generates
its own resources from
local taxation (Business
Rates and Council Tax)
and commercial
investments thereby
removing the reliance
on Central Government
grants.

To actively source
commercial investments to
support the council revenue
streams

5 new investments
generating £2.4 million in
2020/21

Within existing
resources

Portfolio holder for the No further changes
Economy and
identified subject to
Investment/
general caveat
Director of Finance and
Corporate
Services/Assistant
Director of IT, Facilities
and Assets

6

Progress Update: Four investments completed to date with a further two completions planned before 31 March 2021. 2020/21 income from the new investments
is forecasted to be £2.599m. When the loan interest from Aspire (CRP) Limited is included the total is forecast to be £5.183m.

Page

Page 174

Progress Update: The EELGA Peer Review Group has been working with both officers and members to review the Local Plan strategy with a number of all-member
briefings and workshops having been held. The PRG continues to give on-going support to officers and members on the preparation of the Local Plan generally.
The PAS review has been delayed as all of the information needed to complete its report is still being finalised. A final report will be presented to the Council by
end March 2021.
c. Deliver a
BAU: opportunities
Leader/Assistant
No further changes
comprehensive
for further
Director of Legal and
identified subject to
continuing member
development are
Governance
general caveat
development
being identified ad
programme
hoc until a planned
approach can be
resumed, within
existing resources
Progress Update: The Member development programme has been impacted by Covid-19, preventing in-person training sessions taking place, and the economic
uncertainty caused by the pandemic at the beginning of the financial year. However, development has taken place in the form of online training sessions, remote
briefings and peer review/support programmes (as carried out by the CfPS and the LGA). Members have also had greater access to a range of webinars provided
by the LGA and DCN.
3. Be responsible with your money and mitigate the impact of government cuts

b. Deliver cost-effective
and efficient services
that live within the
Council’s means

Achieve a balanced outturn
in light of the reduced
revenue and additional costs

Budget monitoring and
performance indicators
reports presented on a
quarterly basis

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Finance and
Budget/Assistant
Director of Resources

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

BAU: grant
Portfolio Holder for
applications are
Finance and
made regularly
Budget/Assistant
subject to the
Director of Resources
criteria, work
required and
likelihood of success,
within existing
resources
Progress Update: The emergency situation has generated an unprecedented amount of available grants and the council has administered these on behalf of the
Government and applied for additional grants to support the community. Many smaller grant support schemes have been established in association with Essex
County Council, where they received funds and this has been distributed to local areas/districts. The administration and criteria for these grants has been mixed,
with some having specific criteria attached and others allowing some discretion to meet the needs of our local area. The emergency situation has meant that
‘normal grant activity’ has diminished significantly.
e. Set a Medium Term
Produce a revised MTFS to
Revised MTFS presented
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
Financial Strategy
reflect the in-year
to Council in Autumn 2020 resources and
Finance and
identified subject to
(MTFS) to fund council
investments
utilising new
Budget/Assistant
general caveat
services by a prudent
Director of Resources

7

d. Apply for all relevant
grants

Page

Page 175

Progress Update: The monitoring of all income and expenditure is ongoing and quarterly reports are presented to Members with the quarter 3 forecast outturn
position scheduled for Cabinet in March. The Covid-19 emergency has had significant impacts on the finances and the delivery of services. The additional funding
provided by Government has mitigated the direct financial impact on the council and there has been no requirement to reduce services due to financial shortfalls.
Performance indicators are being maintained with only a small downturn in collection rates for Business Rates and Council Tax during the current emergency, this
is supported by the additional reliefs and grants provided to businesses and organisations, plus hardship grant support for residents on reduced incomes.
c. Constantly seek to
BAU: Contract
Portfolio Holder for
improve the quality of
monitoring is used to Council and Public
contracted out services
assure service
Services/CMT
quality, within
existing resources
Progress Update: Contracts continue to be monitored through Performance Indicators and regular contract meetings.

mix of investment,
services and tax
income, while
maintaining adequate
reserves

Medium Term Financial
Strategy, Commercial
Strategy and Reserves
Strategy set and approved
in February 2021

investment income
for 20/21

8
Page

Page 176

New reserves established
reflecting the in-year
changes in financial
position
Progress Update: The MTFS and all associated budget papers and strategies have been finalised and submitted to Scrutiny for review and Cabinet have
recommended for approval by Council on the 23 February. The budget reflects the impacts of the Covid-19 emergency.
f. Follow best-practices
BAU: Improved
Portfolio holder for the
for investment risk
governance is
Economy and
management and
embedded, within
Investment /Director
board composition
existing resources
of Finance and
Corporate
Services/Assistant
Director of ICT and
Facilities
Progress Update: The governance model enables investment options to be fully evaluated and debated at three separate stages, Investment Board, Cabinet and
Council.

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21: Annual Progress Report
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and place

Theme 2: Active Place-Maker For Our Towns And Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Change due to Covid-19

Consider way forward for the
Local Plan:
Decide whether to withdraw
the plan or seek to continue
with examination of the
submitted plan. Complete
Commence work on a new
plan.

Approve new PID and
Local Development
Scheme by Oct 20

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Planning and
the Local
Plan/Assistant
Director of
Planning

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

External reviews of preapplication processes,
potential of planning
obligations and engagement

Final report conclusions
by December 20
Improvement plan
approved by March 21

1. Masterplan our new communities for and with residents

Achieve milestones for
20/21 in new LDS

a. Deliver an outstanding
planning and placemaking capability with
the right capacity to

Within existing
resources and £55k
for planning review
work (as part of

Portfolio Holder
for Planning and
the Local
Plan/Assistant

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

1

b. Provide the greatest
level of influence and
protection for
communities adjacent to
new settlements
Progress Update: In April 2020, the Council made the decision to withdraw the Local Plan. A new Local Plan process was immediately started, and a new Local
Development Scheme (LDS) agreed with a detailed project plan and risk register sitting behind it. New governance arrangements have now been put in place,
including a Local Plan Leadership Group, a specific Local Plan Scrutiny Committee and a Strategic Infrastructure Delivery Group. These new arrangements are
already up and running and are positively shaping the preparation of the new Local Plan. A new Engagement Strategy has been agreed with a focus on ensuring
that local people, businesses and interest groups are appropriately represented at all stages of the drafting of the new Local Plan. This includes pro-active
engagement with groups such as through the Community Forum and the Town and parish Councils.
2. Support our towns and villages to plan their neighbourhoods

Page

Page 177

a. Use Locally Led
Development
Corporations to deliver
sustainable new
settlements

create quality outcomes
with and for all our
communities

of town and parish councils
EELGA larger
Director of
and wider organisational
programme)
Planning
review of the planning
function
Progress Update: The EELGA Peer Review Group is currently still working with officers and members to complete its Improvement Plan. Additional elements of
work have been added to the project and so it is now anticipated that a final Plan will be completed by end March 2021.
Officers to work pro-actively
with Parishes to encourage
more Neighbourhood Plans
to be instigated and
subsequently “made” to help
communities shape their
own areas.

c. Implement policies
which create better
homes and
neighbourhoods that
meet or exceed national
standards

Explore potential for PPGs
having regard to the work
required and weight that can
be attached.

Support 8 neighbourhood
plans already underway.
Facilitate one workshop
for areas not yet
commenced NHP to
promote benefits

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Planning and
the Local
Plan/Assistant
Director of
Planning

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

Neighbourhood
planning groups are
encouraged to use
resources of RCCE
and £50,000
allocated by UDC
Progress Update: The Council continues to work pro-actively and support the preparation of new and existing Neighbourhood Plans across the District

2

Interim Planning Policy
Within existing
Portfolio Holder
No further changes
Guidance to set out the
resources
for Planning and
identified subject to
Council’s expectations for
the Local
general caveat
high quality new homes
Plan/Assistant
and higher open and
Director of
green space standards in
Planning
new developments by 31
Dec 20.
Progress Update: In advance of the emerging new Local Plan, an Interim Climate Change Planning Policies Guidance document has now supported by ECC as
good practice and have been endorsed by Cabinet in February 2021. These policies, while not having any statutory weight, will prove beneficial when officers
are liaising with developers proposing new developments in Uttlesford. The Interim Policy Guidance demonstrates how new development can make positive
contributions to addressing climate change issues in Uttlesford and so officers will be asking developers to show how their proposals have taken the policies on
board. The extent to which the policies have been addressed will be reported to Planning Committee. With regard to the issues around higher open space and
green space issues, it has not been possible to prepare policies on this due to other pressing commitments relating to the need for officers to focus on the
preparation of the new Local Plan.

Page

Page 178

b. Facilitate
Neighbourhood Planning
across the district
through strong
engagement with and
support of all town and
parish councils

Page 179

Develop Interim Planning
Within existing
Portfolio Holder
No further changes
Policy Guidance to set out Resources
for Planning and
identified subject to
the Council’s expectations
the Local
general caveat
for high quality new
Plan/Assistant
homes and higher open
Director of
and green space
Planning
standards in new
developments by Dec 20
Progress Update: It has not been possible to prepare Interim Policies on open space due to other pressing commitments relating to the new Local Plan. Open
and green space standards are key elements of the new local Plan and so policies will be developed as part of its statutory development process. The Council
will support Neighbourhood Plans exploring options for such a policy where the evidence supports this approach.
d (ii). Work with partners Establish a reserve to enable Contribute the sum of
£150,000 in
Portfolio Holder
No further changes
and stakeholders to
the provision of three new
£150,000 to the first
2020/21
for Sports,
identified subject to
deliver new sports, play
large scale sports facilities
facility in 2020/21
Leisure,
general caveat
and community facilities
across the district
followed by a similar sum
Education and
in each of 2021/22 and
the Arts /
2022/23
Assistant Director
of of Housing,
Health and
Communities
Progress Update: New Grant Allocation Policy (Sports Provision - Major Projects) has been considered by Governance, Audit and Performance Committee and
Cabinet, and adopted subject to minor changes to grant conditions. Allocation of grant of £150,000 for a new 3g pitch in Saffron Walden agreed in principle,
subject to conditions of policy being met.
3. Secure greater benefits for our community from new development
a. Implement the
No work is scheduled on this
Portfolio Holder
Community Infrastructure priority for 20/21
for Planning and
Levy along with s106 to
the Local
deliver strategic
Plan/Assistant
community projects and
Director of
greater local benefit from
Planning
development
Progress Update: The preparation of a CIL is on hold until a clear strategy is agreed for the Local Plan in terms of where major development will be focussed.
The associated Infrastructure Delivery Plan will also influence the CIL process and quantify the amounts needed to be generated to fund essential infrastructure.

3

Explore potential for PPGs
having regard to the work
required and weight that can
be attached.
Explore where appropriate
delivery through
neighbourhood plans

Page

d (i). Work with partners
and stakeholders to
deliver new sports, play
and community facilities

b. Increase the
transparency of the
Section-106 Agreement
process and councillor
engagement

Review the Scrutiny
Committee’s findings
regarding major planning
applications and planning
obligations

Planning Obligations final
report to Scrutiny March
2021

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Planning and
the Local
Plan/Assistant
Director of
Planning

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

Develop a clear process
for engagement with local
communities. Committee
report templates to be
reviewed to ensure that
they are clearly
understood.
Scrutiny planning
obligations review final
report March 2021
Progress Update: A member task group is currently working on the preparation of a report to Scrutiny Committee in March to consider the development of
S106s and how the community can be best engaged in their preparation and subsequent implementation.
c. Ensure that strong
Planning Enforcement
holds developers to
account

BAU: Work will
Portfolio Holder
continue in
for Planning and
accordance with
the Local
enforcement policy Plan/Assistant
and within existing
Director of
resources
Planning
Progress Update: The Planning Enforcement Team continues to work effectively in the expedient enforcing of planning enforcement matters as and when they
arise. Officers aim to work as pro-actively as possible with the community and landowners in this regard.
BAU: Standard
conditions are
applied and
monitored within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder
for Planning and
the Local
Plan/Assistant
Director of
Planning

4

d. Require developers to
be considerate of the
communities in which
they build

Page

Page 180

Engage with ward members
and Parishes in relevant preapplication discussions to
ensure that the local
community’s aspirations are
considered from the outset
in all larger planning
applications (though may not
always be deliverable).

Progress Update: Conditions relating to noise, hours of operation, wheel cleaning of lorries on site are applied and enforced in appropriate developments. As
part of the pre-planning application process and preparation of Planning Performance Agreements, developers are also reminded of their obligations to existing
communities.
4. Work with the airport on issues of concern to communities
a. Seek a reduction in
night flights

Portfolio holder
for Transport,
Infrastructure
and Stansted
Airport/ Assistant
Director Planning
Progress Update: The Council will respond to the Government’s consultation on night flights in March 2021. An informal meeting of members has been set up
to help coordinate the Council’s concerns and response.
Final report of the T&F
Within existing
Group has been delayed.
resources
Cabinet will respond when
the work is complete

Portfolio holder
for Transport,
Infrastructure
and Stansted
Airport/ Assistant
Director Planning

The significant reduction in
air travel has alleviated this
problem therefore work
has been delayed but the
position is being closely
monitored as passenger
numbers begin to increase.
Progress Update: A member task group has been set up to address the issue of airport related fly-parking. Regular reports have been considered by Scrutiny
Committee. However, due to the impact of Covid 19 on air travel passengers, the fly-parking issue hasn’t emerged in 2020. It has been agreed, however, that
the position needs to be regularly monitored to ensure measures are in place to address future issues once air passenger travel starts to increase.
c. Work to secure
BAU: Participation
Portfolio holder
investment in sustainable
in Stansted Area
for Transport,
transport to and from
Transport forum
Infrastructure
airport, including for local
work will continue
and Stansted
workers
within existing
Airport/ Assistant
resources
Director Planning
Progress Update: Due to the impacts of Covid on air travel, this objective has not been prioritised. However, as passenger numbers begin to increase, this will
need to be reconsidered.

5

Receive the
recommendations from the
Scrutiny Committee Task and
Finish Group into fly parking

Page

Page 181

b. Implement
programmes to reduce
airport related village flyparking

BAU: respond to
proposed changes
within existing
resources

5. Nurture employment and retail areas to create jobs and retain businesses
Within existing
resources, including
£100,000 annual
Economic
Development
Action Plan budget.

Portfolio holder
for the Economy
and Investment/
Assistant Director
Planning

See above
See above

See above

6

See above

Page

Page 182

a. Protect and grow our
town centres as economic
hubs
b. Increase tourist spend
c. Support the creation of
amenities that stimulate
and facilitates local
businesses, such as
enterprise zones, business
parks, office blocks,
industrial areas, and
start-up hubs
d. Support the expansion
and promotion of key
relevant employment
sectors for the district
e. Work with partners to
promote the economic
opportunities of the
London - Cambridge
Innovation Corridor,
Stansted Airport and our
main transport corridors

A new ED strategy for Uttlesford will be required to reflect
the economic shock caused by the Covid 19 outbreak;
however, it is too soon to evaluate the impact sufficiently
to ensure that the council can prioritise actions. It is
therefore the intention to produce a recovery plan
covering the next 18 months following which a new
strategy maybe be appropriate. The recovery plan will
look at all the sectors referred to below and propose clear
actions to aid recovery.
See above

f. Work with the airport
to increase local airportbased employment
opportunities

This work will be paused
until the future
requirements are
understood.

Portfolio Holder
for Infrastructure,
Transport and
Stansted
Airport/Assistant
Director of
Planning
Progress Update: An Economic Recovery Plan has been agreed by Council to tackle the pressing issues created by Covid 19 on local businesses. Initiatives such
as “Click it Local” have been very well received and supported by the local community. The Council continues to work with strategic partners across Essex and
the region to promote economic development initiatives that will help support local business survive the current economic conditions and thrive into the new
post Covid world.
6. Enforce good business standards in our district
BAU: Regulatory
standards are
applied, and
enforced where
necessary, in
accordance with the
enforcement policy,
within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Council and
Public
Services/Assistant
Director of
Housing, Health
and Communities

a. Increase the number of
affordable homes
delivered and different

Develop a new Housing
Strategy and supporting
policies that details how the
Council will develop, acquire

New Housing Strategy
adopted by August 2021
(due to limitations on
consultation events)

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
for Housing,
Youth and
Health/Assistant

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

7

Progress Update: The Covid-19 pandemic has clearly necessitated changes to the way Environmental Health and Licensing services have engaged with
businesses over the last 12 months. During the pandemic physical visits to premises have out of necessity been limited to high risk premises and those with
potentially significant breaches of legislation. Wider engagement has therefore instead focused on supporting business by offering direct advice, linking in with
stakeholder organisations such as the Saffron Walden BID, the Dunmow Town Team and Town and Parish councils or by signposting to available information
sources This has served to promote awareness of an ever-changing regulatory and formal guidance landscape and assisted business and community in achieving
and maintaining Covid compliance. This approach is likely to be maintained as we initially move into recovery phases but will rebalance as we eventually
establish a form of normality. The licensing team operated in support of this approach and was amongst one of the first in the country to move to reinstate the
issuing of licences to the Taxi trade and local business and continues to play a partner role in ensuring the adequacy of Covid controls and compliance.
7. Deliver more affordable homes and protect those in need in our district

Page

Page 183

a. Make sure that
businesses and trades in
our district meet the
national standards and
licensing required of
them

Director of
Housing, Health
and Communities

Page 184

Develop a new Housing
Revenue Account (HRA)
Business Plan that confirms
the capacity of borrowing
through the HRA for the
delivery of new council
housing (including use of
commuted sums, Right to
Buy (RTB) receipts, loans and
innovative funding models)

New HRA Business Plan
adopted by January 2021
to include the provision of
200 new homes subject to
the business case.

Regularly engage with local
registered providers on their
affordable housing delivery
and identify barriers to
further development, Ensure
appropriate schemes deliver
the required 40% affordable
homes

Information on pipelines
and barriers provided.
Action taken to increase
supply and remove
Barriers

Incentivise community-led
housing programmes to
increase the number of
Community Land Trusts
(CLTs) across the District,
particularly within rural
communities

Grants policy reviewed
resulting in an increase in
grants awarded and
delivery of CLTs by March
2023

Explore Homes England (HE)
grant opportunities as they
become available

HE Grant applied for and
awarded on new build
schemes

8

and enable the supply of
affordable housing

Page

tenure options including
social renting

Progress Update: Work on new Housing Strategy delayed due to current situation but the draft document will be ready to be consulted on by spring with a view
to adoption by end of the year. New Development Programme has identified all sites within HRA ownership and plans being progressed to planning with
potential to deliver an additional 70 new council properties. Working with planning colleagues to identify other potential development opportunities. Homes
England grant applied for and awarded on one development site. In discussions about future opportunities where RTB receipts cannot be used.
Registered Provider and Council developments have had delays due to Covid-19 Pandemic.
b. Refurbish our existing
Continue with estate
Increased number of
To be costed within Portfolio Holder
No further changes
council homes to
renewal and regeneration
council homes with low
the new HRA
for Housing,
identified subject to
sustainable standards
programmes whilst reducing carbon features such as
business plan
Youth and
general caveat
when required
the carbon footprint of those external wall insulation,
Health/ Assistant
homes
solar panels and heat
Director of
source pumps, that are
Housing, Health
Improve home energy
healthy and affordable to
and Communities
efficiency across the
run
Council’s housing stock
Progress Update: Work delayed pending release of government grants and review of HRA Business Plan.
New Empty Homes
Strategy adopted by 31
March

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder
No further changes
for Housing,
identified subject to
Youth and
general caveat
Health/Assistant
Director of
Housing, Health
and Communities
Progress Update: The Environmental Health Service has reprioritised services to deal with additional duties imposed on the Council by the Covid-19 Pandemic.
Due to a lack of resource the development of the Employ Homes Strategy & associated policy has been suspended.
d. Ensure that landlords
Review assistance available
Revision of
Within existing
Portfolio Holder
No further changes
maintain high quality
for landlords, including
Housing Renewals
resources
for Housing,
identified subject to
private sector housing
empty property owners
Assistance Policy by 31
Youth and
general caveat
conditions
March
Health/Assistant
Director of
Housing, Health
and Communities
Progress Update: The Environmental Health Service has reprioritised services to deal with additional duties imposed on the Council by the Covid-19 Pandemic.
Whilst the service continues to investigate complaints and manage service requests to improve conditions in the private sector, a review of the assistance
available to landlords has been suspended. This work will resume where resources allow.

9

Develop an Empty Homes
Strategy

Page

Page 185

c. Reduce the number of
empty homes

e. Ensure that services to
protect vulnerable
women and men who live
in our district are
accessible and
appropriate

Portfolio Holder
for Housing,
Youth and
Health/ Assistant
Director of
Housing, Health
and Communities
Progress Update: Working closely with Next Chapter who are the commissioned service for DA. We supported a bid by Next Chapter which was successful. The
bid will allow for a DA worker to work with the Housing Teams and the Safeguarding Officer to ensure a consistent approach to working with victims. This will
also allow the opportunity of identifying gaps in the service and working together to resolve those issues. The Safeguarding Officer is working with police
colleagues to evaluate local data of DA incidents to enable targeted projects/work to take place. The Community Safety Partnership and the Health and
Wellbeing Board work with a range of agencies who assist in protecting our vulnerable residents in the District and projects are identified through the delivery
plans of those groups.
8. Promote healthy lifestyles in diverse and inclusive communities
Deliver recommendations of
the Uttlesford Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Identified
recommendations of the
Uttlesford Health and
Wellbeing Strategy
implemented

Within existing
resources
Public Health Grant
funding
£5k for dementia
work

Enhanced support provided
by the voluntary sector

Additional grants to the
voluntary sector

£30,000 allocated in
2020/21

Portfolio Holder
for Housing,
Youth and
Health/Portfolio
Holder for
Communities /
Assistant Director
of Housing,
Health and
Communities

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

Enhanced community
£15,000 allocated in
spirit and sense of
2020/21
wellbeing
Progress Update: The Health and Wellbeing Strategy continues to be delivered although engagement within the community has been difficult. The Health and
wellbeing Team has established a ‘Let’s talk food group’ with appropriate partners. This group will:
·
Tackle food poverty, diet-related ill health and poor access to affordable healthy food, and reduce fresh-food deserts within the district
·
Increasing residents access to affordable, healthy food through socially innovative growing and eating programmes
·
Build community food knowledge, skills and resources
The Health and Wellbeing team are working alongside residents and the Parish Council in Stansted Mountfitchet on project Touchpoint. This will be looking at’
reconnecting the community ‘through Asset Based Community Development principles, doing this with the community rather than to them!

10

Various civic pride events
organised by Parish councils

Page

Page 186

a. Work with partners,
including the voluntary
sector, to improve the
general quality of life for
residents, including for
residents that experience
social isolation, poor
mental health, obesity,
addiction and dementia

BAU – support is
delivered and
monitored under
existing framework,
within existing
resources

Page 187

Portfolio Holder
for Housing Youth
and Health /
Assistant Director
of Housing,
Health and
Communities
Progress Update: The Uttlesford health and Wellbeing Board meets on a regular basis and links in with the Essex Health and Wellbeing Board and Active
Essex. A ‘New Normal’ booklet was produced to help people keep Healthy throughout the pandemic, looking at both physical and mental wellness. This booklet
was delivered to all residents in the District. The Health and wellbeing pages on the UDC website are promoted on a regular basis. Strong links have been
established with the CCG and NHS as part of the Integrated Care System (ICS).
Active Uttlesford (member of the H&W Board) has allocated funding below;
 £1,000 was allocated to Walden Netfit for the start-up costs of two walking netball sessions. One will take place in the evening and one
in the daytime. This will commence in the New Year within Saffron Walden.
 £500 was allocated to Uttlesford School Sports Partnerships to match fund inclusive sport activity sessions for children with disabilities
that currently can’t access after school clubs.
 £2,000 for the activation of Radwinter Recreation Ground to provide short courses in: Walking and pictures, walking and writing, Boccia
Ball, Nordic walking, Tai Chi, walking stories with children and parents and pump track sessions for girls.
The Health and Wellbeing Team are working with Epping Forest District Council to deliver the West Essex Strength and Balance service. A number of sessions
were held when COVID restrictions were eased, however this project was put on hold when restrictions tightened and the second lockdown came into place.
There are plans to continue when restrictions allow.

11

BAU: The Council
will continue to be
an active partner of
the Health and
Wellbeing
Partnership

Page

b. Continue to be an
active partner of the
Health and Wellbeing
Partnership, to promote
healthy lifestyles

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21: Annual Progress Report
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and place

Theme 3: Progressive custodian of our rural environment

Page 188

1. Take action on Climate Change
a. Adopt policies to meet
Develop a Climate
new environmental
Change Action Plan,
national
prioritised by impact,
guidelines/standards as
cost, and deliverability.
they emerge

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member

Further considerations

Action Plan developed by
31 March 21

Officer time in
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
2020/21. Funding
Environment and Green identified subject to
allocated for the
Issues /Assistant
general caveat
plan actions of
Director of Planning
£333K per annum
for years 21/22,
22/23 and 23/24
Progress Update: An Interim Climate Change Planning Policy Guidance document has been agreed by Cabinet to highlight the Council’s climate change objectives
and expectations in new developments in the District. A Climate Crisis Strategy has been agreed by Cabinet in February and will be considered by Full Council on
23rd February. An Action Plan setting out the projects to deliver the Strategy’s aims will be prepared with an Interim Action Plan going to Scrutiny Committee in
Spring 2021 and a final Plan in September 2021.
b. Drive policies to deliver
Implement policies that
Detailed proposals to
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
low carbon buildings
reduce the carbon
come from the Climate
officer resources
Environment and Green identified subject to
footprint of new
Change Action Plan by 31
Issues /Assistant
general caveat
development e.g.
March 21
Director of Planning
passivhaus; mandate
carbon neutral local
energy generation, such
as solar panels or heat
source pump, aiming for
no new gas boiler
installations in line or

1

Activities

Page

We Will:

In making every policy
decision, consider the
opportunity to reduce

Review capital programme
to consider vehicle
replacement and

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/Portfolio Holder
for Finance and

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

2

f. Set a Net Zero Carbon
goal for the Council and
implement supporting
policies

Page

Page 189

ahead of government
timescales.
Progress Update: Interim Climate Change Planning Policy Guidance document has been agreed by Cabinet to highlight the Council’s climate change objectives and
expectations in new developments in the District. A Climate Crisis Strategy has been agreed by Cabinet in February and will be considered by Full Council on 23rd
February. An Action Plan setting out the projects to deliver the Strategy’s aims will be prepared with an Interim Action Plan going to Scrutiny Committee in Spring
2021 and a final Plan in September 2021. Green initiatives are also promoted at the pre-application and PPA stage of the planning process to ensure that
developers are fully aware of their climate change obligations and members’ expectations when finalising planning proposals.
c. Improve average energy To be included in the
Measurable improvement Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
efficiency of Council
Review of HRA business
in energy efficiency of
officer resources
Housing, Youth and
identified subject to
housing stock
plan
housing stock.
Health / Assistant
general caveat
Director of Housing,
HRA business plan by 31
Health and
March 21
Communities
Progress Update: Work delayed pending release of government grants and review of HRA Business Plan.
d. Increase the number of
Introduce a tree planting TBC as this is the first year £15,000 capital
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
trees in the district (and
initiative in partnership
of the initiative
budget
Environment and Green identified subject to
protect existing trees).
with town and parish
Issues /Assistant
general caveat
councils.
Director of Planning
Progress Update: All town and parish councils in the district have been invited to submit tree planting proposals for assistance under the UDC Tree Planting
Initiative 2020-21. Seven participating councils are receiving trees for their planting schemes. These are Clavering, Felsted, Great Chesterford, Hadstock, Saffron
Walden, Thaxted, and Wendens Ambo. Additionally, tree planting is being carried out on UDC open spaces in Gt. Dunmow, Hatfield Heath, Thaxted, and Saffron
Walden. Additional funding of up to £7,000 for tree planting has been secured from Essex County Council for the current planting.
e. Oppose a second runway Respond to Government A response has been
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
Continue to monitor but
at Stansted Airport
consultation on Carbon
submitted by the Assistant resources
Infrastructure,
unlikely to require action
Emissions and Aviation
Director of Planning. No
Transport and Stansted
before Aviation Strategy further activity planned
Airport/Assistant
2050 white paper
until Aviation Strategy
Director of Planning
published.
2050 published.
Progress Update: The Council continues to ensure that it comments on any Government consultations on airport growth and will ensure that such responses
continue to oppose any proposals for a second runway at Stansted Airport.

the Council’s carbon
emissions, including:
Review viability of
replacing Council
vehicles & equipment
with electric alternatives
at end of life.

acquisitions programme
for 21/22
Produce business case
regarding grounds
maintenance equipment
replacement programme
to be completed by Dec 20
Complete

Budget/Assistant
Director of Environment

The new energy
tariff has increased
the budget by £32k.

g (ii). Increase walking,
cycling and sustainable
transport

Introduce EV charging
point provision

Four 22kw fast charging
posts with twin ports at
London Road Council
Offices. Future projects
identified as part of the
Climate Change Action
Plan

£15k in capital
programme for EV
chargers

Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
Infrastructure/Transport identified subject to
and Stansted Airport
general caveat
and Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/Assistant
Director Planning

3

Progress Update: The Council will continue to negotiate new sustainable transport initiatives as part of new developments in the District. We will continue to work
with and press ECC to prioritise Uttlesford in new initiatives for sustainable transport measures in and around the District.

Page

Page 190

Switch to Green Energy
tariff
Progress Update: Green Tariff - In 2018-19 the Council produced 1138 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions from gas and electricity, which represents half of the
Council’s total greenhouse gas emissions. After switching to a green energy tariff, the Council is able to claim 100% reduction (i.e. zero carbon dioxide) from
Electricity and in the case of biogas, a 72% reduction CO2 emissions.
Replacement Vehicles / Equipment - A number of pieces of Grounds Maintenance equipment are being replaced with electrically powered alternatives this
financial year. This will mean that almost all hand held kit is electrically powered reducing fossil fuel usage. Electrically powered equipment also has the benefit of
reducing hand arm vibration levels which significantly reduces the risk to staff of acquiring long conditions such as white finger. Vans within the Grounds
Maintenance team are due for replacement and options for improved environmental performance are currently being investigated. This work has been delayed
slightly by the ongoing disruption / pressures associated with Covid-19.
g (i). Increase walking,
Improve connectivity for S106 contributions and
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
cycling and sustainable
walking and cycling
liaison with ECC to secure
budget.
Infrastructure,
identified subject to
transport
the implementation of
Transport and Stansted general caveat
additional walking and
Airport/ Assistant
cycling facilities.
Director of Planning

Progress Update: Orders have been raised for four electric vehicle charging points at the London Road Offices in Saffron Walden. Once the necessary electrical and
power works have been completed, these charging points will be installed as soon as practically possible. It should be noted that UKPN are experiencing extended
delays during the pandemic, so not exact date as yet can be given.
h. Recognise the district’s
No work is scheduled on
Portfolio Holder for
‘greenest’ businesses and
this item in 20/21
Environment and Green
developers
Issues/ Assistant
Director of Planning
Progress Update: Due to Covid 19, it has not been possible or pragmatic to promote this initiative. This year’s Business Breakfast event was postponed due to
Covid 19 and so it wasn’t even possible to acknowledge the success of our green businesses at that event.
2. Conserve our natural resources
a. Implement and enforce
policies that protect water
and reduce energy
consumption

Include in Climate
Change Action Plan

Detailed proposals to
come from the Climate
Change Action Plan by 31
March 21

Resources identified
as part of the
Climate Change
Action Plan

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/ Assistant
Director of Planning

Include in Climate
Change Action Plan

Detailed proposals to
come from the Climate
Change Action Plan by 31
March 21

Resources identified
as part of the
Climate Change
Action Plan

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/
Director of Public
Services
Progress Update: The Climate Change Strategy to be recommended to Council following the Cabinet meeting on 9 February places emphasis on upgrades to the
electricity distribution network to support electric powered heating and transport rather than on local energy generation.

4

c. Support local energy
production initiatives

Page

Page 191

Progress Update: Policies promoting the more efficient use of water resources has been included in the Climate Change Planning Policies agreed by Cabinet in
February 2021. While these policies are not statutory in planning terms, they will be flagged up to developers as the Council’s expectations in relevant new
developments coming forward in Uttlesford.
b. Drive programmes that
Include in Climate
Detailed proposals to
Resources identified Portfolio Holder for
increase biodiversity
Change Action Plan
come from the Climate
as part of the
Environment and Green
Change Action Plan by 31
Climate Change
Issues/ Assistant
March 21
Action Plan
Director of Planning
Progress Update: Improving and enhancing Uttlesford’s biodiversity forms a key part of the Climate Crisis Strategy. Subsequent actions will be set out in the
emerging Action Plan. Part of this work is likely to require a Biodiversity Action Plan to be prepared for the District.

d. Implement programmes
to reduce single-use
plastics

Alongside the change in waste disposal arrangements, there has been a significant increase in the overall tonnage of waste produced within the community. At
this stage it is not known if this increased level will be a long term change or a response to national lockdowns where more people are working from home and
visiting other places less. It is worth noting that commercial waste has reduced as fewer staff are ‘at work’ across the district’s businesses. As well as increases in
overall waste there has been a noticeable change in waste composition with more cardboard and glass being presented by residents. Again it is not known
whether this is a long term change and this situation is not unique to the Uttlesford District. With that said the Council still ran promotions to encourage waste
minimisation including home composting and used social media channels to push recycling messages alongside well tested methods such as messaging on the sides
of our recycling and waste management fleet.
3. Protect and enhance our rural character and heritage
Explore potential for
PPGs having regard to
the work required and
weight that can be
attached.

Interim Planning Policy
Guidance that sets out the
Council’s expectations for
open and green space
standards by Dec 2020

Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Planning and the Local
Plan/Assistant Director
of Planning

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

5

a. Meet or exceed national
standards for open and
green spaces

Page

Page 192

BAU: opportunities
Portfolio Holder for
will be taken to
Environment and Green
jointly promote
Issues/Assistant
recycling with wider Director Environment
Essex campaigns,
within existing
resources
Progress Update: The Council supported Love Essex initiatives including the Love Essex Plastic Pledge. Information on why plastics are a problem and what
residents can do to reduce their personal usage were promoted via UDC social media releases including during national recycling week. Further examples of
countywide initiative can be found at https://www.loveessex.org/news-and-ideas/ideas-to-help-reduce-your-plastic/
e. Work to reduce perBAU: campaigns will Portfolio Holder for
capita landfill in the district
be run, within
Environment and Green
existing resources
Issues/Assistant
Director of Environment
Progress Update: This target should perhaps be based on reducing the overall volume and weight of all waste collected with particular focus on residual waste. The
Mechanical Biological Treatment facility that was planned to treat all of Essex’s residual waste closed in 2020 and the company that operated the facility went into
administration. Essex County Council, as waste disposal authority, have put in place contingency arrangements to landfill residual waste and are actively working
on a longer term solution. This issue is complicated by contractual obligations and legal action by some parties. As a result the amount of waste landfilled without
treatment increased significantly this year however UDC or any other collection authority is not directly in control of where waste it collects is disposed of.

Page

Page 193

Progress Update: The official reopening of the site delayed due to Covid.
c (ii). Work with others to
Complete LotteryFinal consultant reports
Portfolio Holder for
increase access to the
funded Audience
detailing approaches to
Sports, Leisure,
No further changes
heritage and history of our Development Study and developing and improving
Education and the
identified subject to
district
Options Appraisal for
museum service delivered
Arts/Assistant Director
general caveat
Saffron Walden Museum by 30 November 2020
of Corporate Services
Progress Update: Main work completed – Feasibility Study & Options Appraisal (Fourth Street) completed June 2020 and Audience Development Report (Julia
Holberry Associates) completed December 2020 (public consultation work having been delayed a little by Covid restrictions). Remaining 10% of work is with a fundraising consultant to mentor the Museum’s fundraising committee in producing a fundraising strategy, and supplying an informed short-list of potential funders for
the Museum’s development plan. This work is expected to proceed March – April and there will be an evaluation for NLHF to compete the project. 90% of the NHLF
in total has been drawn down and about 75% of the Museum Society’s contribution (£10,000) to cover project costs.
d. Work with our rural
Include in Climate
Detailed proposals to
Resources identified Portfolio Holder for
partners and developers to Change Action Plan
come from the Climate
as part of the
Environment and Green
maintain habitat and
Change Action Plan by 31
Climate Change
Issues/ Assistant
wildlife corridors
March 21
Action Plan
Director of Planning
Progress Update: The need to protect and enhance the rural environment is incorporated into the Climate Change Planning Policies Guidance agreed by Cabinet in
February 2021. While these policies are not statutory in planning terms, they will be flagged up to developers as the Council’s expectations in relevant new
developments coming forward in Uttlesford. The Council will aim to develop a stronger working relationship with rural business and its representatives, including
the National Farmers Union, to develop initiatives that promote the natural environment as a whole.

6

Progress Update: It has not been possible to prepare Interim Policy Guidance on open space due to other pressing commitments relating to the new Local Plan.
Open and green space standards are key elements of the new local Plan and so policies will be developed as part of its statutory development process. The Council
will support Neighbourhood Plans exploring options for such a policy where the evidence supports this approach.
b. Encourage positive
BAU: heritage
Portfolio Holder for
planning that values and
considerations will
Planning and the Local
protects our heritage
continue, within
Plan/Assistant Director
existing resources
of Planning
Progress Update: The importance of the District’s heritage forms a key element of any discussions and negotiations on new planning applications. The new Local
Plan will develop policies and proposals that will highlight the importance of maintaining or enhancing the heritage as this has already be flagged up by local people
as an important priority for Uttlesford.
c (i). Work with others to
Complete Walden Castle Castle to reopen to the
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
The official reopening of
increase access to the
project
public early summer 2020 resources
Sports, Leisure,
the site was delayed and
heritage and history of our
Education and the Arts
the bookings for this
district
/Assistant Director of IT, summer cancelled due to
Facilities and Assets
Covid.

e. Target littering and flytipping

No proactive work is
scheduled on this item in
20/21

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/ Assistant
Director of Environment
Progress Update: The Council supported initiatives planned by the Cleaner Essex Campaign which is part funded by all District, Borough, City and County Council’s.
The focus of these campaigns was to target littering and fly-tipping.
4. Take strong action on dealing with pollution
a. Increase air quality
monitoring across the
district

Further work is paused
pending the outcome of
the annual report.

b. Deliver reductions in
pollution at identified
problem areas

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/ Assistant
Director of Housing,
Health and
Communities

7

Progress Update: No proactive work was scheduled on this item in 20/21

Page

Page 194

Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Green
Issues/ Assistant
Director of Housing,
Health and
Communities
Progress Update: As AQ monitoring locations increased during 2019/20, there are no plans to extend the monitoring for 20/21. However, a review will occur at the
end of the calendar year and it is proposed that some monitoring locations with consistently good AQ will be moved to other locations.

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2020/21: Annual Progress Report
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and place

Theme 4: Champion for our district
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

One awareness campaign
by March 2021

Within existing
resources

Lead Cabinet Member

Changes due to Covid-19

Develop a
communications plan to
encourage residents to
use the ECC website to
report potholes, footpath
and street light repairs.

Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
Infrastructure,
identified subject to
Transport and
general caveat
Stansted
Airport/Assistant
Director of
Planning/Assistant
Director for Corporate
Services.
Progress Update: Rebuilt and promoted the 'Report a pothole, damaged road or footpath' section on our website to use plain language and clearer signposting to
the Essex Highways site. Further significant re-building of this area of the UDC site is planned to provide a 'one stop shop' area for reporting a wide range of street
issues to both UDC and ECC. New-look website to be promoted across social media and e-newsletter channels to raise awareness of the ways in which residents
can report potholes, footpath and street light repairs. This campaign will be carried out in a concentrated period of activity in the coming weeks, and will
complement the existing/rolling programme of social media activity to highlight the work of Essex Highways (as an example, this includes regular Twitter
shares/likes of Essex Highways work that is carried out in the district).
b. Hold ECC to account:
BAU: We will continue Portfolio Holder for
.
Work with ECC and
to work with (and
Infrastructure,
communities to develop
lobby) ECC colleagues Transport and
the highway
and members in
Stansted
improvement schemes
relation to specific
Airport/Assistant
we need
projects as they arise
Director of Planning
as well as through the
planning application

Page

Page 195

a. Hold ECC to account:
Work to set the agenda
for ECC highway
maintenance and
pothole fixing

1

1. Improve Uttlesford’s connectivity

process and Local Plan
policy development.
Progress Update: The Council continues to liaise with and press ECC to develop high quality highway improvement schemes.
c. Promote and support
BAU: Work can
Portfolio Holder for
sustainable transport
continue through
Infrastructure,
initiatives, such as bus,
lobbying ECC and
Transport and
rapid transport and rail
allocation of existing
Stansted
upgrades
S106 monies to
Airport/Assistant
projects. A
Director of Planning
combination of
existing resources and
members’ efforts will
be involved.
Progress Update: The Council continues to liaise with and press ECC to develop high quality public transport initiatives in and around Uttlesford.
Portfolio Holder for
Infrastructure,
Transport and
Stansted
Airport/Assistant
Director of Planning
Progress Update: The Council continues to work closely with ECC to lobby Highways England regarding the capacity and safety of the M11. Officers have a
commitment to hold regular meetings with Highways England as part of the new local plan process to ensure that this key piece of infrastructure is maintained and
improved to sustain growth in Uttlesford and the region as a whole.
e. Work with ECC and
Monitor the progress of
Target is 4,627 premises
£500,000 UDC grant
Portfolio Holder for
The delivery programme
hold them to account to the delivery by Superfast
where full fibre
Monitor progress
Infrastructure,
has been affected but the
deliver rural superfast
Essex and the provider
broadband service has
within existing
Transport and
timescales included factor
broadband in our
been installed and is ready resources
Stansted
that in
district
for service by Dec 2021.
Airport/Assistant
Half yearly reports will
Director of Planning
identify progress.
Progress Update: The Council continues to press both Superfast Essex and Gigaclear to ensure delivery of superfast broadband across the whole of Uttlesford.
Some delivery targets have been missed by Gigaclear in the past and so a new Recovery Plan has been demanded to demonstrate how it proposes to meet its
objectives in a timely way.
2. Support our students, schools and libraries

2

BAU: Liaison with the
Consortium will
continue, within
existing resources

Page

Page 196

d. Lobby Highways
England to improve the
capacity and safety of
the M11

a. Conduct a wholesale
review of school
transport to understand
the gap in provision of
what ECC provides
Progress Update: No work is scheduled on this priority for 20/21

Portfolio Holder for
Infrastructure,
Transport and
Stansted Airport

Further develop the
activities of the
Community Safety Hub

Targets identified in the
work plans

£20,000 plus existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Communities /
Assistant Director of

No further changes
identified subject to
general caveat

3

b. Continue to be an
active partner of the

Page

Page 197

b. Ensure that developer
BAU: There is a
Portfolio Holder for
contributions are
process for identifying Planning and the Local
collected for ECC to
and collecting s106
Plan/Assistant Director
provide our local school
contributions, within
of Planning
and Early Years places
existing resources
Progress Update: The Council works closely with ECC to ensure that all monies required for educational purposes are secured through the appropriate S106s.
c. Create and support
Portfolio Holder for
new services inside our
Sport, Leisure,
libraries to increase
Education and the
their viability
Arts/ Assistant
Director of Housing,
Health and
Communities
Progress Update: No work is scheduled on this priority for the 20/21 year.
3. Work with partners to keep the district safe
a. Work with the Police, Work with partners to
Achievement of targets
Within existing
Portfolio Holder for
No further changes
Fire and Crime
produce the annual
and milestones as
resources
Communities/Assistant identified subject to
Commissioner and
Strategic Assessment
detailed in the specific
Director for Housing
general caveat
Chief Constable to
action plans and reported
and Environmental
reduce crime on our
Deliver identified priorities in the annual report
Health
area
of the Strategic
Assessment
Progress Update: The Strategic Assessment has been completed and will be signed off at the CSP meeting in March. It has been difficult to complete all of the
projects under the priorities due to Lockdown and the inability to be working in our communities, however a report will be completed at the end of the financial
year for the PFCC detailing the work that has taken place.

Community Safety
Partnership

Housing, Health and
Communities

Work with partner
agencies within the
Community Safety
Partnership to reduce and
prevent crime and antisocial behaviour

BAU: Work towards
the ICP will continue,
within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for
Housing, Youth and
Health / Assistant
Director of Housing,
Health and
Communities
Progress Update: Much of this work to include partners was delayed by Health colleagues due to the pandemic. The Health and Wellbeing Manager will be
attending ICP meetings to begin in March. Close working with our CCG partners and our PH colleagues continues and the Communities Health and Wellbeing
Manager is a member of the Health inequalities committee.
b. Work to secure
BAU: Work towards
Portfolio Holder for
Addenbrooke’s, The
the ICP will continue,
Housing, Youth and
Princess Alexandra
within existing
Health / Assistant
Harlow, and Mid-Essex
resources
Director of Housing,
hospitals as our
Health and
recognised local
Communities
hospital providers

4

a. Work with NHS on indistrict local healthcare
provision

Page

Page 198

Continue partnership
working with town
councils, parish councils
and the PCSOs to address
the fear of crime.
Progress Update: The Community Safety Hub was not able to meet on a regular basis at the beginning of the pandemic as the Community Safety team were
involved in setting up and running the Community Response Hub, however there were regular calls to our police colleagues and telephone conversations took
place with partners when necessary. During the easing of restrictions, a virtual hub was created for all partners and this takes place on a fortnightly basis. There is
also a dedicated time for any Parish or Town Council to contact the hub with any problems /queries concerning Crime and Disorder.
4. Work to create a better local Health Service for residents

Progress Update: Much of this work to include partners was delayed by Health colleagues due to the pandemic. The Health and Wellbeing Manager will be
attending ICP meetings to begin in March. Close working with our CCG partners and our PH colleagues continues and the Communities Health and Wellbeing
Manager is a member of the Health inequalities committee.
c. Deliver programmes
Overlaps with 8a: Active
Portfolio Holder for
Work to support older
to support our ageing
Place maker for our towns
Housing, Youth and
residents will continue in
population
and villages
Health / Assistant
new/different formats, as
Director of Housing,
required by Covid19
Health and
practices, as set out in the
Communities
HWB plan, within existing
resources.
Progress Update: Work through the Community Response hub has led naturally to supporting the older residents of the District. Although not limited to, a huge
amount of work has taken place around the Clinically Extremely vulnerable and those that needed to self-isolate, facilitating prescription deliveries, befriending,
shopping. Strong links have been made with volunteer groups across the District which will strengthen when we are working back within our communities
Unfortunately due to COVID 19 restrictions there has not been the ability to run/commission group activities that have been identified through the Health and
Wellbeing Board however they will be taken forward once lockdown has been lifted and restrictions eased. The hub work has allowed us to identify gaps in
provision for residents including our elderly and this will be reflected in the Health and Wellbeing strategy going forward.

Page

5

Page 199

Agenda Item 12
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22

Tuesday, 9 March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor Neil Reeve, Portfolio Holder for the
Economy, Investment and Corporate Strategy

Report
Author:

Dawn French, Chief Executive

Key Decision:

dfrench@uttlesford.gov.uk

No

Tel: 01799 510400
Summary
1. Council approved a revised corporate plan for 2021-2025 at its meeting on 23
February 2021.
2. Attached to this report is the corporate plan delivery plan for 2021/22 to detail
how the ambitions set out in the corporate plan will be advanced during the
financial year 2021/22.
Recommendations
3. To approve the corporate plan delivery plan 2021/22, as set out in appendices
A-D.
Financial Implications
4. The financial implications are referenced in the corporate plan delivery plan.
Background Papers
5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
None
Impact
6.
Communication/Consultation

Consultation specific to projects within the
delivery plan will be undertaken as
necessary.

Community Safety

Community safety projects are identified
within the delivery plan.

Equalities

Work arising from the recently approved

Page 200

equality policy is referenced in the plan
Health and Safety

Any health and safety implications resulting
from actions or projects in the delivery plan
will the subject of appropriate risk
assessments, where necessary.

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Any human rights or legal implications
arising from individual projects within the
delivery plan will be assessed and
addressed.

Sustainability

Sustainability is a key focus of the plan.

Ward-specific impacts

Any ward specific issues arising from
individual projects within the delivery plan
will be identified.

Workforce/Workplace

The Corporate Plan Delivery Plan details
the priorities and expectations of members
and will enable staff to be more confident in
delivery of services. Any workforce
implications arising from individual projects
within the delivery plan will be assessed
and addressed.

Situation
7. The Corporate Plan 2021 – 2025 was adopted by Full Council at its meeting
on 23 February 2021. The vision for the council (Making Uttlesford the best
place to live, work and play) remained unchanged as did the four priorities:
- Putting residents first
- Active place-maker for our towns and villages
- Progressive custodian of our rural environment
- Championing our District
8. There was one minor change to the body of the corporate plan which replaced
the focus on the youth council with a wider focus on providing opportunities for
young people.
9. The Corporate Plan Delivery Plan (CPDP), attached at appendices A-D,
details how the ambitions set out in the corporate plan will be advanced during
the financial year 2021/22.
10. Mindful of previous feedback from the Scrutiny Committee regarding the
specific targets or outputs or deadlines, these are referenced where known.
There are some projects which are not yet sufficiently advanced to be able to
specify such criteria and the reasons for that are explained in the text of the
delivery plan.

Page 201

11. It has to be recognised that delivery of the plan will still be subject to a general
caveat that resources may need to be diverted during the year to respond to
pandemic related activities e.g. supporting a booster vaccination campaign in
the autumn.
12. In addition to the general caveat above, it is recognised that there is an
ongoing requirement to dedicate some resources to the pandemic response
and which is therefore unavailable to be allocated to the routine work of the
council or the Administration’s priorities. This includes support for testing and
vaccination programmes, contact tracing, support to residents needing
additional help through the Community Hub and the administration of a range
of grants to businesses affected by the Government’s restrictions.
13. Also, members will be aware that in some parts of the organisation there has
been a significant growth in demand for our routine services such as
homelessness, benefits and business advice and enforcement.
14. Finally, in relation to the availability of resources to deliver the CPDP 21/22,
members should have regard to the impact of the major transformation
programme, Uttlesford Moving Forward (UMF) which relates to the
organisation’s future ways of working and which is not referred to in the CPDP;
this will require significant senior management time to lead the change
programme, the resources of parts of the organisation such as Asset
Management, Human Resources, IT and Customer Services and the ‘space’
for all staff to engage and contribute.
15. Even having regard to the context explained in paragraphs 13-15 above, the
CPDP 21/22 sets out a significant level of ambition with targets that are
realistic and achievable.
Feedback from Scrutiny
16. The meeting of Scrutiny to feedback on the CPDP 21/22 is to be held following
the publication of the agenda for Cabinet.
17. A verbal report will be provided to Cabinet on the feedback of the Scrutiny
Committee which will meet on Thursday 4 March.
Risk Analysis
18.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

The Delivery Plan
cannot be
delivered

2

4

The plan reflects the
current and
reasonably anticipated
position of the
organisation. It will be
monitored regularly by

Page 202

Cabinet
The Delivery Plan
actions do not
further the
Council’s
priorities as
intended

1

4

Actions have been
selected that are
considered most
appropriate to support
the Council’s
priorities; evaluation
will be ongoing to
reflect on whether the
outputs achieve the
outcomes expected

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 203

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22 Cabinet 9 March 2021
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play
Putting Residents First
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Planning Advisory Service
(PAS) final report to Scrutiny
by 30 June 2021

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

BAU: Continuous
improvement, within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for Council and
Public Services/Assistant Director
of Corporate Services

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Communities,
Youth, Public Safety and the Police
and Fire Service Liaison / Assistant
Director of Housing, Health and
Communities

1. Be a council that listens to and acts for residents

Page 204

a. Increase the voice and
influence of residents in
planning and other Council
matters

Review the Scrutiny
Committee’s findings (when
received) regarding major
planning applications and
planning obligations,
pending completion of
EELGA review

Planning Obligations final
report to Scrutiny by 30 June
2021

b. Administer public
consultations that are
effective, accessible, timely
and high quality

c. Provide opportunities for
young people

Provide positive
opportunities for young
people to engage with their
local community and do
things that keep them safe,
and support improved
mental wellbeing.

As a result of the recent
change to the Corporate
Plan to expand the scope,
the details of what is to be
provided, when, etc. have
not yet been scoped. The
plan will evolve as the

Putting Residents First
We Will:

d. Improve the council’s use of
the web and social media to
increase communication with
residents

Page 205
e. Actively and positively
engage with and listen to our
town and parish councils

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Work with Town and Parish
Councils, voluntary sector
partners, county youth
service and schools etc. to
encourage youth
participation in the
community.

Covid19 related restrictions
ease over time

To provide enhanced
customer contact
opportunities including selfservice facilities at remote
site and extended opening
hours through the
introduction of ‘live chat’

Public launch of live chat
facility by 31 August 2021 as
part of Uttlesford Moving
Forward

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Council and
Public Services/Assistant Director
of Corporate Services

BAU: The Local Councils’
Liaison Forum is now well
embedded as is the Planning
Forum with Town and Parish
Councils. Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for Communities,
Youth, Public Safety and the Police
and Fire Service Liaison /Chief
Executive

As part of Uttlesford Moving
Forward, a review of selfservice facilities for
customers will be
undertaken. The detailed
project plan is not yet
complete to expand on
precise timing of the review.

Putting Residents First
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

f. Support town and parish
councils to better represent
their communities

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

BAU: EALC regularly attend
the Local Councils’ Liaison
Forum and provide
presentations on best
practice. Within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for Communities,
Youth, Public Safety and the Police
and Fire Service Liaison /Chief
Executive

2. Deliver local government with outstanding levels of transparency and accountability

Page 206

a. Implement a corporate
change programme to
increase accountability,
transparency and democracy
at the Council

Complete work of
Governance Working Group
to review current and
possible future governance
structure

This action falls to the
working group of council;
any actions arising for
Cabinet will be detailed at
the appropriate time. GRWG
are aiming to present a
report of their findings to
Council by 31 July 2021

Within existing resources

Leader/Chief Executive

Planning Committee working
group to review
arrangements for start time
and/or geographical location
of applications (north
committee/south
committee)

Review completed.
Recommendations to be
considered and adopted
when possible post COVID

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Implement delivery of
Equalities Policy

Local Government Equality
Framework level 1 to be
achieved by 31 March 22

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues; Equalities
/ Assistant Director of Housing,
Health and Communities

Putting Residents First
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

b. Seek external review of and
recognition for positive
change achieved by the
Council

Planning Advisory Service
reviewing the process of
major planning applications

Action plans to be developed Within existing resources and
once the outcomes of the
pending completion of EELGA
review have been presented review
to Scrutiny Committee by 30
June 2021

c. Deliver a comprehensive
continuing member
development programme

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer
Portfolio Holder for Planning and
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Page 207

BAU: opportunities for
further development
continue to be identified
within existing resources

Leader/Chief Executive

Within existing resources

Portfolio holder for the Economy
and Investment/
Director of Finance and Corporate
Services/Assistant Director of IT,
Facilities and Assets

3. Be responsible with your money and mitigate the impact of government cuts
a. Be a self-sufficient Council
that generates its own
resources from local taxation
(Business Rates and Council
Tax) and commercial
investments thereby removing
the reliance on Central
Government grants

To actively source
commercial investments to
support the council revenue
streams

Complete the commercial
investment portfolio of
£300m, by end 2021/22.

Strengthen the governance
of the Council’s investment
management to ensure it
meets the objectives of the
commercial strategy

Quarterly reports to the
Investment Board
Development of a business
plan for the portfolio as a
whole and each asset
individually by 31 December
2021
Development of an
Investment Protocol, to
include ethical criteria for
future acquisitions by 30
June 2021

Putting Residents First
We Will:
b. Deliver cost-effective and
efficient services that live
within the Council’s means

c. Constantly seek to improve
the quality of contracted out
services
d. Apply for all relevant grants

Page 208

e. Set a Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) to
fund council services by a
prudent mix of investment,
services and tax income, while
maintaining adequate
reserves
f. Follow best-practices for
investment risk management
and board composition

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

BAU: The budgets are
regularly monitored and
managed in light of the
reduced revenue and
additional costs. Within
existing resources
BAU: Contract monitoring is
used to assure service
quality, within existing
resources
BAU: grant applications are
made regularly subject to the
criteria, work required and
likelihood of success, within
existing resources
BAU: a MTFS that reflects the
ambitions of the Council and
the resources available to it is
produced at least annually.
Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Finance and
Budget/Assistant Director of
Resources

BAU: Regular review of the
Commercial Strategy enables
latest best practice to be
reflected in the working of
the council , within existing
resources

Portfolio holder for the Economy
and Investment /Director of
Finance and Corporate
Services/Assistant Director of ICT
and Facilities

Portfolio Holder for Council and
Public Services/CMT

Portfolio Holder for Finance and
Budget/Assistant Director of
Resources

Portfolio Holder for Finance and
Budget/Assistant Director of
Resources

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22 Cabinet 9 March 2021
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play
Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Achieve milestones for
21/22 in new Local
Development Scheme (LDS)

Within resources currently
allocated. Further resources
to be considered and
possibly allocated –
subsequent to review by and
advice from EELGA

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Final report conclusions by
30 April 2021
Improvement plan to be
approved by 31 July 2021

£240k ongoing allocated.
Further ongoing resources
may be requested –
subsequent to review by and
advice from EELGA but this
will need to be considered in
light of the overall MTFS.

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Support for 8
neighbourhood plans
already underway.

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

1. Masterplan our new communities for and with residents
a. Use Locally Led
Development Corporations to
deliver sustainable new
settlements

Continue work on a new
Local Plan.

Page 209

b. Provide the greatest level of
influence and protection for
communities adjacent to new
settlements

2. Support our towns and villages to plan their neighbourhoods
a. Deliver an outstanding
planning and place-making
capability with the right
capacity to create quality
outcomes with and for all our
communities

b. Facilitate Neighbourhood
Planning across the district
through strong engagement

External reviews of preapplication processes,
potential of planning
obligations and engagement
of town and parish councils
and wider organisational
review of the planning
function
Officers to work pro-actively
with Parishes to encourage
more Neighbourhood Plans
to be instigated and

Neighbourhood planning
groups are encouraged to

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages

Page 210

We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

with and support of all town
and parish councils

subsequently “made” to help
communities shape their
own areas.

use resources of RCCE,
LOCALITY

c. Implement policies which
create better homes and
neighbourhoods that meet or
exceed national standards
d. Work with partners and
stakeholders to deliver new
sports, play and community
facilities

Policies to be developed
through the Local Plan
process

Facilitate workshop(s) for
areas not yet commenced.
Other NHP groups to
promote benefits
Timescales incorporated in
the Local Development
Scheme

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Policies to be developed
through the Local Plan
process

Timescales incorporated in
the Local Development
Scheme

Within existing Resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Develop the programme for
enabling the provision of
large scale new and
enhanced sports facilities
across the district

Conclude the 21/22
application process by 30
June 21
Review and evaluate
applications by 30 Sept 21
Award decision by 31 Oct 21
Continuous monitoring of
awarded grants

£150,000 in 2021/22

Portfolio Holder for Sports, Leisure,
Education and the Arts / Assistant
Director of of Housing, Health and
Communities

3. Secure greater benefits for our community from new development
a. Implement the Community
Infrastructure Levy along with
s106 to deliver strategic
community projects and
greater local benefit from
development

No work is scheduled on this
priority for 21/22

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages

Page 211

We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

b. Increase the transparency of
the Section-106 Agreement
process and councillor
engagement

Review the Scrutiny
Committee’s findings
regarding major planning
applications and planning
obligations

Planning Obligations report
to be presented to Scrutiny
by 30 June 2021.

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Engage with ward members
and Parishes in relevant preapplication discussions to
ensure that the local
community’s aspirations are
considered from the outset
in all larger planning
applications (though may not
always be deliverable).

Conclude the work with
SWTC on a draft framework
for local council liaison in
planning matters; extend the
engagement to all local
councils based on the
framework by 31 March 22.

BAU: Work will continue in
accordance with
enforcement policy and
pending completion of
EELGA review (as above)
BAU: Standard conditions
are applied and monitored
within existing resources;
further recommendations
may arise from the EELGA
review

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

c. Ensure that strong Planning
Enforcement holds developers
to account

d. Require developers to be
considerate of the
communities in which they
build

Portfolio Holder for Planning and
the Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

BAU: respond to proposed
changes within existing
resources

Portfolio holder for Transport,
Infrastructure and Stansted
Airport/ Assistant Director Planning

Within existing resources

Portfolio holder for Transport,
Infrastructure and Stansted
Airport/ Assistant Director Planning

BAU: Participation in
Stansted Area Transport
forum work will continue
within existing resources.

Portfolio holder for Transport,
Infrastructure and Stansted
Airport/ Assistant Director Planning

4. Work with the airport on issues of concern to communities
a. Seek a reduction in night
flights

b. Implement programmes to
reduce airport related village
fly-parking

Page 212
c. Work to secure investment
in sustainable transport to and
from airport, including for
local workers

Receive the
recommendations from the
Scrutiny Committee Task and
Finish Group into fly parking

Final report of the T&F
Group has been delayed.
Cabinet will respond when
the work is complete and
further reviewed in light of
the impact on travel of the
Covid19 pandemic and
continuing emphasis on
sustainable transport in light
of the climate crisis.

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Within existing resources,
including £355,000 allocated
to the Business Recovery
Fund for 2021/22

Portfolio holder for the Economy
and Investment, Portfolio Holder
for Infrastructure, Transport and
Stansted Airport / Assistant
Director Planning

5. Nurture employment and retail areas to create jobs and retain businesses
An Economic Development Recovery Plan 2020-2023 was
approved by Council in Dec 2020. The elements of the main
themes of the plan will be delivered according to this plan in
2021/22. The main themes are:
1. Business Engagement and Support
2. Information, Advice and Guidance
3. Skills and Training
4. Creating Jobs / Inward Investment

Project management to be
jointly procured through the
North Essex Economic Board

Page 213

Inward investment work
jointly commissioned
through the Innovation
Corridor Core group

a. Protect and grow our town
centres as economic hubs
b. Increase tourist spend
c. Support the creation of
amenities that stimulate and
facilitates local businesses,
such as enterprise zones,
business parks, office blocks,
industrial areas, and start-up
hubs
d. Support the expansion and
promotion of key relevant
employment sectors for the
district

See above
See above
See above

See above

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

e. Work with partners to
promote the economic
opportunities of the London Cambridge Innovation
Corridor, Stansted Airport and
our main transport corridors
f. Work with the airport to
increase local airport-based
employment opportunities

See above

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

BAU: Regulatory standards
are applied, and enforced
where necessary, in
accordance with the
enforcement policy, within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Council and
Public Services/Assistant Director
of Housing, Health and
Communities

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

See above

6. Enforce good business standards in our district

Page 214

a. Make sure that businesses
and trades in our district meet
the national standards and
licensing required of them

7. Deliver more affordable homes and protect those in need in our district
a. Increase the number of
affordable homes delivered
and different tenure options
including social renting

Develop a new Housing
Strategy and supporting
policies that details how the
Council will develop, acquire
and enable the supply of
affordable housing

New Housing Strategy
adopted by 31 December
2021 (due to limitations on
consultation events)

Develop a new Housing
Revenue Account (HRA)
Business Plan that confirms
the capacity of borrowing

New HRA Business Plan
adopted by 30 Sept 2021

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

through the HRA for the
delivery of new council
housing (including use of
commuted sums, Right to
Buy (RTB) receipts, loans and
innovative funding models)

Delivery of 43 new homes in
21/22
Progress 63 new homes to
planning permission stage in
21/22
Continue to identify
opportunities for further
provision

Page 215

Regularly engage with local
registered providers on their
affordable housing delivery
and identify barriers to
further development, Ensure
appropriate schemes deliver
the required 40% affordable
homes

This forms part of the BAU of
the Housing and Planning
Services

Incentivise community-led
housing programmes to
increase the number of
Community Land Trusts
(CLTs) across the District,
particularly within rural
communities

Actions to be included in the
Housing Strategy (31 Dec 21)

Explore Homes England (HE)
grant opportunities as they
become available

HE Grants applied for as
applicable to qualifying
schemes

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

b. Refurbish our existing
council homes to sustainable
standards when required

Continue with estate
renewal and regeneration
programmes whilst reducing
the carbon footprint of those
homes

Awaiting details of future
grant provision from BEIS for
21/22

Page 216

c. Reduce the number of
empty homes

Improve home energy
efficiency across the
Council’s housing stock
Develop an Empty Homes
Strategy

d. Ensure that landlords
maintain high quality private
sector housing conditions

Review assistance available
for landlords, including
empty property owners

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/ Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

New Empty Homes Strategy
adopted by 31 March 2022

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

Revision of
Housing Renewals
Assistance Policy by 31
March 2022

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

BAU – support is delivered
and monitored under
existing framework, within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/ Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

Within existing resources
plus Public Health Grant
funding

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health/Portfolio Holder for
Communities / Assistant Director
of Housing, Health and
Communities

e. Ensure that services to
protect vulnerable women and
men who live in our district are
accessible and appropriate
8. Promote healthy lifestyles in diverse and inclusive communities
a. Work with partners,
including the voluntary sector,
to improve the general quality
of life for residents, including
for residents that experience

Deliver recommendations of
the Uttlesford Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Identified recommendations
of the Uttlesford Health and
Wellbeing Strategy
implemented

Active place maker for our Towns and Villages
We Will:
social isolation, poor mental
health, obesity, addiction and
dementia

Page 217

b. Continue to be an active
partner of the Health and
Wellbeing Partnership, to
promote healthy lifestyles

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead CM/ Officer

BAU: support is provided to
the voluntary sector through
the extensive grants
programme, within existing
resources
BAU: Various parish councilorganised civic pride events
are supported within the
existing resources
BAU: The Council will
continue to be an active
partner of the Health and
Wellbeing Partnership

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health / Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22 Cabinet 9 March 2021
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play
Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member

1. Take action on Climate Change

Page 218

a. Adopt policies to meet new
environmental national
guidelines/standards as they
emerge

Develop a Climate Crisis
Action Plan, prioritised by
impact, cost, and
deliverability.

Action Plan to be developed
by 30 Sept 2021

Officer time in 2021/22.
Funding allocated for the
plan actions of £333K for
21/22

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues /Assistant Director
of Planning

b. Drive policies to deliver low
carbon buildings

Implement policies that
reduce the carbon footprint
of new development

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Crisis
Action Plan (30 Sept 2021)

Within existing officer
resources

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues /Assistant Director
of Planning

c. Improve average energy
efficiency of Council housing
stock

To be included in the
Review of HRA business
plan

Measurable improvement in
energy efficiency of housing
stock.

Within existing officer
resources and subject to
BEIS grants

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health / Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

Climate Change Budget

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues /Assistant Director
of Planning

BAU: Any policy proposals
that might signal potential
increase in runway capacity

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted

d. Increase the number of
trees in the district (and
protect existing trees).

e. Oppose a second runway at
Stansted Airport

Introduce a tree planting
initiative in partnership
with town and parish
councils

Details to be included in the
HRA business plan to be
developed by 30 Sept 21
Detailed proposals to be
included in Climate Crisis
Action Plan (30 Sept 2021)

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member

will be reported to
members

Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning
Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/Portfolio Holder
for Finance and Budget/Assistant
Director of Environmental Services

Page 219

f. Set a Net Zero Carbon goal
In making every policy
for the Council and implement decision, consider the
supporting policies
opportunity to reduce the
Council’s carbon emissions,
including:

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Crisis
Action Plan (30 Sept 2021)

Part of Climate Change
Budget

Review viability of replacing
Council vehicles &
equipment with electric
alternatives at end of life.

Review capital programme
to consider vehicle
replacement and
acquisitions programme
ahead of budget setting for
2022/23.

Within existing resources

All handheld petrol driven
council equipment (such as
strimmer’s), will transition
to electric; 50 separate
items of equipment by 31
Dec 2021.

Existing equipment budget

Conduct a study to
investigate the feasibility of
Electric Shuttle Buses for
Saffron Walden and
Dunmow by 31 Dec 2021

Climate Change budget

Explore the option of
hydrotreated vegetable oil

£45,000 for the installation
of suitable fuel tanks

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/Assistant Director

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

(HVO) as an alternative to
diesel for the Council fleet. If
feasible implement by 31
December 2021

Lead Member
of ICT and Facilities/Assistant
Director of Environmental Services

Within existing budget
Optimise the environmental
opportunities at Little
Canfield Business Park
(LCBP)

Install a new vehicle
washdown facility that
recycles 90% of the water
used
Within existing budget

Page 220

Install PV panels on the
vehicle workshop
g. Increase walking, cycling
and sustainable transport

Improve connectivity for
walking and cycling

Leverage
S106 contributions and
liaison with ECC to secure
the implementation of
additional walking and
cycling facilities.

Within existing budget.

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted Airport/
Assistant Director of Planning

Introduce EV charging point
provision

Four 22kw fast charging
posts with twin ports at
London Road Council Offices
by 30 Sept 21.
Twelve 7kw charging posts
across three car park sites
(Chequers Lane, White
Street, Crafton Green) by 30
Sept 21
Four 7kw charging points at
LCBP by 31 October 2021

Resources identified as part
of the Climate Change
Budget (and £15k capital
programme and external
grant funding)

Portfolio Holder for
Infrastructure/Transport and
Stansted Airport and Portfolio
Holder for Environment and Green
Issues/Assistant Director ICT and
Facilities

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

h. Recognise the district’s
‘greenest’ businesses and
developers

No proactive work is
scheduled on this item in
2021/22

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member
Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Planning

2. Conserve our natural resources
a. Implement and enforce
policies that protect water
and reduce energy
consumption

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Crisis
Action Plan (30 Sept 21)

Engage in Water Resources
East’s work on developing
projects with the water
industry to address over
abstraction of the chalk
aquifer and protect the
district’s chalk streams

The details of precisely what
action might be required by
UDC is not yet clear;
engaging with WRE is the
preliminary stage

b. Drive programmes that
increase biodiversity

Include in Climate Change
Action Plan

c. Support local energy
production initiatives

Develop local energy
production initiatives

Page 221

Include in Climate Change
Action Plan

Resources identified as part
of the Climate Change
Budget

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Planning

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Change
Action Plan Sept 21

Resources identified as part
of the Climate Change
Budget

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Planning

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Crisis
Action Plan Sept 21

Resources identified as part
of the Climate Change
Budget

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/Director of
Corporate Services

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
Activities

Outputs/Milestones

d. Implement programmes to
reduce single-use plastics

Develop the Chair’s Charter
to promote reduction in
single use plastics and
carbon footprint

The details are still being
worked up but will initially
focus on residents and
communities.
The intended roll out to
schools and then businesses
will need to be timed to
ensure that they are able to
engage fully in this
promotion having regard to
the pandemic related issues
they will be managing for
most of this year In addition
it should be recognised that
some businesses will have
the added burden of new
trading arrangements with
the EU.

Page 222

We Will:

e. Work to reduce per-capita
landfill in the district

Resources

Lead Member
Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/Assistant Director
Environment

BAU: campaigns will be run,
within existing resources,
including Love food Hate
waste campaign and Keep
Britain Tidy National Litter
Pick (11th-27th September
2021)

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/Assistant Director
of Environment

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member

Timescales incorporated in
the Local Development
Scheme

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and the
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

BAU: heritage
considerations will
continue, within existing
resources pending
completion of EELGA review
Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and the
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

3. Protect and enhance our rural character and heritage
a. Meet or exceed national
standards for open and green
spaces

Policies to be developed
through the Local Plan
process

b. Encourage positive
planning that values and
protects our heritage

Page 223

c. Work with others to
increase access to the
heritage and history of our
district

Walden Castle project

Castle to reopen to the
public early summer 2021
(Subject to Covid19
restrictions)

Saffron Walden Museum
improvements

Completion of National
Lottery Heritage Fund
Resilient Heritage Project by
30 April 21
Completion of Fund-raising
Strategy and Forward Plan
for selected development
option by 31 October 21
Fund-raising and new
approach to National Lottery
Heritage Fund for significant
Heritage Grant Stage 1
application by 31 March 22.

Portfolio Holder for Sports, Leisure,
Education and the Arts/Assistant
Director of Corporate
Services/Assistant Director of IT,
Facilities and Assets

Progressive Custodian of our Rural Environment
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Member

Resources identified as part
of the Climate Change
Budget

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Planning

BAU: Through the Cleaner
Essex Group and KBT we
continually promote
initiatives to help combat or
clean up littering which
remains an issue within the
district.

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Environment

BAU: continuous automatic
monitors continue and Air
Quality Annual Status
Report will be published in
30 June 21

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Housing, Health and Communities

Note: New grant scheme
about to be rolled out so
details of specific
requirements uncertain at
this stage.

Page 224

d. Work with our rural
partners and developers to
maintain habitat and wildlife
corridors
e. Target littering and flytipping

Detailed proposals to come
from the Climate Crisis
Action Plan (Sept 21)

4. Take strong action on dealing with pollution
a. Increase air quality
monitoring across the district

b. Deliver reductions in
pollution at identified
problem areas

No proactive work is
scheduled on this item in
2021/22

Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Green Issues/ Assistant Director
of Housing, Health and Communities

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2021/22 Cabinet 9 March 2021
Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play
Champion for our District
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Cabinet Member

a. Hold ECC to account: Work
to set the agenda for ECC
highway maintenance and
pothole fixing

BAU: Promotion of links to
services and responsibilities
of ECC, as well as reporting
mechanisms for potholes,
footpaths, pavements and
street light repairs, within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted
Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning/Assistant Director for
Corporate Services

b. Work with ECC and
communities to develop the
highway improvement
schemes we need

BAU: We will continue to
work with (and lobby) ECC
colleagues and members in
relation to specific projects
as they arise as well as
through the planning
application process and Local
Plan policy development.
Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted
Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning

c. Hold ECC to account to
deliver what they promise

BAU: Through regular
contact with officers and
members at ECC, ensure that
delivery in Uttlesford is as
expected; seek the support
of Scrutiny Committee
where significant underperformance

1. Improve Uttlesford’s connectivity

Page 225

Champion for our District
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Lead Cabinet Member

d. Promote and support
sustainable transport
initiatives, such as bus, rapid
transport and rail upgrades

BAU: Work can continue
through lobbying ECC and
allocation of existing S106
monies to projects. A
combination of existing
resources and members’
efforts will be involved.

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted
Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning

e. Lobby Highways England
to improve the capacity and
safety of the M11

BAU: Within existing
resources
Dialogue with Strategic
partners, Transport East and
the UK Innovation Corridor
through the Strategic
Infrastructure Group will
continue to seek
improvements
Monitor progress within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted
Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning

Page 226

Resources

f. Work with ECC and hold
them to account to deliver
rural superfast broadband in
our district

Monitor the progress of the
delivery by Superfast Essex
and the provider

Target is 4,627 premises
where full fibre broadband
service has been installed
and is ready for service by 31
Dec 2021. Half yearly reports
will identify progress

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted
Airport/Assistant Director of
Planning

2. Support our students, schools and libraries
a. Conduct a wholesale
review of school transport to
understand the gap in
provision of what ECC
provides

No work is scheduled on this
priority for 20/21

Portfolio Holder for Infrastructure,
Transport and Stansted Airport

Champion for our District
We Will:

Activities

b. Ensure that developer
contributions are collected
for ECC to provide our local
school and Early Years places
c. Create and support new
services inside our libraries to
increase their viability

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Cabinet Member

BAU: There is a process for
identifying and collecting
s106 contributions, within
existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Planning and the
Local Plan/Assistant Director of
Planning

No work is scheduled on this
priority on 21/22.

Portfolio Holder for Sport, Leisure,
Education and the Arts/ Assistant
Director of Housing, Health and
Communities

3. Work with partners to keep the district safe

Page 227

a. Work with the Police, Fire
and Crime Commissioner
and Chief Constable to
reduce crime on our area

b. Continue to be an active
partner of the Community
Safety Partnership

BAU: Work is undertaken
with partners to produce the
annual Strategic Assessment
and deliver identified
priorities; targets and
milestones are contained in
the specific action plans and
reported in an annual report.
Within existing resources
BAU: Work is undertaken
with partner agencies within
the Community Safety
Partnership to reduce and
prevent crime and anti-social
behaviour; this includes
partnership working with
local councils and the PCSOs
to address the fear of crime.
Targets are identified in the
work plans
Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Communities
Youth, Public Safety and the Police
and Fire Service Liaison/Assistant
Director for Housing and
Environmental Health

Portfolio Holder for Communities
Youth, Public Safety and the Police
and Fire Service Liaison / Assistant
Director of Housing, Health and
Communities

Champion for our District
We Will:

Activities

Outputs/Milestones

Resources

Lead Cabinet Member

a. Work with NHS on indistrict local healthcare
provision

BAU: Work towards the
Integrated Care Partnership
will continue, within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Health / Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

b. Work to secure
Addenbrookes, The Princess
Alexandra Harlow, and MidEssex hospitals as our
recognised local hospital
providers

BAU: Work towards the
Integrated Care Partnership
will continue, within existing
resources

Portfolio Holder for Housing, Youth
and Health / Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

Within existing resources

Portfolio Holder for Council and
Public Services/ Assistant Director of
Housing, Health and Communities

4. Work to create a better local Health Service for residents

Page 228

c. Deliver programmes to
support our ageing
population

Review of community services
to meet the needs of
residents, including older
people

As a result of the recent
discussions on establishing a
Cabinet task and finish group
to support the Cabinet
Member to undertake the
review, the details have not
yet been scoped.

Agenda Item 13
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Carver Barracks Running Track - Extension to
Longstop Date

Tuesday, 9 March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor Armstrong, Portfolio Holder for
Sports and Leisure

Report
Author:

Adrian Webb, Director - Finance and
Corporate Services

Key decision:
No

awebb@uttlesford.gov.uk
Tel: 01799 510421
Summary
1. This report seeks to extend the practical completion date of the running track
project from 31 March 2021 to 31 December 2021.
Recommendations
2. That the Longstop date for the project is revised to 31 December 2021
Financial Implications
3. None relating to this extension of date.
Background Papers
4. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
The Carver Barracks running track file and previous committee reports
Impact

Communication/Consultation

Regular discussions with the commanding
officer at Carver Barracks

Community Safety

N/A

Equalities

N/A

Health and Safety

N/A

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

N/A

Page 229

Sustainability

N/A

Ward-specific impacts

Debden and Wimbish as the directly
impacted Ward however the facility will be
available to residents of all Wards in the
district

Workforce/Workplace

N/A

Situation
5. In July 2017 Cabinet recommended and Council endorsed that the sum of
£500,000 was given as part funding for the delivery of a running track at
Carver Barracks.
6. Delegation was given to the lead Councillor, along with the Director of Finance
and Corporate Services and the Head of Legal to agree the terms of the grant.
7. The Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) was signed in May 2019 and the
£500,000 transferred to the Army at that time. The transfer was a pre-requisite
of the project starting, as the military have a requirement to have funding
identified and under their control before authorisation for commencement
could be given.
8. One of the clauses in the GFA is the ‘Longstop Date’ which is the latest time
by which completion of the project should occur. With the project plan in place
the agreed date was set at 31 March 2021.
9. There have been several delays to the commencement of the project including
that the Ministry of Defence moved to a new procurement framework, which
meant much of the procurement work had to be redone.
10. Work on site is due to start in the next few weeks but will not be complete by
31 March 2021. The current project plan has completion in September 2021.
However, to include some contingency this report recommends that the
Longstop Date is revised to 31 December 2021.
Risk Analysis

Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

The project is not
complete by 31
December 2021

1 – work on
site is
programmed

1- No direct
impact on the
Council but a
new decision
on whether or
not to further
revise the
Longstop Date

Fortnightly updates
from the Army have
been agreed, starting
with immediate effect.

Page 230

would be
required
1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 231

Agenda Item 14
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Land at the side of 4 Petlands, Little Walden

Tuesday, 9th March
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor Petrina Lees,

Report
Author:

Claire Shelley

Key decision:

Homeownership Officer

No

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Health

01799 510497
Summary
1. 4 Petlands was sold under the “right to buy”. Subsequently planning
consent has been given to develop part of the plot for a new dwelling.
The land on which the new dwelling is to be built will have access via
the existing single Right of Access therefore leaving no vehicular
access to the existing property which is bounded by a Council-owned
strip of land over which there is no other right of access.
2. The land owner has approached the Council with regard to the granting
of a new right of way to enable access to the property allowing the
existing access to be earmarked for the development site.
3. This Report is made to Cabinet for authority to proceed on the basis
that the land owner will bear all valuation, legal and survey costs of the
transaction.
Recommendations
4. That Cabinet gives authority for Officers to negotiate and agree the
terms of the proposed easement, subject to prior payment by the owner
of the valuation fee.
Financial Implications
5. In return for the granting of a right of way, the Council will secure a
receipt for the housing revenue account. The valuation will take into
account the development potential of the land and the value of the right
of way sought.
6. There will be a cost for obtaining a valuation, preparing surveys and
Legal Services time in preparing the right of way which will be met by
the owner of 4 Petlands, Little Walden
Background Papers
7. There are no background papers to this report.

Page 232

Impact
8.
Communication/Consultation

Consultation with neighbours as part of the
planning process

Community Safety

N/A

Equalities

N/A

Health and Safety

N/A

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

A Grant of Right of Way/Easement will
need to be completed. The Council is
under a statutory duty to obtain best value
is respect of this.

Sustainability

N/A

Ward-specific impacts

N/A

Workforce/Workplace

Within resources

Situation
9. Planning has been approved for a 3 bedroom dwelling to be built
adjacent to 4 Petlands in Little Walden, application number
UTT/17/3422/OP.
10. The owner of 4Petlands wants to proceed with the development of the
new dwelling on this site.
11. The existing vehicular access over the strip of land between the edge of
the road and the boundary of the property will be assigned to the new
dwelling. This will leave 4 Petlands with no vehicular access.
12. The owner of 4 Petlands is requesting to be granted a right of way over
the strip of land, owned by UDC, or purchase that land from the
Council. The land owner is seeking the former.
13. The council’s granting of a right of way would be subject to obtaining a
valuation and agreeing the consideration that would be payable.
Cabinet is asked to give officers delegated authority to negotiate and
agree terms for the right of way with the other party and, subject to this,
to grant the rights requested.
14. There are no adverse implications to the granting of a right of way in
respect of the Council’s land. The implications of the proposed
development generally have been considered as part of the Council’s
decision to grant planning consent.

Page 233

Risk Analysis
15.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

The Council owns
the access strip
which currently
serves the
existing property.
This is
documented so
there is no risk

N/A

N/A

N/A

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 234

Page 235

